
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

MARCH 23, 2009 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

March 23, 2009 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mark Biebuyck - Kensington 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation – Ron Figlan ................................................................... 1 
b) Service Commendation – Charles Craft ............................................................... 1 

c) Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill ...................... 1 
Presenter requests this item be postponed until after D-01 Postponed Items. .......... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – 
Automobile Repair in M-1 – Light Industrial Zoning District 2 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – 
Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval 
Applications 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

   

C-3 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 
2006 Funds 2 

C-4 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM 3 

a) NLM, Inc. (dba: Manny’s Liquor Shoppe) ............................................................. 3 

b) Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. (dba: Troy Cheese & Wine Market) ................ 5 
c) Wal-Mart Store No. 2873. (dba: Wal-Mart) ........................................................... 6 
d) Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 (dba: Aldi Food Market) ....................................... 7 
e) Good Food Company East (dba: Good Food Company) ..................................... 8 
f) Agrusa International Marketplace (dba: Agrusa International Marketplace) ......... 9 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 10 

D-1 Continuation of Public Hearing – Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of 
Florence Street in Section 9 – Project No. 08.108.1 10 

A-1 Continuation of Presentations: 11 

c) Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill .................... 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled 11 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Economic Development 
Corporation (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Board of Zoning Appeals; Charter Revision Committee; Employee Retirement 
System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic 
District Commission; Historic District Study Committee; Library Advisory Board; 
Parks & Recreation Board; and Personnel Board 11 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Motorola ATM Mapping Software for Fire Vehicles 14 

E-4 Additional Costs for I-75 Bridge Work – Project No. 08.102.6 14 

E-5 Possible Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance Revisions 15 



 

 

   

E-6 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and 
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2009-2010 15 

E-7 Implementation of Revenue Enhancements 15 

a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Notary 
Service and Dog Licenses .................................................................................. 15 

b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Planning 
Department Fees ................................................................................................ 16 

c) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Fire 
Department Fees ................................................................................................ 16 

d) Resolution to Amend Chapter 82A – Rental and Dwelling Inspection and 
Enforcement ....................................................................................................... 16 

e) Resolution to Amend Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention – Occupancy Permit 
Ordinance ........................................................................................................... 17 

f) Resolution to Revise Building Department Fees ................................................ 17 

E-8 Appointment of an Acting City Manager 17 

CONSENT AGENDA: 18 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 18 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 18 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 18 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 18 

a) Service Commendation – Ron Figlan ................................................................. 19 

b) Service Commendation – Charles Craft ............................................................. 19 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 19 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Quarterly 
Newsletter – Troy Today .................................................................................... 19 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Liquid 
Calcium Chloride ................................................................................................ 19 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League . 20 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Tax Bill Printing Services .......................................................... 20 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Municipal 
Testing Services ................................................................................................. 20 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Vehicle Graphics ...................................................................... 21 



 

 

   

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Police and Fire Departments Radio Interoperability Project ......... 21 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 
Maintenance ....................................................................................................... 21 

F-5 Contract Amendment – Medical Service Facilities 21 

F-6 Contract Extension – Banquet Services 22 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 35 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-046 – DePorre Property 
Investments, LLC 22 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 47 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-041 – Surg, LLC 23 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and 
Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 
Parcel 20 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-056 – JLJ Investments, LLC 24 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and 
Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 
Parcel 49 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-074 – CNL Net Lease Funding 2003 24 

F-11 Troy Racquet Club Rates 25 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 25 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 25 

a) Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 
300 John R – April 6, 2009 ................................................................................. 25 

G-2 Memorandums:  None Submitted 25 



 

 

   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 25 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 25 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 25 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 25 

REPORTS: 25 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 25 

a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 30, 2008 ........................................... 25 

b) Election Commission/Final – September 26, 2008 ............................................. 25 
c) Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2008 ......................................................... 25 

d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2009 ................................. 25 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 8, 2009 ....................... 25 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 3, 2009 ............................... 25 

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 4, 2009 ................................ 25 
h) Planning Commission/Final – February 10, 2009 ............................................... 25 

i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 17, 2009 .......................................... 25 
j) Planning Commission/Special Study/Draft – February 24, 2009 ........................ 25 

k) Planning Commission/Special Study/Final – February 24, 2009 ........................ 26 
l) Youth Council/Draft – February 25, 2009 ........................................................... 26 

m) Historic District Study Committee/Draft – March 3, 2009 ................................... 26 
n) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 3, 2009 .............................. 26 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 3, 2009 .............................. 26 

p) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 4, 2009 ........... 26 
q) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 4, 2009 ......................................... 26 

r) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – March 5, 2009 ........................................... 26 
s) Election Commission/Draft – March 9, 2009 ...................................................... 26 

J-2 Department Reports: 26 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January 2009 ........ 26 

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February 2009 ...... 26 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 26 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie 
Bergeron Regarding the Assistance Received with Traffic Flow during 
Commencement Ceremonies ............................................................................. 26 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Ronald Tatro Regarding the 
Assistance Received with the Office of Violence against Women Elder Abuse 
Training Program ................................................................................................ 26 



 

 

   

c) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Advisory Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities Chair Angie Done Regarding the Completion of the Disabilities 
Resource Guide ................................................................................................. 26 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 26 

J-5 Communication Regarding Notice of Opportunity to Comment Before the Michigan 
Public Service Commission – FirstEnergy Solutions – File No. U-15832 26 

J-6 Communication from the Arbor Day Foundation Regarding Troy Being Named a 
Tree City USA 26 

J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Public Comment 
Statement about Assessor 26 

STUDY ITEMS: 26 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 26 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 26 

CLOSED SESSION: 27 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 27 

ADJOURNMENT 27 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 27 

Monday, April 6, 2009 .............................................................................................. 27 
1. Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 

300 John R ......................................................................................................... 27 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 27 

Monday, March 30, 2009 Regular City Council ..................................................... 27 

Monday, April 6, 2009 Regular City Council .......................................................... 27 
Monday, April 20, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 27 
Monday, April 27, 2009 Special Study Session – Budget ...................................... 27 
Monday, May 4, 2009 Special Study Session – Budget ........................................ 27 
Monday, May 11, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 27 
Monday, May 18, 2009 Regular City Council ........................................................ 27 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mark Biebuyck - Kensington 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Service Commendation – Ron Figlan  

b) Service Commendation – Charles Craft 

c) Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill  

Presenter requests this item be postponed until after D-01 Postponed Items. 
 

Motion to Postpone 
  

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES A-01c Transit Center Update – 
Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill until the completion of Agenda Item D-01 Postponed 
Items. 
 
Yes:   
No: 
  

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – 

Automobile Repair in M-1 – Light Industrial Zoning District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article XXVIII (M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to Automobile Repair in 
M-1, to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 234), City 
Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – 

Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval 

Applications 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Article III (APPLICATIONS AND 
PROCEDURES) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, pertaining to Submittal Requirements for 
Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Applications, to read as written in the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 235), City Council Public Hearing Draft, 
as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
  

C-3 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 

2006 Funds 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on this date, March 23, 
2009 has determined that program year 2006 unexpended funds of $11,275.96, should be re-
programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

Phase #1, Section 6, to Special Assessment for Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9, 
Project No. 08.108.1; and 
 
WHEREAS, The balance of Program Year 2006 Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, unexpended funds in the amount of 
$82,540.04 should be re-programmed to the Section 36 Park Improvement Project;  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS the Special Assessment, Florence 
Street Paving Project No. 08.108.1 and Public Facilities and Improvements, Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project to the list of CDBG projects for 2006.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

C-4 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM 

 
The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 

a) Name:  NLM, Inc. (dba: Manny’s Liquor Shoppe) 
  Address: 42951 Dequindre, 48098 
  License No.: SDD (10801); SDM (13095) 
 

b) Name:  Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. 
   (dba: Troy Cheese & Wine Market) 

  Address: 2558 E. Maple Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDD/SDM; (18079) (11930) 
 

c) Name:  Wal-Mart Store No. 2873. (dba: Wal-Mart) 
  Address: 2001 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDM (165039-2008) 
 

d) Name:  Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 (dba: Aldi Food Market) 
  Address: 2967 E. Big Beaver Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (133734-2008) 

 
e) Name:  Good Food Company East (dba: Good Food Company) 

  Address: 74 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDM (105946-2008) 
 

f) Name:  Agrusa International Marketplace 
   (dba: Agrusa International Marketplace) 

  Address: 5047 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (179471-2008) 

 

a) NLM, Inc. (dba: Manny’s Liquor Shoppe) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  NLM, Inc. (dba: Manny’s Liquor Shoppe) 
  Address: 42951 Dequindre, 48098 

 License No.: SDD (10801); SDM (13095) 
 

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (MLCC Compliance Test) on May 29, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: December 6, 2006 – CITY 
ORDINANCE VIOLATION FOR IMPROPER DISPLAY OF ALCOHOL; July 25, 2000 – SALE 
TO MINOR (Compliance Test); July 21, 1999 – MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
October 28, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); July 23, 1992 – FURNISH 
ALCOHOL TO MINOR; October 26, 1989 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 23, 
1987 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 10801 and SDM License Number 13095 in the name of NLM, Inc. in the City 
of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. (dba: Troy Cheese & Wine Market) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name: Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. (dba: Troy Cheese & Wine Market) 
 Address: 2558 E. Maple Road, 48083 

 License No.: SDD/SDM; (18079) (11930) 
 

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: October 27, 2000 – SELLING 
SPIRITS WHICH HAVE BEEN PURCHASED FROM AN ILLEGAL SOURCE FROM 
BETWEEN 06/28/00-8/28/00 TO PRESENT; May 23, 1991 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance 
Test); February 19, 1987 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); May 25, 1985 – SALE TO 
MINOR; September 18, 1981 – SALE TO MINOR; and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD/SDM 
License Numbers 18079/11930 in the name of Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. in the City of 
Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

c) Wal-Mart Store No. 2873. (dba: Wal-Mart) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Wal-Mart Store No. 2873 (dba: Wal-Mart) 
  Address: 2001 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDM (165039-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on October 2, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 165039-2008 in the name of Wal-Mart Store No. 2873 in the City of Troy), to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or 

TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 
90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

d) Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 (dba: Aldi Food Market) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 (dba: Aldi Food Market) 
  Address: 2967 E. Big Beaver Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (133734-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  

  

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on October 2, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 133734-2008 in the name of Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 in the City of 
Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

e) Good Food Company East (dba: Good Food Company) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Good Food Company East (dba: Good Food Company) 
  Address: 74 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDM (105946-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on October 2, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 105946-2008 in the name of Good Food Company East in the City of Troy), to 
have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or 

TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 
90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

f) Agrusa International Marketplace (dba: Agrusa International Marketplace) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Agrusa International Marketplace  
   (dba: Agrusa International Marketplace)   

  Address: 5047 Rochester Road, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (179471-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on December 30, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD/SDM 
License Number 179471-2008 in the name of Agrusa International Marketplace in the City of 
Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Continuation of Public Hearing – Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of 

Florence Street in Section 9 – Project No. 08.108.1 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 08.108.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 

Bituminous Paving of Florence Street 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and have 
reviewed said Special Assessment Roll and have heard all persons interested in said Special 
Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by 
the City Assessor; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS Special 
Assessment Roll No. 08.108.1 in the amount of $162,800.00 as prepared by the City Assessor, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 

A-1 Continuation of Presentations: 

c) Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 

Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Economic Development 

Corporation (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Senior 

Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; Charter Revision Committee; Employee 

Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; 

Historic District Commission; Historic District Study Committee; Library Advisory 

Board; Parks & Recreation Board; and Personnel Board   

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  

 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 

Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Mayor  (9-Regular) - 6-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2015 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2015 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2015 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2015 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular)  - 3 Year Terms 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular)  - 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council  - 3 Year Term 
 

City Council Representative Term Expires 04/15/2012 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 
 Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 
 Term Expires 05/15/2012 

 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 

Library Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) -3- Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 14 - 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) -3- Year Terms; 1-Troy School Board; 1-Troy Daze; & 
1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens: 1-Year Terms 
 Term Expires 04/30/2010 

 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
 Term Expires 04/30/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Bid Waiver – Motorola ATM Mapping Software for Fire Vehicles  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Motorola is the sole supplier of the proprietary ATM mapping software;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Fire Department has researched mobile computer mapping applications 
for use in fire emergency vehicles and finds the Motorola ATM to be the most functional and 
cost effective; and 
 
WHEREAS, CLEMIS has deployed the Motorola ATM mapping software program in all law 
enforcement mobile data computers in Oakland County;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to purchase twenty (20) licenses for the ATM 
mobile mapping software from Motorola, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $16,880.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Additional Costs for I-75 Bridge Work – Project No. 08.102.6   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby INCREASES the not-to-exceed fee of $56,715.00 
to an estimated amount of $80,000.00 for Troy’s share of the I-75 bridge project in accordance 
with MDOT Contract No. 07-5754 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation for the I-75 Bridge Project, Project No. 08.102.6 as previously approved by City 
Council. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Possible Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance Revisions   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to draft revisions to Chapter 28, 
Tree Ordinance, including revisions presented at this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2009-2010   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RATIFIES a one-year extension of the 2006-2009 
collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME for the period July 1, 

2009 through June 30, 2010, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
the final agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-7 Implementation of Revenue Enhancements   
 

a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Notary Service and 

Dog Licenses 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 16 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required of the Troy City Code, Section 60.04, Fee Schedule, Dogs (Chapter 

90) and Notary Service, as prepared by City Management, EFFECTIVE April 1, 2009, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Planning 

Department Fees  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required of the Troy City Code, Section 60.04, Fee Schedule, Planning 

Department Fees, as prepared by City Management, EFFECTIVE April 1, 2009, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

  
Yes: 
No: 

  

c) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Fire Department 

Fees  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required of the Troy City Code – Fire Department, as recommended by City 

Management, EFFECTIVE April 1, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

d) Resolution to Amend Chapter 82A – Rental and Dwelling Inspection and 

Enforcement  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 82-
A, Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement of the Troy City Code, as recommended by 

City Management, EFFECTIVE July 1, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

 

e) Resolution to Amend Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention – Occupancy Permit Ordinance  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 93, 

Fire Prevention, of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Management, EFFECTIVE 

April 1, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

f) Resolution to Revise Building Department Fees  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVISES Plan Review Fees, from .0005 times the 
construction value to .001 times the construction value in accordance with the proposal 

prepared by City Management, EFFECTIVE April 1, 2009, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-8 Appointment of an Acting City Manager 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS   ______    
as Acting City Manager effective April 1, 2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 18 - 

 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of March 2, 2009 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 19 - 

a) Service Commendation – Ron Figlan  

b) Service Commendation – Charles Craft 
 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Quarterly 

Newsletter – Troy Today               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 16, 2007, a contract to provide printing of the Troy Today, Quarterly 
Newsletter with two, one (1) year options to renew was awarded to Grand River Printing and 
Imaging of Belleville, MI, the vendor with the highest weighted final score, as a result of a best 
value process (Resolution #2007-04-122-E-4a);  
 
WHEREAS, On February 18, 2008, Troy City Council exercised the first option to renew for the 
2008/2009 printing of the Troy Today quarterly newsletter with Grand River Printing and 
Imaging under the same terms and conditions with a price increase of $1,100.00 per quarterly 
issue to recover costs due to fluctuations in paper (Resolution #2008-02-058-F4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Grand River Printing and Imaging has agreed to exercise the second option to 
renew for the 2009/2010 Troy Today under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the second 
option to renew for the 2009/2010 printing of the Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter with Grand 
River Printing and Imaging of Belleville, MI, to provide printing and distribution of the 2009/2010 
Troy Today for an estimated total cost of $75,000.00, as well as the actual cost of bulk rate 
postage and additional charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the original contract amount 
or $7,500.00, with all other contract requirements the same to expire April 30, 2010.  
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Liquid Calcium 

Chloride               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, In 2008 Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract for Liquid Calcium Chloride 
with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the lowest acceptable bidder, South Huron 
Industrial, Inc. of Flat Rock, MI (Resolution #’s 2008-04-120-F4e and #2008-05-154-F8); and 
  
WHEREAS, South Huron Industrial, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year renewal option 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew this contract with South Huron Industrial, Inc. of Flat Rock, MI, to provide Liquid Calcium 
Chloride under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract expiring March 
31, 2010. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 20 - 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES payment for annual membership 
dues to the Michigan Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2009 through April 30, 
2010, in the amount of $12,534.00. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Tax Bill Printing Services               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide printing services for 
the 2009 Summer and Winter Tax Bills with options to renew for two (2) additional one-year tax 
periods to the lowest acceptable bidder, DivDat, of Ferndale, MI, at prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened February 25, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of December 31, 2009. 
 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Municipal Testing 

Services               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On March 20, 2006, two (2) three-year contracts to provide professional municipal 
testing services effective April 1, 2006 through March 31, 2009, with the option to renew for an 
additional three (3) year period were awarded to Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) and 
Testing Engineers and Consultants, Inc. (TEC), as a result of a best value process, at prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened February 22, 2006 (Resolution #2006-03-143-E4d); and 
 
WHEREAS, Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) and Testing Engineers and Consultants, 
Inc. (TEC) have offered to renew their contracts for three (3) additional years under the same 
pricing schedule, terms and conditions as the 2006 contract;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the three-year 
option to renew the contracts for municipal testing services with Professional Service 
Industries, Inc. (PSI) of Auburn Hills and Testing Engineers and Consultants, Inc. (TEC) of 
Troy, MI, under the same pricing schedule, terms and conditions as the 2006 contract with 
additional services as outlined in their respective rate schedules, effective April 1, 2009 through 
March 31, 2012, with a provision for an increase based on the consumer price index inflation 
calculator or the (CPI) computation for the published Urban-Detroit/Ann Arbor Area between 
the base year of April 2009 and the current contract year, whichever is lower. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 21 - 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Vehicle Graphics               
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a two-year contract to provide Police, 
Fire and Fleet departments with vehicle graphic material and/or installation, with an option to 
renew for two additional years, to the lowest acceptable total bidder, Majik Graphics, Inc. of 
Clinton Township, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 11, 2009, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract 
expiration of March 31, 2011; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 

g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Police and Fire Departments Radio Interoperability Project  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase the dispatch 
radio interoperability equipment for the Police and Fire departments from Advanced Wireless 
Telecom (AWT) of Wixom, MI, through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
for an estimated total cost of $10,587.00. 
 

h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the City of Troy 
Parking Lot Maintenance Program for 2008/09 to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists, Inc., 
of Pontiac, MI, for JAYCEE PARK and SYLVAN GLEN PARK at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation opened March 4, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, with the contract not to exceed budgetary limitations; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 

F-5 Contract Amendment – Medical Service Facilities 
    
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 22 - 

WHEREAS, On November 17, 2003, a contract to conduct physicals and related testing from 
Crittenton Hospital was approved for an estimated annual cost of $61,437.00, at unit prices 
provided in the pricing schedule identified as Attachment A (Resolution #2003-11-591-F4);  
 
WHEREAS, On December 19, 2005, contracts to provide designated professional services to 
City of Troy personnel from Concentra Medical Center, Crittenton Hospital, and Bio-Care was 
approved with pricing reviewed annually and adjustments allowed not-to-exceed the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area (Resolution #2005-12-549-F3); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three facilities have submitted new pricing for 2009 at or below prices 
established for 2008; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That due to the aggressive pricing received from Concentra, 

Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the contracts to provide ongoing professional medical 
services to City of Troy personnel from Concentra of Troy, Crittenton Hospital of Rochester, 
and Bio-Care of Holt, MI, as detailed on the attached tabulation and protocol reports, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, to expire December 31, 
2009, with annual adjustments allowed not-to-exceed 3% or the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area, whichever is lower.  
 

F-6 Contract Extension – Banquet Services 
    
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 21, 2002, Troy City Council approved a three (3) year contract to 
provide Banquet Services with an option to renew the contract for an additional three (3) year 
period to the San Marino Club, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process 
(Resolution #2002-10-570-E9);  
 
WHEREAS, On October 17, 2005, the option to renew was exercised for an additional three 
years with the San Marino Club under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring August 
31, 2008 (Resolution #2005-10-474-D1); and  
 
WHEREAS, The San Marino Cub has offered to extend their contract for the Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet to be held May 16, 2009, under the same prices, terms and conditions as 
the original contract;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
provide Banquet Services for the 2009 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet with the San Marino 
Club of Troy, MI, under the same pricing, terms, and conditions as the original contract at 
$39.00 per plate including gratuity.  
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 35 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-046 – DePorre Property 

Investments, LLC 
    
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 23 - 

Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the DePorre Property Investments, LLC, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-22-276-046, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $54,495.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $6,705.00 from DePorre Property Investments, LLC, owners 
of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-276-046; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 47 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-041 – Surg, LLC  
    
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the Surg, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-
041, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $15,000.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $2,100.00 from Surg, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-226-041; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 24 - 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and 

Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 

Parcel 20 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-056 – JLJ Investments, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between JLJ Investments, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-14-
351-056, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $21,677.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $48,857.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $4,261.00 from JLJ Investments, LLC, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-14-351-056; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and 

Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 

Parcel 49 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-074 – CNL Net Lease Funding 2003 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between CNL Net Lease Funding 2003, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-226-074, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $79,560.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $39,500.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $1,100.00 from CNL Net Lease Funding 2003, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-074; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 25 - 

 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-11 Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009-2010 membership rates for 
Troy Racquet Club as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department dated 

March 13, 2009, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  

a) Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 300 John R 
– April 6, 2009          

 

G-2 Memorandums:  None Submitted  

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 30, 2008 

b) Election Commission/Final – September 26, 2008 

c) Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2008  

d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2009 

e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 8, 2009  

f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 3, 2009  

g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 4, 2009 

h) Planning Commission/Final – February 10, 2009  

i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 17, 2009  

j) Planning Commission/Special Study/Draft – February 24, 2009  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 26 - 

k) Planning Commission/Special Study/Final – February 24, 2009 

l) Youth Council/Draft – February 25, 2009  

m) Historic District Study Committee/Draft – March 3, 2009 

n) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 3, 2009  

o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 3, 2009 

p) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 4, 2009 

q) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 4, 2009  

r) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – March 5, 2009 

s) Election Commission/Draft – March 9, 2009 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January 2009  

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February 2009 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie Bergeron 
Regarding the Assistance Received with Traffic Flow during Commencement 
Ceremonies  

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Ronald Tatro Regarding the Assistance 
Received with the Office of Violence against Women Elder Abuse Training Program  

c) Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Chair Angie Done Regarding the Completion of the Disabilities Resource Guide 

   

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5 Communication Regarding Notice of Opportunity to Comment Before the Michigan 

Public Service Commission – FirstEnergy Solutions – File No. U-15832 
 

J-6 Communication from the Arbor Day Foundation Regarding Troy Being Named a 

Tree City USA 
 

J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Public Comment 

Statement about Assessor 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 23, 2009 

 

- 27 - 

only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, April 6, 2009 
1. Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 300 

John R    

   
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, March 30, 2009 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 6, 2009 ............................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, April 20, 2009 ............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, April 27, 2009 ........................................... Special Study Session – Budget 

Monday, May 4, 2009 .............................................. Special Study Session – Budget 

Monday, May 11, 2009 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

Monday, May 18, 2009 .............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
RON FIGLAN 

 
WHEREAS, Ron Figlan began his employment with the City of Troy on July 20, 1970 as a Planning Aide in the 
Planning Department.  In 1987 he became known as a Planning Technician and in 1991 as a Planner.  Few may 
be aware that Ron began his municipal career as an Auxiliary Police Officer in Royal Oak; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ron has worked at the City of Troy for almost 39 years where he has watched the City grow and 
prosper from humble beginnings, and he served an active part in shaping the City into the vibrant community it is 
today; and   
 
WHEREAS, The City employees will miss Ron on a personal level along with missing all of his professional 
knowledge and experience.  The lunch time euchre group will also be sad to see their favorite player leave the 
team, but they won’t miss his bad jokes too much; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ron will enjoy is retirement spending time with his family; grandson Brandon, daughter Dawn and 
her husband Adam Klemp, son James, and girlfriend Maryann Greene.  Ron’s son James will be commissioned 
into the Air Force, just like his father was; and 
 
WHEREAS, There’s a lot around Metro Detroit that will continue to keep Ron entertained.  He enjoys the Detroit 
Tigers, the Dream Cruise, playing cards, and is a dining-out enthusiast at local restaurants; his favorite order is 
the Big Chief Burger at Duggan’s Irish Pub; and   
 
WHEREAS, Upon his retirement we hope Ron will dance out the door, seeing as how he is skilled at everything 
from the twist to the polka, but returns frequently for some lunchtime Euchre; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Ron Figlan for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management 
and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Ron during his 
retirement years. 
 
Presented the 23rd day of March 2009. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



Service Commendation 
CHARLES T. CRAFT 

 
WHEREAS, Charles Craft began his career as a police officer with the City of Troy in 1980, after serving three years as a police 
officer with the City of Clawson; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1986, Charlie was selected as Troy’s Police Officer of the Year.  Prior to his appointment as Chief, he achieved 
the ranks of sergeant, lieutenant, and captain.  As sergeant and lieutenant he had the opportunity to supervise and manage 
Patrol Operations, Criminal Investigations, Criminal Intelligence, Special Operations, and Internal Affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, During his tenure as captain, Charlie initially commanded the Patrol Division, was appointed as commander of the 
Criminal Investigations Division; and promoted to Police Chief on April 13, 1998, a role he has served for almost 11 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Charlie become a recognized expert in the interest based bargaining process, establishing a more personalized 
approach to management/employee relations.  The department now functions in an atmosphere where management and 
employees assess problems, pursue solutions, and work through issues with minimal conflict; and 
 
WHEREAS, During Charlie’s tenure as Chief, the community has seen a consistent decrease in serious crime, ranking as the 
safest city in Michigan with a population of 75,000 or more since 2004.  Troy was also designated as the fifth safest city in the 
United States in 2006, and the sixth safest in 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Chief has consistently recognized the importance of a broad-based approach to public safety, supporting and 
stressing the vital partnerships between the police department and organizations responsible for ensuring a strong and vibrant 
community including the Troy School District, the 52-4 District Court, the Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug 
and Alcohol Abuse, the Troy Boys & Girls Club, Troy Youth Assistance, and HAVEN, to name just a few; and 
 
WHEREAS, Charlie met his future wife Janine, who was a Troy police service aide on his first day as a Troy police officer in 
1980.  They have been married since August 19, 1981 and are the proud parents of Mary and Anna; and   
 
WHEREAS, Charlie Craft retired from the Troy Police Department on Feb. 28, 2009 after 29 years of dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In his retirement Charlie plans to stay active with his competitive softball team; his band, Cross Town, with which 
he plays bass and guitar; his church; his family and is open to the possibility of new endeavors;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its appreciation 
to Chief Charles Craft for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management and the citizens 
of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Charlie during his retirement years.  His 
influence and contributions will remain alive in our hearts and will impact each of us as we journey into the future. 
  
Presented the 23rd day of February 2009. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



 

 

ME MOR A ND UM  

 

 

 
 

 

TO: Birmingham City Commission and the Troy City Council 

FROM: Dan Beattie, Alan Canady, Chris Wagner 

DATE: March 17, 2009 

SUBJECT: Funding for Troy/Birmingham Transit Center 

  

 

Clark Hill PLC was retained by the City of Birmingham and the City of Troy in mid-December, 

2008, to advance up to $7 million in construction funding for the Troy/Birmingham Multi-Modal 

Transit Center.  The first quarter of our work with the cities coincides with a significant 

transition of federal power, as well as the passage of unprecedented federal legislation to aid 

recovery from a deep economic recession. 

  

One of the pillars of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), often referred to as 

the federal stimulus bill, is federal investment of more than $150 billion in supplemental federal 

funding for community infrastructure, including close to $47 billion for roads, bridges, rail and 

transit projects through the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT).  To date, federal 

commitments for the State of Michigan from these funds total slightly more than $1 billion for 

'shovel ready' projects with up to a 100-percent federal funding cost share.  In most cases, all 

transportation funds under ARRA must be obligated by September 30, 2010; priority is given to 

projects that can be completed within three years and are located in economically distressed 

areas. 

  

There are generally two types of funding available -- formula and competitive funding.  DOT's 

Federal Highway Administration released formula highway apportionments to states on March 

3rd.  The Federal Transit Administration released its apportionments on March 5th.  Michigan is 

actively organizing its investment priorities under ARRA, including in the transportation arena, 

and has established a web site as a citizen portal about anticipated investments throughout the 

state: http://www.michigan.gov/gov/0,1607,7-168-52827---,00.html.  The Multi-Modal Transit 

Center is listed in the state 'inventory of requests' submitted by governmental and non-

governmental organizations as well as citizens statewide.  Altogether, this inventory includes 

over 16,000 requests valued at more than $49 billion.  

  

While USDOT continues to develop and release guidance for formula and potential competitive 

funding recipients, most communications to date stress several actions that should be well 

underway, including: 

  

-    Ensuring proposed projects are included in local and state transportation improvement plans 

(TIP and STIP) 

http://www.michigan.gov/gov/0,1607,7-168-52827---,00.html
campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



MEMORANDUM  PAGE 2 

 

 
 

-    Preparing drafts of potential funding applications, including key budget and activity 

milestones 

-    Preparing any required environmental review required under the National Environmental 

Policy Act (NEPA), Sec. 106 Historic Preservation Act review, Sec. 4(f) Department of 

Transportation Act review, and conformity with the National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(NAAQS) to comply with the Clean Air Act 

  

Formula Programs Under ARRA 
  

    FEDERAL HIGHWAY PROGRAM 

        -    $847.2 million to Michigan 

        -    $99.82 million of $139.4 million in urban area funds are sub-allocated to Detroit MSA. 

        -    Spending decisions for all projects in this region are subject to approval by SEMCOG as 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), as well as by the Michigan Department of 

Transportation (MDOT), consistent with federal transportation improvement plan 

requirements. 

        -    It is possible to 'flex' some highway dollars for transit programs under the Surface 

Transportation Program. 

        -    3 percent of funds must be set aside for transportation enhancements ($25.4 million in 

Michigan) 

         

    TRANSIT CAPITAL ASSISTANCE 

       -     $135 million for Michigan 

       -     80 percent is apportioned to urban areas; exact agency apportionments (ie. to SMART 

and DDOT) have not been announced. 

       -    SMART and SEMCOG funding approval required for urban area funds impacting 

Oakland County (MDOT approval not required). 

  

    REAPPORTIONED OR REDISTRIBUTED FUNDS 

        -   Highway and transit funds not obligated by deadlines set by ARRA will be reapportioned 

(highway) or redistributed (transit) for other ready projects 

        -    Amount is unknown -- redirection actions expected in fall of 2009 and spring of 2010. 

  

Competitive Programs Under ARRA 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCRETIONARY GRANTS FOR A NATIONAL SURFACE 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

-    $1.5 billion to be awarded by Secretary of Transportation to states, local governments and 

transit agencies 

-    Transit, passenger and freight rail projects eligible 

-    Up to $200 million can be awarded for TIFIA credit assistance 

-    A focus on projects that need federal funds to complete a financing package -- "gap funding" 

-    Maximum state award of $300 million; individual project award sizes of $20-300 million 

(minimum can be waived by Secretary) 

  



MEMORANDUM  PAGE 3 

 

 
 

AMTRAK 

-    $1.3 billion in a grant to National Passenger Rail Road Corporation (Amtrak). 

-    Awarded March 13 

-    Not more than 60 percent of funding can be applied to Amtrak's Northeast Corridor 

-    Initial announcement includes $60 million for Michigan-related improvements for positive 

train control between Kalamazoo and Portage, IN 

-   Working to determine feasibility of applying to Amtrak for station improvement funds. 

  

CAPITAL ASSISTANCE FOR HIGH SPEED RAIL CORRIDORS AND INTERCITY 

PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE 

-    $8 billion for competitive awards by DOT 

-    Intercity passenger rail capital projects and congestion projects 

-    Funds available until September 30, 2012 

-    Only states may apply. 

  

FTA ENERGY AND GREENHOUSE GAS DISCRETIONARY (TIGGER) 

-    $100 million competitive solicitation -- awards to public transit agencies 

-    Criteria to be determined  

-    Priority for projects that reduce a project's energy consumption or the proportion of a system's 

energy usage. 

  

Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Appropriations 
-    Applications submitted on cities' behalf to Senators Levin, Stabenow and Rep. Peters for up 

to $7 million. 

-    Federal earmarks have decreased as a share of overall annual funding in past few years; 

Obama Administration and Congressional leaders have taken additional actions to limit and 

credential Congressional funding requests. 

-    FY 2009 appropriations signed into law earlier this month; included roughly $30 million in 

transportation related earmarks for Michigan -- most transit earmarks are under $1 million. 

  

State Budget Actions 

 

MDOT will receive 75 percent (approximately $637 million) of expected federal formula 

funding for highways while the remaining 25 percent (about $213 million) will go to local 

agencies in compliance with Act 51, which provides transportation dollars to MDOT, county 

road commissions, and cities and villages for the maintenance and construction of roads and 

support of public transit systems.   As mentioned earlier, an even greater share of federal transit 

dollars will be sent directly to urban transit systems. 

 

We are continuing to work with MDOT and the Appropriations Subcommittees in an effort to 

secure Transit Center funding from available state funds, both from any available stimulus 

dollars or annual appropriated funds.  Early meetings with elected leaders, as well as legislative 

and executive branch staff, have focused on educating them about the purpose and status of the 

project and identifying funding solutions that would include timely state support to meet the 

Transit Center's tight construction time frame. 



MEMORANDUM  PAGE 4 

 

 
 

 

The Senate Transportation Subcommittee is in the process of preparing the State Transportation 

Budget.  It is expected to make its recommendations to the full Appropriations Committee on 

March 24.   The Transportation Budget will then be reported to the State Senate.  Once approved, 

the Budget will then be sent to the State House for further consideration. 



 1 

 
 
 
DATE: March 17, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – 

Article 28 – Automobile Repair in M-1  
 
 
Background: 
 
 The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the February 10, 2009 

Regular meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 234.   
 

 The proposed amendment permits parcels that front on major thoroughfares or abut I-75 to 
be utilized for automobile repair.  This improves the potential for reuse for vacant industrial 
buildings in the City of Troy. 
 

 The proposed amendment permits automobile repair facilities without outdoor storage by 
right in M-1.  Presently, these facilities are permitted by Special Use Approval.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at 
the July 1, 2008 special Council meeting: 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 

quality of life venues. 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in 

a changing and interconnected world. 
 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 234 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Article 28, City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
3. Minutes from February 10, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\CC Public Hearing 03 23 09.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

ZOTA 234 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
automobile repair and service facilities by Conditional Use in the M-1 District, to read as 
follows: 
 
28.00.00 ARTICLE XXVIII  M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT 
 
28.25.00 Conditional Uses Permitted: 
  The following uses shall be permitted in M-1 Districts, subject to the 

conditions imposed for each use: 
 
28.25.08 Automobile repair and service facilities, including engine, electrical, and 

mechanical repair, vehicle body repair, painting, rust-proofing, and auto 
glass work, subject to the following conditions: 

 
  A. Outside storage or display of vehicles, parts or equipment shall be 

prohibited unless the applicant receives Special Use Approval per the 
provisions of Section 28.30.04.  

 
28.30.00 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
28.30.07 Automobile Repair and Service Facilities, Including Engine, Electrical, and 

Mechanical Repair, Vehicle Body Repair, Painting, Rust-Proofing, and Auto 
Glass Work, Subject to the Following Conditions: 

 
  A. Such sites shall be within the interior of industrially zoned areas. They 

shall have their frontage on and access only to secondary or interior 
streets, and no frontage on or access to Major Thoroughfares or 
Freeways as established by the Master Thoroughfare Plan. 

  B. Outside storage or display of parts or equipment shall be prohibited. 



2 
 

 
  C. Retail sales shall be limited to those items necessary to carry out the 

vehicle service activities occurring on the site. 
 
  The uses permitted by this Section shall not include Automobile Service 

Stations, as provided for in Section 23.30.02 of this Chapter. 
   
  (Rev. 12-05-94) 
 
28.30.78 Commercial Kennels, subject to the following conditions: 
 

A. The site shall be no closer than three hundred (300) feet from any 
residentially zoned or used property. This distance provision shall not 
apply to residentially zoned land which is developed or committed for 
uses other than the construction of residential dwellings. 

 
  B. A Commercial Kennel establishment may include ancillary uses such 

as pet grooming and pet obedience training. 
 
  (Rev. 02-05-01) 
 
28.30.089 Indoor commercial recreation facilities, subject to the following conditions: 
 
  A. Off-street parking requirements shall be determined based on the 

Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
28.30.910  Retail uses, subject to the following: 
  

A. The retail use shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross 
floor area of a building that is used for industrial purposes. 

B. There shall be a functional relationship between the retail use and the 
industrial use, as determined by one of the following: 

 
i. The retail use sells only products, or products directly accessory 

thereto, that are manufactured or fabricated in the industrial 
portion of the building. 

 
ii. The retail use sells only products, or products directly accessory 

thereto, that are stored in the industrial portion of the building. 
 

C. For application B. ii. above, the industrial and retail uses shall have 
common ownership. 

 
D. For application B. ii. above, the building shall front on a major 

thoroughfare as classified on the City of Troy Transportation Plan.  
 



3 
 

  (Renumbered: 04-17-06) 

Section 3.  Savings 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\Draft ZOTA 234 02 20 09.doc 

























PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 234) – 

Article 28.30.07, Automobile Repair and Service Facilities in the Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.  He indicated a representative of the Building Department gave a 
thumbs-up relative to the intent and enforceability of the proposed amendment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-017 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28, M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 
automobile repair and service facilities, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 234 Auto Repair in M-1\02 10 09 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 



 1 

 
 
 
DATE: March 17, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – 

Article 3 – Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use 
Approval Applications  

 
 
Background: 
 
 The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the February 10, 2009 

Regular meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 235.   
 

 The requirement for a full set of plans (including preliminary grading plans, preliminary 
elevations and preliminary floor plans) is excessive in some cases when the applicant 
proposes the reuse of an existing building, with no exterior site work. 

 

 The proposed amendment provides the Planning Director with the authority to waive 
required site plan information for site plans, including special use approval applications, 
when the proposal involves limited exterior site work.   
 

 Applications will continue to be routed for inter-departmental review. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at 
the July 1, 2008 special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in 
a changing and interconnected world. 

 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 235 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Article 03.43.01, City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
3. Minutes from February 10, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\CC Public Hearing 03 23 09.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

ZOTA 235 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article III of Chapter 39 
 
Article III of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to provide the 
Planning Director with the authority to waive required information for Site Plan Review 
or Special Use Approval applications, to read as follows: 
 
 
03.40.00 SITE PLAN REVIEW / APPROVAL 
 
03.43.04 For a Preliminary Site Plan Application involving the reuse of an existing 

building without any significant exterior or interior modifications, including an 
application required for Special Use Approval, the Planning Director may 
waive any of the Submittal Requirements listed in Section 03.43.01.  The 
Planning Commission may request any of the waived information if it makes 
a finding that the information is needed to determine compliance with Zoning 
Ordinance requirements.  

Section 3.  Savings 

 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 



2 
 

Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\Draft ZOTA 235 02 20 09.doc 











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 235) 
Article 03.00.00, Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and 
Special Use Approval Application Submissions 
 
Mr. Miller briefly summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  
He stated a revised draft version was distributed this evening that reflects a very 
minor revision in Section 03.43.04.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented favorably on the proposed text amendment.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the procedure of site plan review and approval 
with the implementation of the new text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-018 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 3, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to 
submittal requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval 
Application submissions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 235 Application Requirement Revisions\02 10 09 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 



 
 
March 5, 2009 
 
 
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:           Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
           Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing – Re-programming Community Development Block Grant 
                     (CDBG) Program Year 2006 funds 
 
Background:  
 
 The special assessment account for Charnwood Sanitary Sewers, CDBG program 

year 2006 has a balance of $93,816.00. 
 
 In December of 2004 the Engineering Department conducted a poll of the residents 

affected by the Charnwood project. Twenty (20) responses were received from 
residents that felt they qualified for CDBG funding based upon the income 
information provided them. Funding was allocated based on this survey. We received 
six (6) applications. Four (4) property owners qualified for Phase #1. 

 
 Three (3) Florence Street residents have provided the necessary documentation and 

qualify to have their Special Assessment costs paid from our CDBG allocation.  
 
 The balance of funds from Program Year 2006 must be expended or relinquished. 

 
 Oakland County has recommended continuing the walking path project in Section 36 

Park, located south of Maple just west of Milverton as an eligible project under the 
CDBG program. This project would not be subject to Davis-Bacon if completed 
internally.  

 
 Asphalt paving of Florence Street and Section 36 Park Walking Path projects were 

initiated after the 2006 CDBG application was submitted, so they were not included 
on our initial list of projects. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Unexpended funds for CDBG Program Year 2006 must be exhausted by December 

31, 2009 so the City may be reimbursed by Oakland County through the CDBG 
Program. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed re-programming is consistent with City Council Outcome Statement l 

(Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community and Outcome Statement 
II (Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 
and quality of life venues.) 

  
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends: 

 
 A.  Re-programming unexpended CDBG Program Year 2006 funds in the amount of 

$93,816.00 as follows:  
1. $11,275.96 re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 

Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to  
Special Assessment for Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9, 
Project No. 08.108.1 

2. $82,540.04 re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 
Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to 
Section 36 Park Improvement Project. 

 
 B. The addition of Special Assessment for Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in 

Section 9, Project No. 08.108.1 and the Section 36 Park Improvement Project to the 
list of CDBG projects for 2006. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.23.09 – Re-programming CDBG Program Year 2006 
Unexpended Funds  



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04a















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
NLM, Inc. 
dba:  Manny's Liquor Shoppe 
42951 Dequindre  
Troy, Michigan 48098  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDD/SDM  

License Number: SDD 10801; SDM 13095 

Violation : MLCC Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 5/29/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04b













pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. 
dba:  Troy Cheese & Wine Market 
2558 E. Maple Road  
Troy, Michigan 48083  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDD/SDM  

License Number: 18079; 11930 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 5/21/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04c





















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Wal-Mart Store No. 2873 
dba:  Wal-Mart 
2001 W. Maple Road  
Troy, Michigan 48084  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 165039-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test (DPU) - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 10/2/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Sandra Cotter 
 Dykema Gossett 
 201 Townsend - Suite 900 
 Lansing, MI 48933



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04d





















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 
dba:  Aldi Food Market 
2967 E. Big Beaver Road  
Troy, Michigan 48083  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 133734-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 10/2/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04e

























 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Good Food Company East 
dba:  Good Food Company 
74 W. Maple Road  
Troy, Michigan 48084  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 105946-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test (DPU) - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 10/2/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 



PALLOTTABA
Text Box
C-04f







pallottaba
Text Box

pallottaba
Text Box

















 

 

 

 
 
 
January 28, 2009 
 
Agrusa International Marketplace 
dba:  Argusa International Marketplace 
5047 Rochester Rd.  
Troy, Michigan 48085  
 

Re: NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - Liquor License Violation 
 
 To whom it may concern: 
  
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Wednesday, February 11, 2009 at 

7:30 PM, or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit, to determine whether 
the City Council should recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 
the revocation of licenses allowed for the sale and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverage, for the following reasons: 
 

License Type: SDM  

License Number: 179471-2008 

Violation : Compliance Test - Sale to Minor 

Violation Date(s): 12/30/2008 
 
You will be given an opportunity to be heard and present evidence at the public 
hearing and legal counsel may represent you.  If you have questions regarding 
the procedure or the facts and circumstances surrounding your violation(s), you 
may contact the City Attorney’s office at 248-524-3320. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara A. Pallotta, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
c:   Attorney: Contact not on file. 
 



 

 
 
December 30, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt paving on Florence 

Street in Section 9 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On January 26, 2009, City Council approved Standard Resolutions 1, 2, and 3, for asphalt paving 

of Florence Street, in Section 9.  Standard Resolution #3 set a Public Hearing for February 16, 
2009, to allow for public input, and to give City Council the opportunity to approve the Special 
Assessment Roll for this project (#08.108.1). 

 
Fifty nine point zero nine percent (59.09) of the owners (13 of 22) and sixty one point one seven 
percent (61.17) of the frontage of this portion of the street are in favor of the project. 
 
Community Block Grant Development funds are available to pay the Special Assessment for any 
qualifying residents.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Property owners are assessed on a front foot basis for their portion of the cost, as the lots widths 

are not uniform in the project area.  The Special Assessment payment plan is over the standard 
ten (10) years. 

 
The City portion of the project cost will be funded from the Local Road Fund 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations with this item. 

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



Policy Considerations: 
 

This paving project is in keeping with City Council Outcome II; ‘Troy adds value to properties 
through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues.’.  

 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council may move forward with the Special Assessment project by approving Standard 

Resolution #4.  Failure to pass the resolution will end the project at this time, unless another set of 
petitions is submitted, and Standard Resolutions 1, 2, 3, and 4 are then passed,  

 
 
NL/nl H:\SpecialAssess\Florence\CouncilPak Res 4.12.12.08.doc 



CITY OF TROY

Special Assessment Roll Number: 08.108.1 For defraying the expense of construction for:
Florence Street Bituminous (Asphalt) Paving

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify and report that the foregoing is a special assessment roll, and the assessment made by me
pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted on the 23rd day of March A.D.

2009 , for the purpose of paying that part of the cost which the Council decided should be  paid and borne by
special assessmentfor the purpose of Asphalt Paving of Florence Street

That in making such assessment I have, as near as may be and according to my judgement, conformed in
all things to the direction contained in the resolution of the Council herinbefore referred to, and the Charter of the City
relating to such assessments.

Dated at the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan on this 23rd day of March
A.D., 2009 .

Leger A. (Nino) Licari,          City Assessor

Advertised:

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing assesment roll was filed on the 23rd day of
March A.D., 2009 , and approved and confirmed by the Council of the City of Troy on the
23rd day of March A.D., 2009 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk

In the name of the People of the State of Michigan
To the Treasurer of the City of Troy, in the County of Oakland, Michigan.

You are hereby commanded to collect from each of the several persons assessed in the Special Assessment
Roll hereunto annexed, the amount of money assessed to and set opposite his name therein, said amount being payable in
10 annual installments due March 1, 2010
respectively, with interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum or such other rate of interest per annum which is not
in excess of 1% of the rate borne by bonds issued in anticipation of the collection of said special assessment roll from and
after March 1, 2010 .

And in case any named in said Roll shall neglect or refuse to pay his assessment upon demand, after the same
becomes due, you are hereby authorized to levy and collect the same by distress and sale of the goods and chattels of
such person, and return said Roll and Warrant, together with your doing thereon within sixty (60) days;  for so doing this
shall be your sufficient Warrant.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Troy, Michigan, this 23rd day of March
A.D., 2009 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MEETING TO REVIEW THE NECESSITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ASPHALT 
PAVING ON FLORENCE STREET IN SECTION 9, AND TO HEAR ANY AND ALL 
OBJECTIONS TO THE NECESSITY OF THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT AND SAID 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ASSESSED AGAINST SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
NO. 08.108.1 IN THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Council will meet at City Hall on the 23rd day of MARCH, 
2009 at 7:30 o'clock p.m., for the purpose of reviewing the necessity for the installation of 
Asphalt Paving on Florence Street in Section 9, Project No. 08.108.1, and of hearing any 
and all objections to the necessity of the public improvement and Special Assessment 
made in the matter of construction of the following described improvement: 
 
Installation of Asphalt Paving on Florence Street. 
 
The Assessment Roll is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public examination.  The 
Special Assessments therein contained have been assessed according to law against the 
parcels of land constituting Special Assessment District No. 08.108.1, which District is 
described as follows: 
 
T2N, RllE, Section 9 
 
88-20-09-226-005  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,483.01, 
88-20-09-226-006  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,483.01, 
88-20-09-226-007  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,580.78, 
88-20-09-226-009  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,345.26, 
88-20-09-226-017  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,096.34, 
88-20-09-226-018  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,655.64, 
88-20-09-231-015  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,103.76, 
88-20-09-231-016  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,483.01, 
88-20-09-231-017  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,724.51, 
88-20-09-232-007  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,906.36, 
88-20-09-232-008  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,906.36, 
88-20-09-232-009  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,906.36, 
88-20-09-233-001  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,724.51, 
88-20-09-233-002  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,826.94, 
88-20-09-233-004  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,775.72, 
88-20-09-233-005  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,775.72, 
88-20-09-233-021  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,103.76, 
88-20-09-233-022  The special assessment for your property is $ 5,416.06, 
88-20-09-233-023  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,724.51. 
88-20-09-233-024  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,826.94, 
88-20-09-233-025  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,292.50, 
88-20-09-233-026  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,258.95. 
 
The above assessments and all proceedings upon which they are based shall not be 
contestable, unless suit to contest the validity thereof is instituted within thirty (30) days 
after the date of confirmation of said Special Assessment Roll No. 08.108.1 
 



The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of 
the special assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of 
the special assessment roll if that special assessment was protested at the hearing held for 
the purpose of confirming the roll. 
 

 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



Parcel ID Name Addre
ss Street Frontage % of 

Total Yes No % Yes SAD $

88-20-09-226-005 Snow, Jonathan & Marianne 256 Florence 80.00 3.21 2,483.01
88-20-09-226-006 Carpenter, Gary 244 Florence 80.00 3.21 2,483.01
88-20-09-226-007 Sabha, Arya 224 Florence 83.15 3.33 2,580.78
88-20-09-226-009 Simpsom, Charles & Alexandra 130 Florence 140.00 5.61 2 5.61 4,345.26
88-20-09-226-017 Pierce, Gary & Deborah 200 Florence 131.98 5.29 2 5.29 4,096.34
88-20-09-226-018 Bartlett, Donald & Annmarie 150 Florence 150.00 6.02 2 6.02 4,655.64
88-20-09-231-015 Collier, Cavin 108 Florence 100.00 4.01 1  4.01 3,103.76
88-20-09-231-016 Iskander, Asm & Hosne 76 Florence 80.00 3.21 2 3.21 2,483.01
88-20-09-231-017 Maggard, Loretta 60 Florence 120.00 4.81 1 4.81 3,724.51
88-20-09-232-007 Katich, Matthew & Andrea 42 Florence 93.64 3.75 2  3.75 2,906.36
88-20-09-232-008 Zhao, Qinming & Zhang, Li 34 Florence 93.64 3.75 2,906.36
88-20-09-232-009 Bergin, Mark 26 Florence 93.64 3.75 2,906.36
88-20-09-233-001 Snow, Jonathan (Marianne?) 255 Florence 120.00 4.81 3,724.51
88-20-09-233-002 Fulcher, Timothy & Lisa 221 Florence 123.30 4.94 2 4.94 3,826.94
88-20-09-233-004 Girrbach, Brian 141 Florence 121.65 4.88 1 4.88 3,775.72
88-20-09-233-005 Lutes, Pamela 127 Florence 121.65 4.88 1 4.88 3,775.72
88-20-09-233-021 Diedrich, Norman 47 Florence 100.00 4.01 1 4.01 3,103.76
88-20-09-233-022 Sankovich, Perry 25 Florence 174.50 7.00 5,416.06
88-20-09-233-023 Murphy, Timothy & Nanci 99 Florence 120.00 4.81 2 4.81 3,724.51
88-20-09-233-024 Sobanski, Thomas 55 Florence 123.30 4.94 1 4.94 3,826.94
88-20-09-233-025 Ferrari, Wayne & Sandra 215 Florence 138.30 5.55 4,292.50
88-20-09-233-026 Porter, Vicki 149 Florence 105.00 4.21 3,258.95

2,493.75 100.00 61.17 77,400.00
 

31.03759
LF Yes 1,525.52 61.17
LF No 968.23 38.83  

Owners Yes 13.00 59.09
Owners No 9.00 40.91

$$ Yes 47,348.47 61.17
$$ No 30,051.53 38.83

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Florence Street Paving S.A.D # 08.108.1

S.A.D. Cost = $77,400.00
2,493.75 Lineal Feet @ $31.03759 / LF

Petition Analysis



88-20-09-226-005 88-20-09-226-006 88-20-09-226-007
SNOW, JONATHAN & MARIAN CARPENTER, GARY T SABHA, ARYA P
256 FLORENCE 244 FLORENCE 224 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2951 TROY         MI  48098-2951 TROY         MI 48098-2951

88-20-09-226-009 88-20-09-226-017 88-20-09-226-018
SIMPSON, CHARLES & ALEXA PIERCE, GARY & DEBORAH BARTLETT, DONALD & ANNM
130 FLORENCE 200 FLORENCE 150 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2950 TROY         MI  48098-2951 TROY         MI 48098-2950

88-20-09-231-015 88-20-09-231-016 88-20-09-231-017
COLLIER, CAVIN ISKANDER, ASM & HOSNE B MAGGARD TRUST, LORETTA
108 FLORENCE 76 FLORENCE 60 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2950 TROY         MI  48098-2924 TROY         MI 48098-2924

88-20-09-232-007 88-20-09-232-008 88-20-09-232-009
KATICH, MATTHEW T & ANDR ZHAO, QINGMING BERGIN, MARK T
42 FLORENCE 34 FLORENCE 26 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2924 TROY         MI  48098-2924 TROY         MI 48098-2924

88-20-09-233-001 88-20-09-233-002 88-20-09-233-004
SNOW, JONATHAN N FULCHER, TIMOTHY & LISA GIRRBACH, BRIAN
255 FLORENCE 221 FLORENCE 141 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2953 TROY         MI  48098-2953 TROY         MI 48098-2952

88-20-09-233-005 88-20-09-233-021 88-20-09-233-022
LUTES, PAMELA Z DIEDRICH, NORMAN J SANKOVICH, PERRY J
127 FLORENCE 47 FLORENCE 25 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2952 TROY         MI  48098-2923 TROY         MI 48098-2923

88-20-09-233-023 88-20-09-233-024 88-20-09-233-025
MURPHY, TIMOTHY T & NANC SOBANSKI, THOMAS FERRARI, WAYNE & SANDRA
99 FLORENCE 55 FLORENCE 215 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2923 TROY         MI  48098-2923 TROY         MI 48098-2953

88-20-09-233-026
PORTER, VICKI A
149 FLORENCE
TROY          MI 48098-2952
 



 

 
 
 
March 10, 2009 

 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief   
      

SUBJECT: Bid Waiver:  Motorola ATM Mapping Software for Fire Vehicles 
 

Background 

 The Fire Department installed ruggedized laptop computers in fire apparatus to retrieve location 
specific database information utilizing standard office applications; since there were no 
emergency response specific software programs commercially available.  

 The Fire Department and Information Technology Departments worked together to develop a 
combined mapping and database application suitable for fire apparatus. 

 Initial revisions of the software proved to be valuable to Fire Department operations, however, the 
need for additional functionality has been identified and new technologies have become available.  
As a result, it has become clear that the resources are not available within Information 
Technology to effectively maintain and enhance the application.  

 CLEMIS has installed the Motorola ATM mapping application with the Motorola Mobile Data 
Computers deployed for Police departments throughout Oakland County. 

 The Fire department has tested the ATM mapping application and found it to be suitable for the 
Fire apparatus laptop computers.  

 Utilizing the same mapping application allows for the establishment of one software standard, as 
well as the sharing of location data between fire and police mobile computers. 

 
Financial Considerations 

 Funds are available for this software in the Fire department operating supplies budget, Account # 
101.336.338.7740.115. 

 
Legal Considerations 

 Standard terms and conditions apply as noted on the attached documents. 
 

Policy Considerations 

 This project is consistent with City Council Outcome Statement I – enhance the health and safety of the 
community. 

 

Options 

 City management recommends formal bidding procedures be waived and twenty (20) licenses for 
ATM mapping software be purchased from Motorola, Inc. for an estimated total cost of 
$16,880.00.  

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business –Waiver – Motorola ATM Mapping SoftwareFinal.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03

















campbellld
Text Box
E-04



 

 
 
March 12, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Recently, a council member indicated interest in pursuing revisions to Chapter 28 Tree Ordinance.   
 At the March 2, 2009 City Council meeting, staff provided information addressing this issue.  City 

Council members requested additional information.  Attached please find: 
o Council memo submitted March 2, 2009 requesting input on desirable changes.  

(Attachment 1) 
o City Council resolution and agenda information from June 5, 2006 meeting regarding 

proposed changes to Chapter 28 Tree Ordinance and Landscape Design and Tree 
Preservation Standards.  (Attachment 2) 

o Chapter 28 Tree Ordinance and Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards.  
(Attachment 3) from April 3, 2006 study session.   

o Tree Ordinance examples: 
 City of Rochester Hills (Attachment 4) 
 City of Taylor (Attachment 5) 
 City of Novi (Attachment 6) 
 City of Mount Clemens (Attachment 7) 

 
Options: 
 
 Council can take no action.   
 Council can direct staff to draft revisions to the ordinance.   

 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



















































































































































































































































 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  March 17, 2009 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 

SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Ratification of Contract Extension– American 
  Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees    
  (AFSCME) 2009-2010 
 
 
Background: 
 Attached is a tentative agreement reached between the City of Troy and AFSCME that 

would extend all terms and conditions of the current collective bargaining agreement 
for one year. 

 The current collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and AFSCME 
expires June 30, 2009.   

 Negotiations with other bargaining units include the following:  Troy Police Officers 
Association (TPOA) for a contract that expired on June 30, 2008; and Troy Fire Staff 
Officers Association (TFSOA) for a contract that will expire on June 30, 2009. 

 The City and AFSCME have successfully negotiated the last three contracts using the 
Interest-Based Bargaining approach. 

 The AFSCME union has expressed a desire to assist the City in addressing the current 
financial and budget situation, as evidenced by their offer to extend the contract 
without further negotiations. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 The proposed agreement results in no wage increase for fiscal year 2009, thus there is 

no financial impact on the 2009-2010 budget. 
 The current collective bargaining agreement includes many of the cost saving 

measures that continue to be negotiated with other bargaining units, including a 
Retirement Health Savings (RHS) plan for new employees, elimination of Traditional 
Blue Cross insurance coverage, and a reduced employer contribution for new 
employees in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 

PES/bjm/ PS09M.023 

 

Agenda Item-Ratification of Contract Extension-AFSCME and City of Troy 2009-2010 
Page Two 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
The AFSCME membership has agreed to the extension of the contract without further 
negotiation proceedings. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy in cooperating with employees and employee 

representatives on finding creative means to address financial issues.  (Outcome III). 
 
Options: 
 City management supports and recommends approval of the tentative agreement for a 

one-year contract extension between the City of Troy and AFSCME for 2009-2010. 
 
 





 

 
 March 18, 2009 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration   
   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Implementation of Revenue Enhancements 
 
Background: 
 

 City Council instructed staff to develop alternative revenue sources and expenditure reductions 
that will continue to provide the highest level of service within means that do not overburden 
residents and resources. 

 Staff developed a list of suggested revenue enhancements that provide service enhancements 
with costs that are to be levied toward direct users of the services. 

 City Council studied the proposed revenue enhancements and expenditure reductions and 
adopted the attached list on February 16, 2009 via resolution #2009-02-45. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 

 Staff prepared the necessary revisions to applicable ordinances and proposes these revisions in 
order to implement fee adjustments in line with the list of revenue enhancements that City Council 
approved on February 16, 2009. 

 Staff identified a few other areas where the current fee structure required updating.   

 Below is a list of the ordinance revisions and fee adjustments included in this agenda item.  Each 
item has its own motion so that Council can consider the items individually:  

 
  Notary Service and Dog License Fees and Bonds (Chapter 60) 
  Planning Department Fees (Chapter 60) 
  Fire Department Fees and Bonds (Chapter 60) 
  Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement (Chapter 82A) 
  Building Occupancy Permits for Fire Prevention (Chapter 93) 
  Building Department Fees (Established by City Council Resolution, not City Code) 
  
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2009\03.23.09 – Implementation of Revenue Enhancements 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07







TLB. 2009.03.23 Chapter 60 Dogs and Notary.doc 

 
 
Date March 19, 2009 

 
TO: Mayor and City Council 

 
FROM: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

SUBJECT: Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required– Notary Service and Dog Licenses 
  
Background: 
 
 Notary non-resident charges as referenced in Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds 

Required, are not sufficiently addressed in relation to the time demands on 
staffing. Additionally, it is the intent of City Management to similarly calculate 
notary acts for residents and non-residents with the exception of the first notary 
act being provided for residents at no charge. 

 The State Statute regarding notaries stipulates charges to be no more than 
$10.00 per notary act. 

 It is requested that the charge for Notary Service be calculated as follows: 
• Residents: 

o First notary act – no charge 
o Subsequent notary acts - $10.00 per notary act 

• Non-residents - $10.00 per notary act. 
  
 Dogs (Chapter 90) 

Fees for dogs (Chapter 90) as referenced in Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds 
Required provide for the licensing of dogs which have been spayed or neutered 
under the ownership of senior citizen (age 62+) residents to be discounted as 
much as 75% or $3.00 annually. 

 It is requested that the maximum discount for any dog be no more than 50% of 
the licensing fee or $6.00 annually. 

 
Financial Consideration: 
 
 The incurred costs, labor and supplies, will be off-set by fee received.

 
Legal Consideration: 
 
 There is no legal consideration associated with this item. 

 
Policy Consideration: 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  



TLB. 2009.03.23 Chapter 60 Dogs and Notary.doc 

 There is no policy consideration associated with this item. 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the proposed amendments. 

City Council can deny the proposed amendments. 
City Council can direct City staff to modify the proposed amendments. 
 

Attachment: 
 
 Chapter 60 – Fee and Bonds Required proposed amendments  

 
 



G:City Code\Drafts\Chapter 60\Dogs and Notary Fee Increase 03 16 09.doc 1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
60.04 Fee Schedule. (DOGS and NOTARY EXCERPT) 
 
Dogs (Chapter 90) 
Monthly License   
Licenses shall be issued for the unexpired portion of rabies vaccination (90.60.40) 
 Each spayed or neutered dog $    0.50 
 Each un-spayed or un-neutered dog $    1.00 
 Senior Citizen (Age 62+) $    0.50 
 Leader/Hearing/Service Dog No Charge 
Duplicate/Replacement Tag  $    3.00 
 
If a person makes application for a dog license that is not timely pursuant to Section 17 
of Chapter 90, then a late charge of $15.00 will be assessed. 
 
Pound Fees 
1st Offense $  25.00 
Each Additional Offense $  50.00 
Current license fees and vaccination fees may also be due if not 
up to date  
License Fee Refund for Dogs which become deceased after license issuance will be 
prorated on complete year units and will be refunded to the dog owner as originally 
assessed/calculated. 
(Rev. 12-15-03) 
 
NOTARY SERVICE 
Required as part of official City business No Charge 
Fee per Notary Act $10.00 
Troy Resident or Troy Property Owner:   
 First Notary Act No Charge 
 Subsequent Notary Act/s (per Notary Act) $10.00 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 



G:City Code\Drafts\Chapter 60\Dogs and Notary Fee Increase 03 16 09.doc 2 

be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
     
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
DATE: March 18, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Chapter 60 
 
 
Background: 

 

 Article 40.20.12 of the Zoning Ordinance gives the Planning Commission authority to grant 
deviations from the parking standards. 
 

 The Planning Department is receiving an increasing number of such requests that are not 
included as part of a site plan review or special use request application. 
 

 The Planning Department established a fee schedule for Planning Department activities.  The 
established Planning Department Fee Schedule does not have a fee for this type of request. 

 

 The proposed fee will cover the cost to review these applications. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 The proposed fee reimburses the City of Troy for costs associated with the review of the 
application, including the Planning Commission public meeting. 
 

 The Development Approval/Permit Process prepared by Zucker Systems recommended that 
the City consider fee increases as necessary to meet suggested performance standards and 
technology improvements. 

 
 

Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



2 
 

Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 Special Council meeting: 
 
I. Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community. 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 

quality of life venues. 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 

changing and interconnected world. 
 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the proposed amendment to Chapter 60 as submitted or with 
conditions. 

 

 City Council can deny the proposed amendment to Chapter 60. 
 

 City Management recommends approval of the proposed amendments to Chapter 60. 
   

 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Proposed amendment to Chapter 60 Fees and Bonds Required. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Planning Fees 
 
G:\Planning Fees\CC Memo Chapter 60 Amendment 03 23 09.docx 
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 

Planning Department Fees (Chapter 39) 
Preliminary Site Plan Review (Deviation from Parking Space 
Requirements ONLY): 

Application fee 
 

Escrow fees 

 
 
$500.00 
 
$1,500.00 

 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 



2 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ______. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
     
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk 
 
 
 
G:\Planning Fees\Chapter 60 Planning Fee Increase 03 16 09.doc 



 
 
 
March 12, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David J. Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief  
 
SUBJECT: Modification to Chapter 60 – Fees & Bonds Required – Fire Dept. 
 
 
Background: 
 The purpose for fire department fees is to help cover associated costs of plan reviews, 

inspections, and permit processing as established by the Fire Prevention Ordinance, 
Troy City Code Chapter 93, and apparatus and equipment costs. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 Changing applicable fees related to the permitting process will more accurately cover 

associated personnel and administrative costs. 

 Changing applicable fees related to apparatus cost recovery will reflect the fully calculated 
rate as adopted by the Oakland County Mutual Aid Association. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 Permits and associated fees comply with the permitting requirements of Chapter 93. 
 Recovery charges comply with the cost recovery requirements of Chapter 60 and the 

Oakland County Mutual Aid Association. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government. 
 
Options 
 Recommend adoption of the proposed amendments to Chapter 60 of the Troy City 

Code. 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

 
Prepared by David Roberts, Asst. Fire Chief 
G:\Data\09-803\My Documents\Word\Permit Fees Agenda Item memo.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 60.04, Fee Schedule shall be amended to incorporate the following:   

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES (Chapter 93) 

 
Permit Fee: Special Event, Exhibit, Craft, Trade Show  $60.00 $70.00 
Permit Fee: public display and the retail sale of fireworks  $125.00 
 
Hazardous Material Permit Fees – Based on Quantity & Form: 
0-1,000 Lbs; 0-100 Cu. Ft.; 0-330 Gals.    $175.00  $250.00 
1,001-20,000 Lbs; 101-6,000 Cu. Ft.; 331-990 Gals.  $350.00  $500.00 
20,001+ Lbs; 6,001+ Cu. Ft.; 991+ Gals.    $700.00  $1000.00 
 
Permit fee covers initial plan review and two inspections.  
Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of the same system shall apply to each 
inspector performing the re-inspection. 
 
Sprinkler Systems – Risers & Sprinkler Heads: 

1-10 Heads         $90.00  
11-20 1-20 Heads        $125.00 
21-50 Heads         $150.00 
51-100 Heads       $210.00 $225.00 
101-200 Heads        $300.00 
201-300 Heads       $390.00 $400.00 
301-400 Heads       $510.00 $550.00 
401-500 Heads        $600.00 
501 + Heads        $660.00 $675.00* 
*Plus $0.60 $0.75 per head over 500 
Standpipes        $60.00 $70.00** 
**Base fee plus $7.00 $10.00 per hose connection 
Fire Pump         $125.00 
Dry or Wet Chemical Fire Suppression System – Per System  $125.00  
Each additional system reviewed at the same time  $60.00 $70.00 
Total Flooding Agent Extinguishing System   $125.00 $250.00*** 



 

***Plus appropriate Detection System Fee. 
***Includes associated alarm devices 
Alterations, additions, or modifications to an existing system $45.00  $70.00 
Permit Fees: Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of 
the same system       $60.00 $70.00 
 
Fire Alarm and Detection Systems / and Devices: 
Minimum Permit Fee       $70.00 
Control Panel       $60.00 $70.00 
Central Station Connection      $30.00 $45.00 
Fire First Initiating Device (Smoke Detector, Heat Detector, etc.)$20.00 $25.00 
Each Additional Initiating or Auxiliary Control Device  $7.00  $10.00 
First Initiating Auxiliary Control Device (Control Switch, Relay, etc.) $20.00 

$25.00 
Each Additional Auxiliary Control Device    $7.00  $10.00 
First Audio/Visual Device (Horn, Speaker, Bell, Strobe, etc.) $20.00 $25.00 
Each Additional Audio/Visual Device    $7.00  $10.00 
First Communication Device (Firefighter Phone, etc.)  $20.00 $25.00 
Each Additional Communication Device    $7.00  $10.00 
 
Exception: One and two-family residential alarm systems must  
Meet the requirements of the Troy Building Department. 
 
Other System or Device / Item     $25.00  $70.00 
 
Additional Fees 

Each Re-inspection: During Normal Working Hours  $60.00 $70.00 ea. 
per hour 

Each Re-inspection: During Non-working hours   $90.00 $105.00 per 
hour each 

with a minimum assessment of three hours per person 
 

Occupancy Permit Fee      $100.00 
 
Recovery Charges Troy Fire Department: Apparatus, Equipment and 

Personnel Cost 

(Does not include personnel costs) 
Apparatus   Charges for 1st Hour   Charges for Subsequent Hour 
  Not Including Personnel      Not Including Personnel 

   Charges for Each Hour 
   Or Portion Thereof 

Engine   $441.00 $446.00   $294.00 
Grass Truck   $221.00 $47.00   $110.00 
Ladder Truck   $882.00 $828.00   $725.00 
Pumper-Ladder  $448.00     



 

Air Tender   $294.00 $146.00   $147.00 
Mobile Command  $294.00 $400.00   $147.00  
Hazmat   $294.00    $147.00 
Field Comm. Unit  $216.00 
Rescue Truck  $347.00 
Staff Vehicle   $25.00 $38.00      
 
Personnel 

The cost of firefighters and officers are to be commensurate  with their pay rate, 
fringe benefits and time and one half overtime rate where applicable. 
 
Expendable Items 

Replacement cost for reasonable and customary items necessary in firefighting, 
hazmat, and EMS operations may be recovered. Examples of such items that 
can be recovered are extinguishing agents (Foam, AFFF), absorbent materials, 
chemical suits, etc.  
 
Non-Retrievable Items 

Items that are lost, stolen, or destroyed will be charged replacement value. 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
Section 6. Effective Date 



 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 60.04, Fee Schedule shall be amended to incorporate the following:   

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES (Chapter 93) 

 
Permit Fee: Special Event, Exhibit, Craft, Trade Show   $70.00 
Permit Fee: public display and the retail sale of fireworks  $125.00 
 
Hazardous Material Permit Fees – Based on Quantity & Form: 
0-1,000 Lbs; 0-100 Cu. Ft.; 0-330 Gals.     $250.00 
1,001-20,000 Lbs; 101-6,000 Cu. Ft.; 331-990 Gals.   $500.00 
20,001+ Lbs; 6001+ Cu. Ft.; 991+ Gals.     $1,000.00 
 
Permit fee covers initial plan review and two inspections.  
 
Sprinkler Systems – Risers & Sprinkler Heads: 

1-20 Heads         $125.00 
21-50 Heads         $150.00 
51-100 Heads        $225.00 
101-200 Heads        $300.00 
201-300 Heads        $400.00 
301-400 Heads        $550.00 
401-500 Heads        $600.00 
501 + Heads         $675.00* 
*Plus $0.75 per head over 500 
Standpipes         $70.00** 
**Base fee plus $10.00 per hose connection 
Fire Pump         $125.00 
Dry or Wet Chemical Fire Suppression System    $125.00  
Each additional system reviewed at the same time   $70.00 
Total Flooding Agent Extinguishing System    $250.00*** 
***Includes associated alarm devices 
Alterations, additions, or modifications to an existing system  $70.00 
Subsequent plan reviews and inspections of the same system $70.00 



 

 
Fire Alarm and Detection Systems and Devices: 

Minimum Permit Fee       $70.00 
Control Panel        $70.00 
Central Station Connection       $45.00 
First Initiating Device (Smoke Detector, Heat Detector, etc.)  $25.00 
Each Additional Initiating Device      $10.00 
First Initiating Auxiliary Control Device (Control Switch, Relay, etc.) $25.00 
Each Additional Auxiliary Control Device     $10.00 
First Audio/Visual Device (Horn, Speaker, Bell, Strobe, etc.)  $25.00 
Each Additional Audio/Visual Device     $10.00 
First Communication Device (Firefighter Phone, etc.)   $25.00 
Each Additional Communication Device     $10.00 
 
Exception: One and two-family residential alarm systems must  
Meet the requirements of the Troy Building Department. 
 
Other System or Device / Item      $70.00 
 
Additional Fees 

Each Re-inspection: During Normal Working Hours  $70.00 per hour 
Each Re-inspection: During Non-working hours   $105.00 per hour  
with a minimum assessment of three hours per person 
 

Occupancy Permit Fee       $100.00 
 
Recovery Charges Troy Fire Department:  
 
Apparatus, Equipment and Personnel Cost 
(Does not include personnel costs) 
 
Apparatus               Charges for Each Hour or Portion Thereof 

Engine      $446.00 
Grass Truck      $47.00 
Ladder Truck      $828.00 
Pumper-Ladder     $448.00 
Air Tender      $146.00 
Mobile Command     $400.00 
Field Comm. Unit     $216.00 
Rescue Truck     $347.00 
Staff Vehicle      $38.00 
 
Personnel 
The cost of firefighters and officers are to be commensurate  with their pay rate, 
fringe benefits and overtime rate where applicable. 
 



 

Expendable Items 
Replacement cost for reasonable and customary items necessary in firefighting, 
hazmat, and EMS operations may be recovered. Examples of such items that 
can be recovered are extinguishing agents (Foam, AFFF), absorbent materials, 
chemical suits, etc.  
 
Non-Retrievable Items 
Items that are lost, stolen, or destroyed will be charged replacement value. 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 



 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



































 
March 4, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David J. Roberts, Assistant Fire Chief  
 
SUBJECT: Modification to Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention – Occupancy Permit 

Ordinance 
 
Background: 
 The purpose for business occupancy permits is to ensure potential new occupants in 

existing commercial and industrial occupancies an orderly and informative process by 
which to occupy without violating the requirements of the Fire Prevention Ordinance, 
Troy City Code Chapter 93, as addressed in a memo dated January 16, 2009. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 Anticipate enforcement of the ordinance with existing Fire Prevention staff. 

 A one-time permit fee of $100.00 per occupancy permit would yield a source of revenue to 
help address the City’s current economic situation and help offset personnel costs. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 Revising Chapter 93 to adopt an occupancy permit ordinance coincides with other such 

ordinances enforced by the Fire Prevention Division.  
 As previously indicated, a one-time business occupancy permit and fee will help alleviate 

potential hazards as a result of unregulated business occupancies; provide a customer-
friendly relationship with new occupancies; and avoid costly after-the-fact remedies and 
legal proceedings.  

 Code amendments / modifications are indicated by red strike-through text and are 
replaced with red/underlined text or are addressed elsewhere in the code. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 Enhance the health and safety of the community.  
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government. 
 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
 
Options 
 Recommend adoption of the proposed occupancy permit ordinance as part of Chapter 

93 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Reviewed and approved as to legality: 
 
_____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

 
Prepared by David Roberts, Asst. Fire Chief 
G:\Data\09-803\My Documents\Word\Occupancy Permit Agenda Item Memo.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 93 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 93, 
Fire Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 105, Permits shall be amended to incorporate the following:   

 
105.1.2 Types of permits. There shall be three types of permits as follows: 

1. Operational permit. An operational permit allows the applicant to conduct an 

operation or a business for which a permit is required by Section 105.6 for either: 

1.1. A prescribed period. 

1.2. Until renewed or revoked. 

2. Construction permit. A construction permit allows the applicant to install or 

modify systems and equipment for which a permit is required by Section 105.7. 

3. Occupancy permit. An occupancy permit allows the applicant to occupy existing 

premises for the purpose of conducting or operating a business for which a permit is 

required by Section 105.8. 

 

105.8 Required occupancy permit. The fire code official is authorized to issue an 

occupancy permit for a business as set forth in Section 105.8.1 through 105.8.5. 

 

105.8.1 Use group. An occupancy permit is required for Use Groups A, B, F, M and S where 

such use will occupy 1,500 square feet or greater in area, and Use Group H of any size. 

 

 Exception: 

Multiple DBAs or LLCs in a single occupancy of less than 1,500 square feet in area. 

 

105.8.2 Inventory statement. An inventory statement for the intended business shall be 

provided to the fire code official prior to the issuance of the occupancy permit revealing 

product or commodity to be stored, used, or produced, and any associated documentation as 

may be required by the code official. 

105.8.2.1 Hazardous Materials Inventory Statement. Where required by the fire code 

official, each application for a permit shall include a Hazardous Materials Inventory 

Statement (HMIS) in accordance with Section 2701.5.2. 

 

105.8.3 Permit application. An occupancy permit application shall be filed with the fire 

code official prior to occupancy. The fire code official shall review the application, inventory 

statement(s), and any associated documentation, and conduct any necessary inspections and 

meetings before an occupancy permit is issued. 



 

105.8.4 Site and building preparation. As part of the occupancy permit, the intended 

occupancy shall meet the following requirements: 

1) The building and any associated fire protection and life safety features shall 

comply with the requirements of this code. 

2) Fire apparatus access roads and fire lanes shall be designated and posted in 

accordance with Section 503. 

3) An address shall be posted in compliance with Troy City Code Chapter 2. 

4) A building and/or tenant floor plan shall be provided to the fire code official in an 

approved format. 

5) A key box, as required by the fire code official, shall be installed in accordance 

with Section 506. 

 

105.8.5 Notification of changes. Changes in occupancy or use shall be made to, and 

approved by the fire code official before such changes occur. 

 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 



 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 93 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 93, 
Fire Prevention, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 105, Permits shall be amended to incorporate the following:   

 
105.1.2 Types of permits. There shall be two three types of permits as follows: 

1. Operational permit. An operational permit allows the applicant to conduct an 

operation or a business for which a permit is required by Section 105.6 for either: 

1.1. A prescribed period. 

1.2. Until renewed or revoked. 

2. Construction permit. A construction permit allows the applicant to install or 

modify systems and equipment for which a permit is required by Section 105.7. 

3. Occupancy permit. An occupancy permit allows the applicant to occupy existing 

premises for the purpose of conducting or operating a business for which a permit is 

required by Section 105.8. 

 

105.8 Required occupancy permit. The fire code official is authorized to issue an 

occupancy permit for a business as set forth in Section 105.8.1 through 105.8.5. 

 

105.8.1 Use group. An occupancy permit is required for Use Groups A, B, F, M and S where 

such use will occupy 1,500 square feet or greater in area, and Use Group H of any size. 

 

 Exception: 

Multiple DBAs or LLCs in a single occupancy of less than 1,500 square feet in area. 

 

105.8.2 Inventory statement. An inventory statement for the intended business shall be 

provided to the fire code official prior to the issuance of the occupancy permit revealing 

product or commodity to be stored, used, or produced, and any associated documentation as 

may be required by the code official. 

105.8.2.1 Hazardous Materials Inventory Statement. Where required by the fire code 

official, each application for a permit shall include a Hazardous Materials Inventory 

Statement (HMIS) in accordance with Section 2701.5.2. 

 

105.8.3 Permit application. An occupancy permit application shall be filed with the fire 

code official prior to occupancy. The fire code official shall review the application, inventory 

statement(s), and any associated documentation, and conduct any necessary inspections and 

meetings before an occupancy permit is issued. 



 

105.8.4 Site and building preparation. As part of the occupancy permit, the intended 

occupancy shall meet the following requirements: 

1) The building and any associated fire protection and life safety features shall 

comply with the requirements of this code. 

2) Fire apparatus access roads and fire lanes shall be designated and posted in 

accordance with Section 503. 

3) An address shall be posted in compliance with Troy City Code Chapter 2. 

4) A building and/or tenant floor plan shall be provided to the fire code official in an 

approved format. 

5) A key box, as required by the fire code official, shall be installed in accordance 

with Section 506. 

 

105.8.5 Notification of changes. Changes in occupancy or use shall be made to, and 

approved by the fire code official before such changes occur. 

 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 



 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 
DATE:    March 17, 2009 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Revisions to Building DepartmentFees 
     
Background: 
 
 As part of the revenue enhancement program City Council directed staff to increase fees 

collected as part of the permitting process. 
 We are proposing to raise the plan review fees from the current level of .0005 of the construction 

cost to .001 of the construction cost. 
 We anticipate that this change will result in an additional $50,000 in revenue annually. 
 We propose these changes to go into effect beginning April 1, 2009. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Raising permit and inspection fees was part of the Council resolution on revenue enhancement. 
 The increase in the fees will generate approximately $50,000 in additional revenue annually. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council can set building permit fees in accordance with Public Act 230 of 1972. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy enhances the health and safety of the community (Outcome I) 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council can approve the changes to the Plan Review Fees 
 City Council can disapprove the changes the Plan Review Fees 
 City Council can approve modified changes the Plan Review Fees 
 
 
 
MSS Fee Changes/Plan Review 3-23-09 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

  
 



Revised 04-1-2008 1

CITY OF TROY 
BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

For Applications Submitted after 4-01-2008  
 
VALUATION OF WORK 
 
Under $1,000 ---------------------------------------------------- $35.00 
 
$1,000.00 to $10,000.00 ------------------------------------ $35.00 Plus $20.00  

 for each additional $1,000 or part 
thereof over $1,001 

 
$10,001.00 to $1,000,000.00  $215.00 Plus $10.00 for each 

additional $1,000 or part thereof 
over $10,001 

 
$1,000,001.00 and Over  $10,115.00 Plus $7.00 for each 

additional $1,000 or part thereof 
over $1,000,001.00 

PLAN REVIEW FEES ON CONSTRUCTION  
 
Valued over $5,000.00 --------------------------------------- .0005.001  of valuation  
 $30.00 Minimum at submittal 
 
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY ------------------------- 5% of Building Permit Fee 
 
DEMOLITION PERMITS 
 
Industrial and Commercial ----------------------------------- $100.00 
Residential Dwellings ----------------------------------------- $50.00 
Sheds, Garages and Barns --------------------------------- $30.00 
Each additional accessory structure 
on the same site ------------------------------------------------ $10.00 
 
STRUCTURAL CONSULTANT FEE 
 
Does not apply to one and two-family   Approximate Charge $250.00 on 
Residence.  Fee based on an hourly 
Rate billed by the City’s Consultant. $50,000 structure 
 
GRADE AND DRAINAGE FEE 
 
Residential -------------------------------------------------------  $50.00 
All other Developments and Site Plan Review $70.00 first acre - $15.00 each   
 additional acre 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 2, 2009, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Council Member Broomfield gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming   
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak  

 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) A legislative update was received from State Representative Marty Knollenberg.  
b) Portia Fields-Anderson presented the Michigan Recreation and Park Association 

Recreation Leadership Award to Carla Vaughan, Recreation Supervisor of the City of 
Troy.  

c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Steve Vandette, City Engineer and Jennifer Lawson, 
Environmental Specialist accepted a Certificate of Appreciation from Clinton River 
Watershed Council for Continued Support and Membership. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Michigan NextEnergy Exemptions 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 

 
Resolution #2009-03-061 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS the Michigan NextEnergy Exemption of 
Alternative Energy Personal Property located at 1100 W. Maple, and 1857 Technology Drive, 
Troy, MI, as certified by the City Assessor, in an amount not to exceed $1,970,456.31, a copy 

of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution and attachments to the Michigan NextEnergy Authority at 300 
N. Washington Square, Lansing, MI 48913. 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 2 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

C-2 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM 

 
The named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public Hearings 
regarding alleged violations. All violations are uncontested and have been adjudicated at the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC). Therefore, the following licensees have waived 
their right to a public hearing: 
 

a) Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
  Address: 1981 W. South Blvd., 48098 
  License No.: SDM (78430-2008)  

 
b) Name:  Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 

  Address: 2971 W. Maple Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD/SDM (10077-2008 SS)  
 
 c) Name:  7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 

  Address: 1650 Crooks Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD (18175-2007 SS); SDM (14683-2007)  
 

 d) Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 
  Address: 2045 W. South Boulevard, 48098 
  License No.: SDM (0815-2008)  

 
 e) Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 

  Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (73139-2007)  

 
f) Name: MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 

  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDD (134567-2008 SS); SDM (134568-2008)  
 

g) Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maple Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (172382-2008) 

 

a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-062 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy:  
 

  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 3 - 

 Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid #2731) 
  Address: 1981 W. South Blvd., 48098 
  License No.: SDM (78430-2008)  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had prior violations dated: June 19, 2003 - SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); February 28, 2002 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, HAS 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 78430-2008 in the name of Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. in the City of Troy), to 
have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or 

TAMS trained, and RECOGNIZES that recent training has taken place and that the licensee 

has PROVIDED PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 4 - 

b) Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-063 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy (dba: Rite Aid #4305) 
  Address: 2971 W. Maple Road, 48084 

  License No.: SDD/SDM (10077-2008 SS)  
 

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on October 10, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, The licensee has had prior violations dated: September 25, 2001 - SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); October 27, 1999 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); June 25, 
1992 - SALE TO MINOR; February 6, 1992 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 4, 
1991 – SALE TO MINOR; August 2, 1991 – SALE TO MINOR; October 26, 1989 – SALE TO 
MINOR (Compliance Test); March 3, 1989 – SALE TO MINOR (Controlled Buy); August 22, 1981 
– SALE TO MINOR; August 22, 1981 – SALE TO MINOR; and  
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD/SDM 
License Number 10077-2008 SS in the name of Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy in the City of 
Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor 

TIPS or TAMS trained, and RECOGNIZES that recent training has taken place and that the 

licensee has PROVIDED PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 5 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

c) 7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-064 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 
  Name:  7-Eleven, Inc. (dba: 7-Eleven) 

  Address: 1650 Crooks Road, 48084 
  License No.: SDD (18175-2007 SS); SDM (14683-2007)  

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on February 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: February 11, 2006 – SALE TO 
MINOR (LCC Investigation); June 25, 2002 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); October 
23, 1987 - SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); November 24, 1985 – SALE TO 
INTOXICATED PERSON; February 26, 1983 – SALE AFTER HOURS; September 26, 1981 – 
SALE TO MINOR; April 17, 1981 – SALE TO MINOR; December 22, 1980 – SALE TO MINOR; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 18175-2007 SS & SDM License Number 14683-2007in the name of 7-Eleven, 
Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to sell 

alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy 
Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

d) Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-065 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 
  Name:  Arbor Drugs, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8162) 

  Address: 2045 W. South Boulevard, 48098 
 License No.: SDM (0815-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: August 23, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); May 10, 2008 – MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 7 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 0815-2008 in the name of Arbor Drugs, Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, 

and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

e) ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-066 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
    
  Name:  ADI Realty, Inc. (dba: CVS Pharmacy #8242) 

  Address: 4963 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDM (73139-2007)  

  
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (DPU) (Compliance Test) on February 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: May 3, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); July 25, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 73139-2007 in the name of ADI Realty, Inc. in the City of Troy), to have all its 
management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, 

and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

f) MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-067 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 

 
 Name: MK2, LLC (dba: Lucky’s Market) 

  Address: 4835 John R, 48085 
 License No.: SDD (134567-2008 SS); SDM (134568-2008) 
  

WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 21, 2008;  
 
WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: June 22, 2006 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDD 
License Number 134567-2008 SS and SDM License Number 134568-2008 in the name of 
MK2, LLC in the City of Troy), to have all its management and employees that are permitted to 

sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy 
Police Department within 90 days; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

g) K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
 
Resolution #2009-03-068 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The following liquor licensee operates within the City of Troy: 
 

 Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: Big K-Mart No. 4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maple Road, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (172382-2008) 

 
WHEREAS, The licensee has entered into a contract with the City of Troy, where the licensee 
authorizes the Troy City Council to review the licensee’s violations of the laws and regulations 
governing the sale of alcoholic liquor, and determine the appropriate course of action for any 
such violation that is allowed under Michigan law;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that the licensee has been charged with 
the following violation of the laws and regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor:  
 

 SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on December 30, 2008;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, The City provided notice that the charges against the licensee would be reviewed 
and Council would determine if any action should be taken against the licensee at a Public 
Hearing, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated; August 23, 2007 – SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test); June 30, 2004 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); May 17, 2001 – 
MLCC SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); July 25, 2000 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance 
Test); October 28, 1998 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); September 22, 1988 – SALE 
TO MINOR (Compliance Test); November 21, 1986 – SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Licensee was given the opportunity to review these cited infractions, and the 
opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the presence of this 
City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 11, 2009;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council, after the public hearing, has 

DETERMINED that the licensee did commit the above referenced violation of the laws and 
regulations governing the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUIRES the licensee (SDM 
License Number 172382-2008 in the name of K-Mart Corporation in the City of Troy), to have 
all its management and employees that are permitted to sell alcoholic liquor TIPS or TAMS 

trained, and to PROVIDE PROOF of this training to the Troy Police Department within 90 days; 
and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That notice of the above referenced violation SHALL BE 

PUBLISHED in a local newspaper of general circulation; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission for inclusion in the licensee’s file. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:51 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:00 PM. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Paul Beck Margaret McLand David Diener Marvin Reinhardt 
Gary McGillivray, County Commissioner-District 24 James Savage 
Audre Zembrzuski   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 11 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-8 City Manager Resignation 
 
Resolution #2009-03-069 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the resignation of City Manager, Phillip 
L. Nelson, with regret effective March 31, 2009. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Board of 

Review b) City Council Appointments: Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees and Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust and Liquor Advisory 

Committee 

 

a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2009-03-070 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
Borys Potapenko Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 12 - 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust  

Appointed by Council 

 
David Eisenbacher - City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2009 

 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council ( 7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2010 

 

Vote on Resolution to Separate the Vote for E-1 b City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2009-03-071 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES the vote for E-1 City Council 
Appointments to the Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Plan & Trust and the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution to Appoint Council Member to Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 

 
Resolution #2009-03-072 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  

 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees &  

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust  

Appointed by Council 

 
David Eisenbacher - City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2009 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution to Appoint Member to the Liquor Advisory Committee 

 
Resolution #2009-03-073 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 13 - 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council ( 7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2010 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None Scheduled (b) City Council Nominations: Historic District 

Study Committee  

 

a) Mayoral Nominations – None Scheduled  
 

b) City Council Nominations – No appointment  
 

E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical Services  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The Police and Fire departments have always maintained a contract for 
emergency medical responder and ambulance service as one of the critical services to the 
community;  
 
WHEREAS, Since 2003 Alliance Mobile Health, our current contactor is the only provider in the 
Detroit area that meets the professional service standards of the Commission on Accreditation 
of Ambulance Services; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and Alliance Mobile Health have a vested interest in continuing a 
mutually beneficial relationship and request to negotiate new contract pricing, terms and 
conditions;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to negotiate new contract pricing, terms 
and conditions with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to extend the existing Medical First 
Responder Program, and the final contract will be submitted to Troy City Council for final 
review and approval.  
 

Resolution to Amend Resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency 
Medical Services 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate 

Contract for Emergency Medical Services by STRIKING “review and approval” and 

INSERTING “determination”. 

 

Vote on Resolution to Accept Council Member Fleming’s Request to Abstain 

 
Resolution #2009-03-074 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS Council Member Fleming’s request to 
abstain from voting on resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency 
Medical Services. 

 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote Resolution to Amend Resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for 
Emergency Medical Services 
 
Resolution #2009-03-075 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate 

Contract for Emergency Medical Services by STRIKING “review and approval” and 

INSERTING “determination”. 

 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None 
Abstain: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution E-3 Authorization to Negotiate Contract for Emergency Medical 

Services as Amended 
 
Resolution #2009-03-076 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, The Police and Fire departments have always maintained a contract for 
emergency medical responder and ambulance service as one of the critical services to the 
community;  
 
WHEREAS, Since 2003 Alliance Mobile Health, our current contactor is the only provider in the 
Detroit area that meets the professional service standards of the Commission on Accreditation 
of Ambulance Services; and  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy and Alliance Mobile Health have a vested interest in continuing a 
mutually beneficial relationship and request to negotiate new contract pricing, terms and 
conditions;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 

procedures and hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to negotiate new contract pricing, terms 
and conditions with Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, to extend the existing Medical First 
Responder Program, and the final contract will be submitted to Troy City Council for final 
determination. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Kerwin, Schilling  
No: None 
Abstain: Fleming  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 PEG Channel Protection in Response to FCC Public Notice DA 09-203 (CSR-8126, 

CSR-8127, CSR-8128, MB Docket No. 0913)  
 
Resolution #2009-03-077 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Clerk to distribute 
copies of this letter in support of preserving the quality and financial viability of Public, 
Education and Government (PEG) channels to our elected representatives in Washington and 

Lansing and hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney to file this letter on our behalf in 
accordance with the requirements set forth by the FCC Public Notice DA 09-203. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-5 Possible Tree Ordinance Revisions - No Action Taken  
 

E-6 Cost Sharing Agreement for Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility 

Professional Engineering and Design Services 
 
Resolution #2009-03-078 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the City of Birmingham, which equally divides the cost of Professional 
Engineering and Design Services for the Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Facility; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Interlocal Service Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 16 - 

Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Kerwin, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

E-7 Confirmation of Interim Appointment; Deputy Police Chief Gary Mayer as Acting 

Police Chief 
 
Resolution #2009-03-079 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of Deputy Chief Gary 
Mayer as Acting Police Chief of the City of Troy as requested by the City Manager. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-03-080 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-2  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of February 16, 2009 and the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of 
February 18, 2009 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 17 - 

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Emergency Radio P25 Equipment Enhancement     
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase the emergency 
radio equipment enhancement for the Police department from M/A-Com, Inc (Tyco Electronics) 
of Lynchburg, VA, through an Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an 
estimated total cost of $10,154.40. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 09-2 – 2008-09 

Sanitary Sewer Extensions     
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 09-2, 2008-09 Sanitary 
Sewer Extensions to Superior Excavating Inc., P.O. Box 4290, Auburn Hills MI 48321 at an 
estimated total cost of $639,200.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES such 
additional work in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the sewer benefit fee 
for the 2008-09 Sanitary Sewer Extensions, as provided for in Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code 
and revised by Resolution #2005-04-189, to be $23,088.87 based on the total cost of the sewer 
extension, including engineering, inspection, testing and contingency, divided by 32 sewer 
leads to existing lots.  
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Turfgrass Chemical Products – City Golf Courses     
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase seasonal 
requirements of chemicals for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses to the lowest 
bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
           

BIDDERS ITEMS 
  
Lesco Inc. of Cleveland, Ohio 1, 14, 32, 33  
  
Helena Chemical Co. of Zeeland, MI 2, 16, 21, 26, 36 
  
Great Lakes Turf LLC of Grand Rapids, MI. 3, 8, 13, 15, 25, 30, 31 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 18 - 

BIDDERS ITEMS 
Tri-Turf Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI 4, 6, 9, 22, 35 
  
Crop Production Svc (CPS) of Sunfield, MI 5 
  
Turfgrass Inc. of Novi, MI  7, 10, 11,12,17,19,23,24,27,29 
  
Harrell’s of Lakeland, Florida 18, 20, 28 

 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 4, 2009, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring December 31, 2009; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for Item #34, 
Disarm, and will be obtained using the informal quote process. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – 911 – Customer Premise Equipment (CPE)     
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Plant/CML 
Vesta Pallas 911 Customer Premise Equipment for Police Communications from Advanced 
Wireless Telecommunications Inc (AWT) of Wixom, MI, through an Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, contract #2399 for an estimated total cost of $195,105.31, 
plus ongoing annual maintenance and support; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Oakland County will pay a portion of the purchase and 
installation cost directly to the vendor currently estimated at $114,495.15; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 

other specified requirements, and Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the contract when in acceptable form. 
 

F-5 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 1237 N Coolidge  
     

a) New License 
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-5a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 1237 N 
Coolidge, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 19 - 

b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-5b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 
1237 N Coolidge, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from Perry Drug Stores, Inc., and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Application to Transfer SDD License to Kroger Co. of Michigan – 2105 W South 

Blvd 
     

a) New License 
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-6a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from The 
Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 2105 W 
South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-6b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with The Kroger Co. of Michigan to transfer ownership of 2008 SDD license to be located at 
2105 W South, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, from Perry Drug Stores, Inc., and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Dunham Capital 

Management, LLC – Section 28 – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-066 

  
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 20 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from property owner Dunham Capital Management, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-28-101-
066; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – NH Motel Enterprises, Inc. 

– Section 9 – Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for water 
main from property owner NH Motel Enterprises, Inc., having Sidwell #88-20-09-151-004; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Acceptance of a Sidewalk Easement – Giulio and Janice E. Grupido – Section 27 – 

Sidwell #88-20-27-351-016 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the permanent easement for sidewalk 
from Giulio Grupido and Janice E. Grupido owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-27-
351-016; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements – Quattro Development Company, LLC – 

Section 15 – Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016, and -017 

  
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-10 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the three permanent easements for 
sanitary sewer for the properties having Sidwell #88-20-15-428-015, -016 and -017 from 
Quattro Development Company, LLC; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 21 - 

F-11 Acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed – 1075, LLC – Section 34 – Sidwell #88-20-34-

226-044 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Quit Claim Deed from property 
owner 1075, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-34-226-044; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Quit Claim Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-12 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 21, 2009 

  
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-12 
 

Installation of YIELD Sign on Langston at Kilmer 

  

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 09-01-SS(Y) be ISSUED for the installation of a 
YIELD sign on Langston at Kilmer. 
 

F-13 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road 

Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #26 – Sidwell 

#88-20-22-401-019 – Halle Properties, LLC 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-13 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the Halle Properties, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
22-401-019, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $66,300.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $3,700.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $140.00 from Halle Properties, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-401-019; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 22 - 

F-14 Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – 

Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #12 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-023 – 5J’s Investment, 

LLC 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-14 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $3,000.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the 
amount of $800.00 from 5J’s Investment, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-
226-023; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-15 Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary 

Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project 

No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #22 – Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001 – Maya’s Meadows 

Condominium Association 
     
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-15 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $1,500.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the 
amount of $300.00 from Maya’s Meadows Condominium Association, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-14-352-001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-16 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #44 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044 – Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and 

Karen A. Ostdiek 

  
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-16 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between the Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and Karen A. Ostdiek, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $17,120.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 23 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $6,980.00 from The Carlton P. Ostdiek Trust and Karen A. 
Ostdiek, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-044; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-17 Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 for Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Program Year 2006 Reprogramming of Funds 

  
Resolution #2009-03-080-F-17 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on March 23, 2009 
at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public 
comments on reprogramming 2006 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for 
the payment of qualified resident’s special assessment fees for the asphalt paving of Florence 
Street and the balance reprogrammed to Section 36 Park Project. 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – Automobile 

Repair in M-1 – March 23, 2009  
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – Submittal 

Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Applications – 
March 23, 2009   

Noted and Filed 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted   

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments Advanced: 
 
Council Member Beltramini attended recent SEMCOG meetings regarding the stimulus 
package and reported that the Governor and Kurt Steudle, Director of MDOT indicated that all 
stimulus funds must be appropriated by the end of March. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that the Oakland County Member Outreach meeting is 
scheduled on Wednesday, April 8

th
, 2009 in Commerce Township at the Hampton Inn.  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 24 - 

Council Member Beltramini provided the City Clerk’s office with updated My Ride Share 
brochures from SEMCOG for the public. The brochures are available in the east entrance of 
city hall. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that the Michigan Municipal League will meet on Tuesday 
and Wednesday of this week and she will provide a report at a later date. 
 
Council Member Beltramini believes that the nation as a whole has shown less and less 
interest in the auto industry. However, she reported that there is an interesting article in the 
latest issue of Detroit’s business journal D-Business listing over 16 million jobs currently 
influenced by the auto industry. 
 
Council Member Kerwin appreciates Council Member Beltramini’s work on transit under her 
leadership as the president of the MML and also through her association with SEMCOG. She 
believes Council Member Beltramini brings a local, regional and national perspective to the 
transit issue through her association and committee work with both groups. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported that she has an opportunity to moderate a session at 
tomorrow’s MML meeting on the topic of Movie Magic, Movies in Michigan. She said Troy’s 
Historical Museum is currently looking into how movie magic can be created at their site. She 
believes Troy is a showcase and that movies will cause a boom for some of the small 
businesses in Troy. Council Member Kerwin indicated that she will also provide a report after 
the MML meeting. 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher believes staff should recommend a policy to City Council relative 
to dealing with private properties experiencing wetland issues and its interconnection to phase 
two storm water requirements. Council Member Eisenbacher has observed that many of the 
ponds throughout Troy exhibit the same problems that were presented this evening in regard to 
Emerald Lakes. He asked that instead of providing a solution in a single area, that a general 
policy addressing this issue be developed in terms of how staff can interface with the private 
owners of these bodies of water. 
 
Council Member Kerwin is very concerned about the drains. 
 
Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy confirmed that he has met with the two residents who 
spoke under Public Comment this evening. Mr. Murphy reported that they agreed on a plan, 
which still holds true today but noted that they still need to determine where the source of the 
material is located. He suggested that the offending location may be a single catch basin 
located on South Boulevard. However, he is uncertain as to whether or not that is the case. He 
explained that after a recent drive through the neighborhood it was discovered that a number of 
the neighbors recently had their property fertilized by a private company. He continued by 
stating that the private company was not judicious in how the fertilizer was applied and a lot of 
the material fell on the sidewalks and driveways. He added that several firefighters reported 
that some of the residents are watering their lawns by pulling water from the Ferry Drain which 
could also be contributing to some of the problems. Mr. Murphy stated that the city agreed to 
hire a firm to conduct water sample testing and because they are still in the process of 
collecting the data, there is nothing to report at this time. In regard to the question regarding 
why there was a proposal put forth specifically for Emerald Lakes, Mr. Murphy explained that 
there are a number of possible solutions that could benefit the value of those lakes. However, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 25 - 

he further noted that when they applied for stimulus funding there were still a lot of unanswered 
questions and again, there was nothing to report. At this time, Mr. Murphy indicated that 
although the chance of receiving stimulus funds for this project is slim, there are still other 
possibilities that were discussed with the homeowners, but it premature to move forward at this 
time. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – February 13, 2008 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – September 29, 2008 
c) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 2, 2008  
d) Historic District Commission/Final – October 21, 2008  
e) Historic Commission/Final – October 28, 2008 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final Amended – November 12, 2008 
g) Library Advisory Board/Final – November 13, 2008  
h) Historic District Commission/Final – November 18, 2008  
i) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – November 20, 2008 
j) Historic District Commission/Final – December 16, 2008 
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – January 6, 2009  
l) Library Advisory Board/Final – January 11, 2009 
m) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 14, 2009  
n) Historic District Commission Minutes/Final – January 20, 2009 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 27, 2009  
p) Library Advisory Board/Final – February 3, 2009 
q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 3, 2009  
r) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 4, 2009 
s) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board Minutes/Draft – February 10, 2009  
t) Planning Commission/Draft – February 10, 2009  
u) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – February 25, 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – January 

2009 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Cindy Stewart from Wolf Den Pack 1707 Regarding the 

Presentation at Troy Union Elementary School  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

J-5 Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Delivery and Supply Customers of The Detroit 

Edison Company – Case No. U-15751 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 26 - 

J-6 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Federal Aid 

Funding for Major Roads – Stimulus Plan and FY 2013 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Kocenda v. Troy 

et. al. 
Noted and Filed 

 
L-1 Closed Session 

Resolution to Hold a Closed Session – Rome Love v. City of Troy 

Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268 (e) – Rome Love v. City of Troy. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Hold a Closed Session-Rome Love v. City of 

Troy  

Resolution #2009-03-081 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS resolution to L-1 Hold a Closed Session-

Rome Love v. City of Troy by INSERTING “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City 
Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session at the request of City Manager, Phillip L. Nelson, for 
the purpose of conducting his Performance Evaluation as permitted by MCL 15.268 (a).”  
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Kerwin  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Hold a Closed Session-Rome Love v. City of Troy as Amended 

 
Resolution #2009-03-082 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by MCL 
15.268 (e) – Rome Love v. City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session at the 
request of City Manager, Phillip L. Nelson, for the purpose of conducting his Performance 
Evaluation as permitted by MCL 15.268 (a). 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 2, 2009 

 

- 27 - 

Yes:  All-7 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting RECESSED at 10:34 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 10:45 PM. 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Discussion of Interim Appointment of an Acting City Manager and Recruitment 

Process for City Manager 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 11:52 PM. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, March 3, 2009 at 12:45 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Service Commendation 
RON FIGLAN 

 
WHEREAS, Ron Figlan began his employment with the City of Troy on July 20, 1970 as a Planning Aide in the 
Planning Department.  In 1987 he became known as a Planning Technician and in 1991 as a Planner.  Few may 
be aware that Ron began his municipal career as an Auxiliary Police Officer in Royal Oak; and  
 
WHEREAS, Ron has worked at the City of Troy for almost 39 years where he has watched the City grow and 
prosper from humble beginnings, and he served an active part in shaping the City into the vibrant community it is 
today; and   
 
WHEREAS, The City employees will miss Ron on a personal level along with missing all of his professional 
knowledge and experience.  The lunch time euchre group will also be sad to see their favorite player leave the 
team, but they won’t miss his bad jokes too much; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ron will enjoy is retirement spending time with his family; grandson Brandon, daughter Dawn and 
her husband Adam Klemp, son James, and girlfriend Maryann Greene.  Ron’s son James will be commissioned 
into the Air Force, just like his father was; and 
 
WHEREAS, There’s a lot around Metro Detroit that will continue to keep Ron entertained.  He enjoys the Detroit 
Tigers, the Dream Cruise, playing cards, and is a dining-out enthusiast at local restaurants; his favorite order is 
the Big Chief Burger at Duggan’s Irish Pub; and   
 
WHEREAS, Upon his retirement we hope Ron will dance out the door, seeing as how he is skilled at everything 
from the twist to the polka, but returns frequently for some lunchtime Euchre; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Ron Figlan for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management 
and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Ron during his 
retirement years. 
 
Presented the 23rd day of March 2009. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



Service Commendation 
CHARLES T. CRAFT 

 
WHEREAS, Charles Craft began his career as a police officer with the City of Troy in 1980, after serving three years as a police 
officer with the City of Clawson; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1986, Charlie was selected as Troy’s Police Officer of the Year.  Prior to his appointment as Chief, he achieved 
the ranks of sergeant, lieutenant, and captain.  As sergeant and lieutenant he had the opportunity to supervise and manage 
Patrol Operations, Criminal Investigations, Criminal Intelligence, Special Operations, and Internal Affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, During his tenure as captain, Charlie initially commanded the Patrol Division, was appointed as commander of the 
Criminal Investigations Division; and promoted to Police Chief on April 13, 1998, a role he has served for almost 11 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Charlie become a recognized expert in the interest based bargaining process, establishing a more personalized 
approach to management/employee relations.  The department now functions in an atmosphere where management and 
employees assess problems, pursue solutions, and work through issues with minimal conflict; and 
 
WHEREAS, During Charlie’s tenure as Chief, the community has seen a consistent decrease in serious crime, ranking as the 
safest city in Michigan with a population of 75,000 or more since 2004.  Troy was also designated as the fifth safest city in the 
United States in 2006, and the sixth safest in 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Chief has consistently recognized the importance of a broad-based approach to public safety, supporting and 
stressing the vital partnerships between the police department and organizations responsible for ensuring a strong and vibrant 
community including the Troy School District, the 52-4 District Court, the Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug 
and Alcohol Abuse, the Troy Boys & Girls Club, Troy Youth Assistance, and HAVEN, to name just a few; and 
 
WHEREAS, Charlie met his future wife Janine, who was a Troy police service aide on his first day as a Troy police officer in 
1980.  They have been married since August 19, 1981 and are the proud parents of Mary and Anna; and   
 
WHEREAS, Charlie Craft retired from the Troy Police Department on Feb. 28, 2009 after 29 years of dedicated service; and 
 
WHEREAS, In his retirement Charlie plans to stay active with his competitive softball team; his band, Cross Town, with which 
he plays bass and guitar; his church; his family and is open to the possibility of new endeavors;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its appreciation 
to Chief Charles Craft for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management and the citizens 
of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Charlie during his retirement years.  His 
influence and contributions will remain alive in our hearts and will impact each of us as we journey into the future. 
  
Presented the 23rd day of February 2009. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03b



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
  March 4, 2009 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
RE:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option –  

Quarterly Newsletter – Troy Today   
 
 

Background 
• On April 16, 2007, a contract to provide one-year requirements of printing services 

for the Troy Today, the City’s quarterly newsletter, was approved with two one-year 
renewal options to Grand River Printing and Imaging of Belleville, MI, the vendor 
with the highest weighted final score as a result of a best value process. (Resolution 
#2007-04-122-E4a). 

 
• The first one-year option to renew was exercised and approved by Troy City Council 

on February 18, 2008, under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions as 
the original contract, which included a price adjustment in 2008 due to increases in 
paper costs. (Resolution #2008-02-058-F4a). 

 
• For at least thirteen (13) years, Grand River Printing and Imaging has done an 

excellent job of handling the printing services for the Troy Today.  They have made 
recommendations related to paper weight to help us reduce the cost of printing, as 
well as mailing.   The Troy Today is now printed on a 40 pound paper, which has 
decreased mailing costs by approximately $4,800.00 per year. 

 
• Due to the best value process used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market 

survey was not done.  The City utilizes an evaluation process in which bidders are 
required to meet minimum specified requirements, along with a weighted score for 
samples of their work from similar projects.   

 
• This is the final one-year renewal option of this contract and staff will solicit proposals for 

next year.    
 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



Page 2 of 2 

 
March 4, 2009 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re  Exercise Renewal Option – Troy Today 
 

 
Financial Considerations  

• Funds are available from the printing budgets of the Community Affairs Department, 
Parks and Recreation and the Library operating budgets.  

• This contract renewal will be based on a reduced quantity of 34,000, instead of the 
current 40,000.  In order to save on printing as well as mailing costs for this contract 
renewal, City management has decided not to mail to Troy businesses. 

• Beginning with the Spring/Summer 2010 issue, the City will print three issues per 
year instead of four, as another cost savings measure.  Eventually, as our residents 
become more acclimated about utilizing our publication on the City website, we will 
be able to print smaller quantities and transition to providing the newsletter only on 
the website. 

 
Legal Considerations  

• RFQ/RFP 07-07, the Printing of Troy Today was competitively bid as required 
by City Charter and Code. 

 
Policy Considerations  

• The Troy Today, currently a quarterly newsletter, is an all-encompassing 
informational and promotional piece used as one of the City’s major public 
relations/ marketing tools.  It has been mailed four times a year to 
approximately 37,000 households and businesses and used as one of the 
main pieces in our new resident/business welcome packets.   It is a lynchpin 
in the City’s community strategy. (Outcome Statement III). 

• The Troy Today contains City news and information as well as all the 
programs, special events and classes at the Library, Museum, Nature Center 
and Community Center.  (Outcome Statement III).  

 
Options 

• City management recommends the Troy City Council exercise the second 
option to renew for one additional year for the printing of the 2009/2010 Troy 
Today for an estimated total cost of $75,000.00, under the same pricing 
structure, terms and conditions, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage, to 
expire April 30, 2010, in accordance with contract requirements. 

 
 
G:\Bid Award 08/09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Troy Today 03.09.doc 
 
 
 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final  February 18, 2008 
 

- 8 - 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 4, 2008 
and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 13, 2008 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
F-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
a) Senior Home Assistance Repair Program (SHARP) – First Anniversary 2008  
  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Printing of City of 

Troy Newsletter – Troy Today    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On April 16, 2007, a contract to provide printing of the Troy Today quarterly 
newsletter with two one (1)-year options to renew was awarded to Grand River Printing and 
Imaging of Belleville, MI, the vendor with the highest weighted final score, as a result of a best 
value process (Resolution #2007-04-122-E-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Grand River Printing and Imaging has agreed to exercise the first option to renew 
for the 2008-09 Troy Today under the same terms and conditions with a price increase of 
$1,100.00 per quarterly issue to recover costs due to fluctuations in paper; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first option to 
renew for the 2008-09 printing of the Troy Today quarterly newsletter with Grand River Printing 
and Imaging to provide printing and distribution of the 2008-2009 Troy Today for an estimated 
total cost of $80,342.80, plus $1,100.00 per quarterly issue for paper cost increases, as well as 
the actual cost of bulk rate postage and additional charges as needed not to exceed 10% of the 
original contract amount or $8,034.28, with all other contract requirements the same to expire 
March 31, 2009.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Police Carports    
 
Resolution #2008-02-058-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 07-35, to  
provide for the installation of carports at the City of Troy Police parking area opened January 22, 
2008, and hereby AUTHORIZES the project to be immediately re-bid. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
February 4, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option –                         
   Printing of City of Troy Newsletter – Troy Today 
 
Background 
 On April 16, 2007, a contract to provide printing of the Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter was 

approved with two one (1) year renewal options to Grand River Printing and Imaging of Belleville, 
MI, the vendor with the highest weighted final score as a result of a best value process. (Council 
Resolution #2007-04-122-E4a).   

 
 A letter is attached from Grand River Printing indicating their agreement to renew the contract for 

printing the Troy Today (4 issues per year) under the same terms and conditions as the original 
contract.  

 
 Grand River Printing is seeking a price increase of $1,100 per issue, which is allowed under the 

contract to recover costs due to fluctuations in paper (See attached letters from their paper 
suppliers). 

 
 Due to the best value process used in evaluating the request for proposal, a market survey was 

not done; since the City utilizes an evaluation process in which bidders are required to meet 
minimum specified requirements, along with a weighted score for samples of their work from 
similar projects. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available from the Community Affairs Department, Parks and Recreation and the 

Library operating budgets, account #748.7901, #752.7901 and #790.7901 respectively.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 RFP-COT 07-07, the printing of the Troy Today was competitively bid and opened with three 

bidders responding.   
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 

February 4, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – 2008-09 Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter 
 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 The Troy Today, quarterly newsletter, is an all-encompassing informational and promotional piece 

used as one of the City’s major public relations/marketing tools.  It is mailed four times a year to 
approximately 37,000 households and businesses and used as one of the main pieces in our new 
resident/business welcome packets.  (Goals II, III & IV). 

 The Troy Today contains City news and information as well as all the programs, special events 
and classes at the Library, Museum, Nature Center and Community Center.   (Goal IV). 

 
Option 
 City management recommends Troy City Council exercise the option to renew for the 2008-09 

Troy Today at an estimated total cost of $80,342.80 plus $1,100.00 per issue for paper cost 
increases, as well as the actual cost of bulk rate postage and additional charges as needed not to 
exceed 10% of the original contract amount or $8,034.28, with all other contract requirements the 
same to expire March 31, 2009.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – TroyToday 01.08.doc 















 
 
  April 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Printing of Troy Today, 

Quarterly Newsletter 
  

Background 
• On March 26, 2007, Requests for Proposals (RFP) were received and opened to provide printing 

services for the Troy Today, our quarterly newsletter. 
• 135 vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bidders responding and one (1) statement 

of no bid received.  
• Color Q had to withdraw from the process due to a their error, which assumed the size of the newsletter 

was 5x8 instead of 8 ¼ x 10 5/8. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the Community Affairs account # 748.7901, Library account #790.7901 and 

Parks & Recreation account # 752.7901. 
  

Legal Considerations 
• RFP-COT 07-07 for Printing of the Troy Today was competitively bid and opened with three bidders 

responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in printing a quarterly 

newsletter for the City of Troy.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• Troy Today, an all-encompassing quarterly newsletter to inform residents and businesses about 

pertinent City news, Library, Museum and Parks & Recreation programs and special events, is mailed 
to all residential and business addresses. (Goal IV) 

• Troy Today also incorporates standard resource information like contact names and phone numbers for 
City Departments, City Council, and other community organizations. It maintains regular features 
including road and infrastructure construction maps, business development news, City Council meeting 
schedules, Police and Fire safety tips and special programs, and other helpful information. (Goal II & 
Goal IV) 

 

Options 
• City Management and the Community Affairs department recommend awarding a one-year contract 

with two one (1) year renewal options for printing services for the Troy Today to the highest scoring 
respondent as a result of a best value process, Grand River Printing and Imaging, of Belleville, MI for 
an estimated one year total cost of $80,342.80 at prices contained in the RFP tabulation, plus the 
actual cost of bulk rate postage. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Printing of Troy Today 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One-Hundred Thirty-Five (135) Firms notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Three (3) proposals were received 

 
 Grand River Printing was the most qualified vendor by receiving the highest weighted 

score 
 

The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Firm SCORE 
Grand River Printing 69 
University Lithoprinters 61 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION 
(BID WITHDRAWN BY VENDOR)  
 

 Color Q 
 

Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Qualification Statement and Newsletter 
Sample Scoring 

 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

               Printing of Troy Today  
Final Score Calculation: 

 
40% x Sample Evaluation Process 
40% x Price Score 
20% x Interview Score        Deleted Phase 
                        

  100% = Final Weighted Score 
 

In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in order of bid opening.   

 
Weighted Average Score for Sample Evaluation: 40% 
RATERS 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
University Lithoprinters  97 99 97 98 
Grand River Printing  63 78 77 73 
 
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% 
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

 (1-(Proposal price - lowest price)/low price) x available points 
Vendors:  
University Lithoprinters (1-(117,460.00–80,342.80)/80,342.80) x 100    =                        54 
Grand River Printing (1-(80,342.80–80,342.80)/80,342.80) x 100    =                       100 

 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: University Lithoprinters **Grand River Printing 
Score   
Sample Evaluation Score:  (x .40) = 98 x .40 = 39 73 x .40 = 29 

   
Price Score:          (x .40) = 54 x .40 = 22 100 x .40 = 40 
   

Final Score:  61 69 

** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/RFP Documents-Agreements-Contracts / RFP – CA – RFP-COT 07-07 Troy Today – WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
award this proposal to the printer considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors 
including but not limited to the following: 
  

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
 

B.  Completeness of the proposal 
 
C.  Financial strength and capacity of the printer 
 
D.  Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
 
E.  Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
 
F.  Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1: Qualifications Evaluation.   
 Bidders will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to 

the second phase of the process. 
 
Phase 2: Sample Evaluation Process.   
 The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to independently evaluate 

the samples of the “City” type newsletters and paper stock submitted as 
required.  Each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The 
scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 
bidder for this phase of the process. 

 
Phase3:  Interview (Optional).   
 The City Committee will use a weighted score sheet to independently rate the 

interview.  Each committee member will calculate a weighted score.  The 
scores will be averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the 
process.  

 
Phase 4:  Price   
 Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 

        FORMULA     - { 1 – (Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price} x available points 
 

Final Scoring and Printer Selection.   
     40% x Weighted Average Score – Sample Evaluation Process  
     20% x Interview Score 
 +  20% x Price Score  40% 
 =  Final Weighted Score  
 
 The highest final weighted scored printer will be the printer recommended to 

the Troy City Council for Award. 
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed 
in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-07
Opening Date -- 3-26-07 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 4/5/07 PRINTING OF TROY TODAY

VENDOR NAME: Grand River Printing and Imaging University Lithoprinters

CHECK # 12949 114845
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00/$1500.00 on File $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF OFFSET
    PRINTING AND DELIVERY OF TROY TODAY WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR PERIODS

QTY                  DESCRIPTION

Vendor Questionnaire Filled out     Y or N Yes Yes

40,000 Copies Printing of TROY TODAY
per Printing Four Times per Year (160,000 Copies per Year)

  Complete for the Sum of:     20,085.70$                             29,365.00$                              
Extended Yearly Cost:          80,342.80$                            117,460.00$                            

Paper Manufactured by:           Cover Orion Mead West Vaco
Inside Windsor Domtar

Additional Charges:
1) Cost per each additional 4-page spread

60 lb  White Offset Paper 1,422.40$                              1st)   $147.00    2nd)   $2,478
60 lb Gloss Cover Stock 1,131.17$                              N/A

Add'l Scans 15.00$                                    
2) Changes once the Dylux or Sherpa is produced $95.00/Hour $65.00/Hour
3) Cost for additional quantities per 500 Copies:

   Offset       Gloss Text
Base Bid   (80 Pages +   4 pages) 193.36$                                  76 pgs + 4 pgs      $308.00
Optional Pricing

a.) 88 Pages  (84 Pages +    4 pages) 207.80$                                     80 pgs + 4 pgs      $315.00
b.) 88 Pages  (80 Pages +    8 pages) 206.15$                                     84 pgs + 4 pgs      $345.00
c.) 92 Pages  (84 Pages +    8 pages) 214.31$                                  N/A

Completion Schedule:
Can meet 10 BUSINESS DAYS XX XX
Cannot meet

Contact Information
Hours of Operations 24 Hours / 7 Days per week Mon - Sat 24 Hours
24 Hrs Phone No. 734-394-1400 734-973-9414

Terms 2% 10 Days, Net 30 Net 30 

Delivery

Samples Y or N Yes Yes

Exceptions: Blank None

Acknowledgement Completed Y or N Yes Yes

NO BIDS: 
Dearborn Lithograph, Inc BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSAL

BIDS WITHDRAWN BY VENDOR:
Color Q

ATTEST:  
Laura Campbell Susan Leirstein CPPB
Ellen Hodorek Purchasing Director
Julie Hamilton
G:\RFP-COT 07-07 Printing of Troy Today

10 BUSINESS DAYS



 

 
February 27, 2009 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:               Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option –  

Liquid Calcium Chloride  
Background 
 
  In 2008, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract for Liquid Calcium Chloride with South Huron 

Industrial Inc. of Flat Rock, MI. 
 The contract contains an option to renew for one additional year based upon mutual consent.  South Huron 

Industrial Inc has agreed to renew the current contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 The Purchasing department has not conducted a market survey because the only other bidder is not 

interested in a split award and does not hold their pricing firm for an entire year.  In addition, Liquid Calcium 
Chloride Sales quoted prices that were 10% higher than South Huron for Option B, and more than double 
on Option C at $.27 verses $.65.  At this time, the City would not benefit from soliciting additional formal 
bids. 

 
Financial Consideration 
 
 Funds are available in the Operating Budgets of the Streets Division for snow and ice control and surface 

maintenance - gravel roads.  
 

Legal Considerations 
 
 ITB-COT 08-09, one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one 

additional year was competitively bid, in accordance with City Charter and Code. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 By renewing existing contracts, the City minimizes cost increases, and benefits from efficient strategic 

planning. (Goal II) 
 
Options 
 
 City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with South Huron 

Industrial Inc of Flat Rock, MI under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring March 31, 2010.   
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 3.23.09 – SR3 – Liquid Calcium Chloride 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final May 12, 2008 
 

- 9 - 

Resolution #2008-05-154-F-7 
 
WHEREAS, On July 11, 2005, Troy City Council approved three-year contracts to purchase 
miscellaneous original equipment manufacturers replacement parts for the Golf Division with 
the exclusive distributors in Michigan - Midwest Golf and Turf, (formerly known as WF Miller 
Company), Weingartz and Spartan Distributors (Resolution #2005-07-332a & 332b-F2); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three suppliers have agreed to extend a one-year contract under the same 
pricing structure, terms and conditions as their original contracts;  
  
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and current contracts to purchase OEM replacement parts for golf and turf 
maintenance equipment from Midwest Golf and Turf of Cincinnati, OH, Weingartz of Farmington 
Hills, and Spartan Distributors of Sparta, MI are hereby extended under the same pricing 
structure, terms, and conditions as the original contracts to expire June 30, 2009. 
 
F-8 Rescind/Re-Award Contract – Liquid Calcium Chloride, Option B – Resolution 

#2008-04-120-F4e 
 
Resolution #2008-05-154-F-8 
 
WHEREAS, On April 7, 2008, one-year contracts to provide Liquid Calcium Chloride with an 
option to renew for one (1) additional year on an option by option basis was awarded to the 
lowest acceptable bidders: South Huron Industrial, Inc. of Flatrock, MI, Options A and C, and 
Suburban Oil Company of Taylor, MI, Option B (Resolution # 2008-04-120-F4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, Suburban Oil Company has withdrawn from the bid process due to the high cost to 
acquire excess umbrella liability insurance as specified;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to provide liquid calcium chloride under Option B, with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year from Suburban Oil Company, and RE-AWARDS to the next lowest acceptable 
bidder, South Huron Industrial, Inc. of Flatrock, MI, which also includes services under Options 
A and C, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 5, 2008, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring March 
31, 2009. 
 
F-9 Authorization Requesting Reimbursement – Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund 
 
Resolution #2008-05-154-F-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of Troy Parks and 
Recreation Department to seek reimbursement in the amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland 
County West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures incurred while instituting proactive public health 
measures to reduce the population of infected mosquitoes in the environment.  
 
F-10 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Resolution #2008-05-154-F-10 



 

 
April 25, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Rescind / Re-Award Contract – Liquid Calcium Chloride, Option B 

Resolution #2008-04-120-F4e 
 
Background 
 On April 7, 2008, Troy City Council awarded one-year contracts to provide Liquid Calcium Chloride with an 

option to renew for One (1) additional year on an option by option basis to the lowest acceptable bidders: 
South Huron Industrial Inc for Options A and C and Suburban Oil Company, Option B. (CC Res #2008-04-
120-F4e) 

 Items bid were separated into three (3) categories, Options A – C. Option A to deliver and apply material 
for dust control; Option B to deliver to a storage tank for ice control; and Option C to deliver to a storage 
tank for dust control.   

 The awards were contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed bid and contract 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 

 On April 22, 2008, the City was notified that Suburban Oil Company must withdraw from the bid process 
due to the high cost of obtaining the excess umbrella liability insurance specified. 

 The bid documents state – After approval by Troy City Council, the City will notify the successful bidder to 
submit an insurance certificate in accordance with specifications.  If not received, the company will be 
considered in default of contract and will be debarred from doing business with the City of Troy for a 
minimum of three (3) years. 

  
Financial Considerations 
 The City’s total estimated cost under this contract will increase from $4,800.00 to $6,225.00 or $.32/gallon 

to $.415/gallon.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 Suburban Oil Company will receive a written notification of default and remedies for reinstatement as a 

potential vendor after three (3) years. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the 

City of Troy. (Goal I) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends the Troy City Council rescind with prejudice the contract approved on  

April 7, 2008, to Suburban Oil Company of Taylor, MI, for Option B, brine for ice control (Resolution #2008-
04-120-F4e).  Staff also recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest bidder, South Huron 
Industrial, Inc of Flatrock, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 5, 2008. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Rescind-Re-Award LiquidCalChloride 05.08.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final April 7, 2008 
 

- 9 - 

EXERCISES the option to renew the contract with Superior Materials, LLC of Farmington Hills, 
MI, to provide one-year requirements of transit mixed concrete under the same prices, terms, 
and conditions as the original contract expiring April 30, 2009. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Police Carports         
 
Resolution #2008-04-120-F-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials 
and equipment to install carports for the City of Troy Police Department to the low bidder, Ross 
& Barr, Inc. of Warren, MI, for an estimated total cost of $66,430.00, at prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened March 5, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS bids for the option to 
install a rainwater collection system. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Lowest Acceptable Bidders – Liquid 

Calcium Chloride         
 
Resolution #2008-04-120-F-4e  Rescinded Option B: May 12, 2008 Res #2008-05-154-F-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Liquid 
Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on a option by option basis 
to the lowest acceptable bidders:  South Huron Industrial, Inc., of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and 
C and Suburban Oil Company, of Taylor, MI, Option B, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened March 5, 2008, copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting, with contracts expiring March 31, 2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidders – Aggregates         
 
Resolution #2008-04-120-F-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide 
aggregates with an option to renew for one (1) additional year on an item by item basis to the 
low bidders as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
March 13, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:                 Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: – Award To Lowest Acceptable Bidders –  

Liquid Calcium Chloride 
 
Background 
 On March 5, 2008, bid proposals were received for one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with 

an option to renew for one additional year. 
 Liquid Calcium Chloride is required for dust and ice control, and ordered on an as needed basis. 
 Items bid were separated into three (3) categories, Options A – C. Option A to deliver and apply material 

for dust control; Option B to deliver to a storage tank for ice control; and Option C to deliver to a storage 
tank for dust control.  The City reserves the right to award the bid to the lowest responsible bidders for 
each option. 

 Even though Liquid Calcium Chloride Sales was low bidder for Option A, their bid was not in the City’s best 
interest due to their exception of an all or none award and firm pricing only until 10/31/08. 

 Low bidders are as follows: South Huron Industrial Inc of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and C; and Suburban Oil 
Company of Taylor, MI for Option B. 

 84 vendors were notified via the MITN system with three (3) bid responses received, as well as one 
statement of no bid.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets and Drains Division for snow and ice control 

and surface maintenance – gravel roads.   
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-09, one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one 

additional year was competitively bid and opened on March 5, 2008, in accordance with City Charter and 
Code. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying services for the 

City of Troy. (Goal I) 
 
Options 
• City management recommends awarding contracts on a option by option basis to the two lowest 

acceptable bidders: South Huron Industrial Inc of Flat Rock, MI, Options A and C; and Suburban Oil 
Company of Taylor, MI, for Option B, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation dated March 5, 2008.  

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 LiquidCalciumChloride 03.08.doc 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04e



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-09
Opening Date -- 3/5/08 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared --3/13/08  (sl) LIQUID CALCIUM CHLORIDE

VENDOR NAME: ** Suburban Oil South Huron Liquid Calcium
Company Industrial Inc. Chloride Sales

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION GALLON GALLON GALLON

OPTION A: DMS
45,000 Bidder to deliver and apply up to 14,000 Blank 0.575$                      0.529$                          
GALS   gallons in one day, as requested by the Alternate

  City for dust control. Minimum 6,000 gal 5,500 Gals
0.39$                           

OPTION B:
15,000 Bidder will deliver to storage tank located at 0.32$                   0.415$                      0.46$                           
GALS   4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of

  no less than 3,000 gallons, as requested Alternate
  by the City for ice control. 5,500 Gals

0.48$                           
OPTION C:

4,000 Bidder will deliver to storage tank located at 0.32$                   0.27$                        0.65$                           
GALS   4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of

  no less than 2,000 gallons, as requested
  by the City for dust control

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: N/A 33,180.000$             33,305.00$                   
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 4,800.00$             26,955.00$              N/A

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours 8 AM to 5 PM 7 AM to 6 PM 6 AM to 11 PM

24Hr Phone Number 734-941-5812 734-782-9840 989-245-2518

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

DELIVERY:
See Bid

TERMS: 30 Days Blank Net 30, 1% Disc, 10 Days
Alternate Quote for larger

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank loads included in bid proposal
Attached to Bid
Prices Firm until 10/31/08
All or None Award

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N Yes Yes Yes

NO BID:
 Cryotech Deicing Technology PROPOSAL - One year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with an

option to renew for one additional year
ATTEST:
Diane Fisher **DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
Deanna Theobald
Tom Rosewarne _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director
G:\ ITB-COT 08-09 Liquid Calcium Chloride

As Specified



campbellld
Text Box
F-04c





 

 
 
March 6, 2009 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
        Sandra Kasperek, Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award-  
    Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications -Tax Bill Printing Services  
 
Background 
 On February 25, 2009, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 09-03 to provide printing services for 

the 2009 summer and winter tax bills with options to renew for two additional (1) year tax periods. 
 147 vendors were notified via the MITN system. 
 Nine (9) bid proposals were received from eight (8) vendors.  International Security Products, the apparent 

low bidder, did not meet specifications by failing to include a sample document demonstrating completion 
of a similar project. 

 Vendors are required to provide laser printed tax bills inserted in envelopes, presorted and delivered to the 
post office by a specified date. 

 The lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications was DivDat of Ferndale, MI. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for these services are available in the operating budget of the Treasurer’s Office, Account 

#101.191.253.7901.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-03 was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 

interest in supplying summer and winter tax bill printing services for 2009.   
 
Policy Considerations 
 A contract award saves labor costs in personal service, and is a more efficient means of creating and 

distributing approximately 35,000 tax bills per billing season in a timely manner with little or no disruption to 
staff or our customers.  (Outputs for Priority Funding M,T) 

 
Options 
 City management and the Finance division recommend awarding a contract for printing services for the 

2009 summer and winter tax bills to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, DivDat of Ferndale, MI, at 
prices contained in the bid tabulation dated 2/25/09 with a contract expiration of December 31, 2009.    

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2-Tax Bills 03.09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-03
Opening Date -- 2/25/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 2/25/09 PRINTING OF TAX BILLS
sl

VENDOR NAME: DIVDAT Centron Data Lasercom LLC Datamatx, Inc.
Services, Inc.

CHECK # - 697669728 ON FILE 9117600985 1202182450
CHECK AMOUNT - $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE PRINTING SERVICES FOR THE
                  2009 SUMMER/WINTER TAX BILLS WITH OPTIONS TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR

TAX PERIODS
EST QTY                  DESCRIPTION $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING

LASER PRINTED TAX BILLS
10,000 INFORMATION STATEMENT

8.5" x 11" 70# White offset stock
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 226.00$         485.00$          500.00$          140.00$         

29,000 TAX STATEMENT
8.5" x 11" 70# White offset stock

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 655.00$         875.00$          1,450.00$        406.00$         

35,000 LASER IMPRINT FACE OF STATEMENT
 COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 913.00$          875.00$           1,050.00$        1,225.00$        

ENVELOPES
35,000 #10 STANDARD WINDOW ENVELOPE

24# White wove stock
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 737.00$         1,010.00$       805.00$          1,085.00$       

25,000 #9 REPLY ENVELOPE
24# White wove stock

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 537.00$          870.00$           625.00$          625.00$          
FULFILLMENTS

10,000 INFORMATION STATEMENT
Fold form, Insert form into window envelope etc

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 242.00$          200.00$           250.00$          240.00$          

25,000 TAX STATEMENT
Fold form, Insert form and return envelope into window envelope etc

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 634.00$          500.00$           625.00$          600.00$          
SET UP & PROGRAMMING CHARGE

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: -$                100.00$           250.00$          750.00$          

PRESORT & DELIVER TO POST OFFICE  (Do NOT Include Postage)
35,000 PRESORT

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 525.00$          175.00$           -$                630.00$          
35,000 DELIVERY TO POST OFFICE

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: -$                -$                -$                -$                

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS: 8,938.00$       10,180.00$     11,110.00$      11,402.00$     

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

SERVICE FACILITY:
Location 10811 Northend 1175 Devin Dr. 2230 Elliot 0430 Lakeridge Pkwy

Ferndale, MI Norton Shores, MI Troy, MI Ashland, VA
Hours of Operations 8 AM to 6 PM M-F  24/7 M-F  7AM to 7PM 7am-12am M-F
24HR Phone Number 248-721-2787 800-732-8787 248-670-1120 800-943-5240



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-03
Opening Date -- 2/25/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 2/25/09 PRINTING OF TAX BILLS

VENDOR NAME: DIVDAT Centron Data Lasercom LLC Datamatx, Inc.
Services, Inc.

SAMPLE DOCUMENT Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 Net 30 N-30 Net 30

DELIVERY

EXCEPTIONS: None None Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
COST BREAKDOWN Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

DMS:
International Security Products - Paso Robles, CA ($8580) Reason: No sample document included with bid as specified.

HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
ATTEST:  
Debra Painter
Sandra Kasperek
Linda Bockstanz _________________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 09-03 Printing of  Tax Bills

10 Calendar Days - As Specified



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-03
Opening Date -- 2/25/09 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 2/25/09 PRINTING OF TAX BILLS

VENDOR NAME: TGI Direct, Inc American University University 
Mailers, Inc Lithoprinters, Inc Lithoprinters, Inc

CHECK # - 9110701232 714305286 134106 134106
CHECK AMOUNT - $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

PROPOSAL:   FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE PRINTING SERVICES FOR THE
                  2009 SUMMER/WINTER TAX BILLS WITH OPTIONS TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR

TAX PERIODS
EST QTY                  DESCRIPTION $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING $ PER BILLING

LASER PRINTED TAX BILLS ALTERNATE
10,000 INFORMATION STATEMENT RE-USEABLE ENVELOPE

8.5" x 11" 70# White offset stock
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 430.00$            972.50$           760.00$           760.00$          

29,000 TAX STATEMENT
8.5" x 11" 70# White offset stock

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 986.00$            1,581.25$        960.00$           960.00$          

35,000 LASER IMPRINT FACE OF STATEMENT
 COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 1,050.00$          1,225.00$         1,590.00$        1,590.00$        

ENVELOPES
35,000 #10 STANDARD WINDOW ENVELOPE

24# White wove stock
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 980.00$            1,045.80$        1,460.00$        1,560.00$       

25,000 #9 REPLY ENVELOPE
24# White wove stock

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 650.00$             765.75$            1,030.00$        -$                 
FULFILLMENTS

10,000 INFORMATION STATEMENT
Fold form, Insert form into window envelope etc

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 225.00$             250.00$            1,040.00$        1,040.00$        

25,000 TAX STATEMENT
Fold form, Insert form and return envelope into window envelope etc

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 485.00$             600.00$            1,975.00$        1,975.00$        
SET UP & PROGRAMMING CHARGE

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 775.00$             400.00$            -$                 -$                 

PRESORT & DELIVER TO POST OFFICE  (Do NOT Include Postage)
35,000 PRESORT

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 90.00$               250.00$            -$                 -$                 
35,000 DELIVERY TO POST OFFICE

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 40.00$               80.00$              -$                 -$                 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTALS: 11,422.00$       14,340.60$      17,630.00$      15,770.00$     

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet

SERVICE FACILITY:
Location 5365 Hill 23 Dr 100 American Way 4150 Varsity Dr 4150 Varsity Dr

Flint, MI Detroit, MI Ann Arbor, MI Ann Arbor, MI
Hours of Operations 6 AM to 11 PM M-F 7 AM to 5 PM 24/6  M-S 24/6  M-S
24HR Phone Number 800-337-2237 248-252-4675 734-973-9414 734-973-9414



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-03
Opening Date -- 2/25/09 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 2/25/09 PRINTING OF TAX BILLS

VENDOR NAME: TGI Direct, Inc. American University University 
Mailers, Inc. Lithoprinters, Inc. Lithoprinters, Inc.

SAMPLE DOCUMENT Y or N No Yes No No

PAYMENT TERMS Net 30 N-30 Net 30 Net 30

DELIVERY
Accepting our alternate

EXCEPTIONS: None No Exceptions Attached proposal - we will

Postage must be To Bid need 5 to 7 extra days 

paid in advance of to print re-usable

delivery to PO envelope only

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
COST BREAKDOWN Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 09-03 Printing of  Tax Bills

10 Calendar Days - As Specified



campbellld
Text Box
F-04e













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  March 20, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Renewal of Michigan Municipal League 
Membership          

 
Resolution #2006-03-143-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay the 2005/06 Michigan Municipal League 
membership fee covering the time period of May 1, 2006 through April 30, 2007 in the amount 
of $11,438.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Municipal Testing 

Services for the 2006-2009 Construction Seasons          
 
Resolution #2006-03-143-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That two (2), three-year contracts to provide professional municipal testing 
services with an option to renew for three (3) additional years are hereby AWARDED to the 
best value proposals submitted by Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI), 1000 North 
Opdyke Road, Suite C, Auburn Hills, MI, and Testing Engineers and Consultants, Inc. (TEC), 
1343 Rochester Road, Troy, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 
22, 2006, with additional services priced as outlined in their respective rate schedules, copies of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ submission 
of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including agreements, insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE those agreements when in acceptable form.  
 
E-5 Amendment #1 Sole Source – US Filter HRR Enhancer and Pulsar Plus Briquettes 
 
Resolution #2006-03-143-E-5 
 
WHEREAS, On May 9, 2005, the Troy City Council awarded a contract to purchase both Pulsar 
Products and HRR Enhancer from the authorized dealer/distributor in Michigan, B&B Pools and 
Spas, at dealer prices plus 25% and trade prices respectively for the Community Center Indoor 
Pool, (Resolution #2005-05-236); 
 
WHEREAS, The City recommends changing to Pulsar as the main sanitation for the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center due to price increases and potential shortages of liquid chlorine. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract be AMENDED to include the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center in the purchase of the Pulsar Plus Briquettes at the stated price of dealer 
prices plus 25%. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

March 2, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
   
Subject: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award 
  Municipal Testing Services for the 2006-2009 Construction Seasons 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On February 22, 2006, request for proposals were opened for Professional Municipal 
Testing Services for the City of Troy 2006 – 2009 construction season.  City 
management recommends awarding two, three-year contracts to the firms providing the 
best value, Professional Service Industries, Inc., (PSI), 1000 North Opdyke Road, Suite 
C, Auburn Hills, MI and Testing Engineers and Consultants, Inc., (TEC), 1343 
Rochester Road, Troy, MI at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation and 
respective rate schedules. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractors’ submission of properly executed proposal 
and contract documents, including the agreement, insurance, and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Whereas all previous contracts have been with one consultant, we are recommending 
two consultants to better serve our needs and assure high quality and value in all the 
services that are provided.  PSI submitted the lowest overall cost, based on the 
representative testing services used in the request for proposal.  PSI is a large national 
testing firm with over 125 offices throughout the United States and five (5) offices 
located in Michigan.  The testing services provided by PSI would be performed out of 
their Auburn Hills location, located within 15 minutes of the City.   
 
TEC’s overall cost for these same services ranked second lowest.  TEC is located in 
Troy and has provided testing services to the City of Troy for more than 30 years.  Both 
consultants are well qualified and have the staff and experience to meet the needs of 
the City.  By selecting two consultants, the City will ensure that our testing needs 
throughout the construction season are met.  More importantly, we believe we will 
benefit from greater availability of all testing services, so that our needs can be met with 
the most timely, highest quality and cost effective service possible. 
 
The effective date of the resulting contracts will be April 1, 2006, or upon City Council 
approval whichever is later, through March 31, 2009, with the option to renew the 
contracts for an additional three (3) years. 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 
March 2, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
Re: Bid Award - Municipal Testing Services for the 2006-2009 Construction Seasons 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) documents were available from the City of Troy 
Purchasing department or through the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network 
(MITN) e-procurement website at www.govbids.com.   
 
Proposals were received from seven (7) consultants.  The seven (7) proposals were 
rated on a pass / fail criteria. Of the seven (7) proposals, five (5) met the pass / fail criteria 
established for the Municipal Testing Services.  “Appendix 1” details the reasons for firms 
failing the minimum requirement criteria. 
 
The five (5) remaining firms were analyzed on a combination of price and quality.  Cost 
comparisons between companies are very difficult to make because fee structures and 
billing methods differ considerably from company to company.  To perform the cost 
comparisons, staff used representative testing services based on services provided in past 
construction seasons and applied each company’s rates to the testing that was required.  
This cost comparison indicated that the prices submitted by PSI resulted in the lowest 
overall total cost.   TEC is the second lowest overall total cost; 5.11% or $4,100.00 higher 
for the representative testing services used.  (see attached “Bid Tabulation”).  
 
Our testing demands are very erratic and vary drastically from day to day.  With one day's 
notice, we can go from requiring no testing technicians to requiring as many as four or 
more testing technicians.  This requires the testing consultant to have a large flexible staff 
to draw upon.  Both consultants have experienced staff available to meet these needs as 
requested.   
 
BUDGET 
Testing services, completed for capital projects, are funded from the appropriate project 
account as identified in the budget. 
 
Funds for testing services related to private developments come from a cash deposit for 
material and construction testing services in the amount of one and one-half (1½) percent 
of the estimated construction cost.  
 
Additionally, the Engineering Operating Budget includes funds for Consultant Services in 
the following accounts: 
 
 442.7816 – Engineering Projects – Consultant Services 
 443.7816 – Engineering Subdivisions – Consultant Services 
 444.7816 – Engineering General – Consultant Services 
 
The funds included in these accounts are used for testing services, as required.   
 
Prepared by:  William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
MUNICIPAL TESTING SERVICES 

STATISTICS: 
 

 Seven (7) Proposal notices were sent to prospective 
bidders  

 
 Seventy- three (73) Vendors notified on the MITN System  

 
 Seven (7) firms responded to the proposal 

 
 Five (5) firms met the pass / fail criteria 

 
 PSI and TEC are the recommended consultants as a 
result of a best value process 

 
 
Selection Process: 
 

1. Firms were evaluated on Pass / Fail Criteria 
 
2. Two lowest bidders who pass Phase 1 will be 

recommended for award 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

G://Bid Award 05-06/Best Value SR8 – Municipal TestingSvcExec Sum03.06.doc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



APPENDIX 1 
 

MUNICIPAL TESTING SERVICES                                                    RFP-COT 05-58 
BIDDERS FAILING MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
List of Bidders Not Meeting Evaluation Criteria 
 
COMPANY NAME: REASON FOR DISQUALIFICATION 
G2 Consulting Group, LLC Bid non-responsive – failed to provide all 

information requested specifically public project 
experience. 
 

TTL Associates, Inc Bid incomplete – Unit prices for three items were 
missing and cannot be accepted after the bid 
closing time. 
 

 
The Request for Proposal will provide Professional Municipal Testing Services for the 2006 
through the 2009 Construction Seasons with an option to renew for three (3) additional years with 
mutual consent.     
 
The City of Troy reserves the right to award this proposal to the companies considered the most 
qualified based upon a combination of factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A) Compliance with qualifications criteria 
B) Completeness of the proposal 
C) Correlation of the proposal submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D) Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E) Evaluation of fee proposals 
F) Most effective total package  



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 05-58
Opening Date -- 2-22-06 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/1/06 PROFESSIONAL TESTING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TROY ENGINEERING
DEPARTMENT FOR THE 2006 THROUGH 2009 CONSTRUCTION SEASONS

FIRM QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N

PROPOSAL:
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

25 Hrs Professional Engineer 93.00$      2,325.00$         90.00$       2,250.00$           
250 Hrs Senior Engineering Technician 27.00$      6,750.00$         31.00$       7,750.00$           

450 Miles Mileage Charge (If any) NC -$                 NC -$                    
30 Hrs Senior Engineer Review 70.00$      2,100.00$         75.00$       2,250.00$           
50 Hrs Field or Engineering Technician 27.00$      1,350.00$         28.00$       1,400.00$           
40 Hrs Project Manager 70.00$      2,800.00$         85.00$       3,400.00$           

Additional Required Services: 4-hour minimum for Engineering/
Field Technician Only

Optional / Services etc: 70.00$      per hour

FIELD TESTING
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

40 Hrs Pick Up Samples 25.00$      1,000.00$         28.00$       1,120.00$           
280 Miles Mileage Change (If any) NC -$                 NC -$                    

110 Hours Nuclear Density Gauge 5.00$        550.00$            5.00$         550.00$              
Equipment Charge (If any) N/A -$                 -$          -$                    

240 Miles Mileage Charge (If any) NC -$                 NC -$                    
940 Feet Soil Borings (0'-25' typical) 9.00$        8,460.00$         9.50$         8,930.00$           

Mobilization Charge (If any) 275.00$    275.00$            300.00$     300.00$              
30 Hrs Concrete Field Test 27.00$      810.00$            
15 Hrs Pavement Cores 40.00$      600.00$            50.00$       750.00$              

Additional Required Services:

Optional / Services etc: 10.00$      per inch

LAB ANALYSIS
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
240 each Concrete Cylinders 8.75$        2,100.00$         9.50$         2,280.00$           
330 each Proctor Test 85.00$      28,050.00$       90.00$       29,700.00$         
20 each Sieve Analysis 45.00$      900.00$            50.00$       1,000.00$           

210 each Extractions 90.00$      18,900.00$       90.00$       18,900.00$         

Additional Required Services: 45.00$       unit wt

Optional / Services etc: 3.50$        each

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TESTING ENGINEERS &
INDUSTRIES, INC CONSULTANTS, INC

- PSI - - TEC -

Yes Yes

Included-Tech Rate

Consultant #1 Consultant #2



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 05-58
Opening Date -- 2-22-06 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/1/06 PROFESSIONAL TESTING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PRE-DEMOLITION HAZARDOUS
MATERIAL SURVEY WORK:
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

20 each Asbestos 15.00$      300.00$            17.00$       340.00$              
20 each Lead Based Paint 17.00$      340.00$            20.00$       400.00$              
5 each Presence of PCB's 65.00$      325.00$            65.00$       325.00$              
5 each Presence of Mercury 12.00$      60.00$             40.00$       200.00$              
50 Hrs Air Quality Monitoring In 45.00$      2,250.00$         50.00$       2,500.00$           

Accordance w/Asbestos Abatement

Additional Required Services: 45.00$       per hour
110.00$     per hour
60.00$       per hour

Optional / Services etc: 45.00$      per hour

TOTALS 80,245.00$       84,345.00$         

OVERTIME RATES:

SUNDAY RATES:

HOLIDAY RATES:

INSURANCE: Can meet
Cannot meet

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY DATES:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N

DMS:
 G2 Consulting Group LLC ($73,165) Reason: Bid non-responsive
 TTL Associates Inc ($124,235) Reason: Incomplete bid

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES BEST VALUE PROPOSALS

Cheryl Stewart

William Huotari __________________________

Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\RFP-COT 05-58 Professional Testing Services

PSI TEC
Consultant #1 Consultant #2

CPI whichever is less

1.3

1.5

1.7

XX

Attached to Bid - Remarks

NA

As Requested

None

Yes

1.35

1.7

1.7

XX

Rates are subject to an 
annual 3% increase or annual

Yes

Net 30 Days

NA

City of Troy Schedule



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 05-58
Opening Date -- 2-22-06 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 3 of 4
Date Prepared 3/1/2006 PROFESSIONAL TESTING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL MUNICIPAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF TROY ENGINEERING
DEPARTMENT FOR THE 2006 THROUGH 2009 CONSTRUCTION SEASONS

FIRM QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N

PROPOSAL:
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

25 Hrs Professional Engineer 90.00$     2,250.00$      100.00$     2,500.00$   105.00$    2,625.00$  
250 Hrs Senior Engineering Technician 42.00$     10,500.00 * $55.00 13,750.00 55.00$      13750.00

450 Miles Mileage Charge (If any) 0.25$       112.50$         0.50$         225.00$      -$         -$          
30 Hrs Senior Engineer Review 75.00$     2,250.00$      100.00$     3,000.00$   75.00$      2,250.00$  
50 Hrs Field or Engineering Technician 34.00$     1,700.00$      * $45.00 2,250.00$   50.00$      2,500.00$  
40 Hrs Project Manager 75.00$     3,000.00$      120.00$     4,800.00$   95.00$      3,800.00$  

Additional Required Services: * Minimum 4hr/day 40.00$      per day
795.76$     commun fees Veh/Commun charge

3% of prof fees

Optional / Services etc:
See Fee Schedule
FS:0 in Attachmt A

FIELD TESTING
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

40 Hrs Pick Up Samples 30.00$     1,200.00$      35.00$       1,400.00$   50.00$      2,000.00$  
280 Miles Mileage Change (If any) 0.25$       70.00$           0.50$         140.00$      -$         -$          

110 Hours Nuclear Density Gauge 34.00$     3,740.00$      45.00$       4,950.00$   55.00$      6,050.00$  
Equipment Charge (If any) -$         -$               50.00$       550.00$      45.00$      45.00$       

240 Miles Mileage Charge (If any) 0.25$       60.00$           0.50$         120.00$      -$         -$          
940 Feet Soil Borings (0'-25' typical) 15.00$     14,100.00 13.00$       12,220.00 12.00$      11,280.00

Mobilization Charge (If any) 275.00$   275.00$         400.00$     400.00$      250.00$    250.00$     
30 Hrs Concrete Field Test 34.00$     1,020.00$      45.00$       1,350.00$   55.00$      1,650.00$  
15 Hrs Pavement Cores 60.00$     900.00$         140.00$     1,960.00$   75.00$      1,125.00$  

Additional Required Services: 40.00$      per day
See Attachment A.1 Veh/Commun charge

Optional / Services etc:
See Fee Schedules
FS1 & FS4 in Attachmt A

LAB ANALYSIS
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total
240 each Concrete Cylinders 10.50$     2,520.00$      14.00$       3,360.00$   16.00$      3,840.00$  
330 each Proctor Test 85.00$     28,050.00 60.00$       19,800.00 125.00$    41,250.00
20 each Sieve Analysis 50.00$     1,000.00$      * $120.00 2,400.00$   75.00$      1,500.00$  

210 each Extractions 100.00$   21,000.00 150.00$     31,500.00 125.00$    26,250.00

Additional Required Services: 42.00$       per hour
Admin Asst
* Inc loss by wash

Optional / Services etc:
See Fee Schedules
FS1 & FS4 in Attachmt A

SME

Yes Yes Yes

CTI & Associates, Inc. SOIL & MATERIALS Schleede Hampton 
ENGINEERS, INC Associates, Inc.



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 05-58
Opening Date -- 2-22-06 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/1/06 PROFESSIONAL TESTING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PRE-DEMOLITION HAZARDOUS
MATERIAL SURVEY WORK:
EST. QTY. SERVICE Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

20 each Asbestos * $25.00 500.00$         8.40$         168.00$      50.00$      1,000.00$  
20 each Lead Based Paint * $35.00 700.00$         7.20$         144.00$      50.00$      1,000.00$  
5 each Presence of PCB's * $70.00 350.00$         84.00$       420.00$      75.00$      375.00$     
5 each Presence of Mercury * $25.00 125.00$         120.00$     600.00$      50.00$      250.00$     
50 Hrs Air Quality Monitoring In 85.00$     4,250.00$      58.00$       2,900.00$   95.00$      4,750.00$  

Accordance w/Asbestos Abatement

Additional Required Services: * Analytical Testing Only
Travel/Mobilization 120.00$   per trip See Attachment A.2
Sampling 75.00$     per sample

Optional / Services etc: See Attachment A.2

TOTALS 99,672.50 112,587.00 127,540.00

OVERTIME RATES:

SUNDAY RATES:

HOLIDAY RATES:

INSURANCE: Can meet
Cannot meet

TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY DATES:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N

G:\RFP-COT 05-58 Professional Testing Services

Yes Yes Yes

Blank To be Determined Blank

Blank Blank Blank

Blank Net 30 Days Blank

Blank NA Blank

XX XX XX

1.6 1.33 1.4

1.6 1.33 1.4

CTI & Associates, Inc. SME Schleede Hampton 

1.2 1.33 1.4

FS1 & FS11 in Attachmt A

Associates, Inc.

      See Fee Schedule





















 

 
March 16, 2009 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director  
    Gary G. Mayer, Acting Police Chief 
        William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award-  
    Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Vehicle Graphics   
 
Background 
 On February 11, 2009, bids were received and opened for ITB-COT 08-42 to provide two-year 

requirements to install and/or purchase vehicle graphic material for Police, Fire, and Fleet departments with 
an option to renew for two (2) additional years.   

 93 vendors were notified via the MITN system. 
 Five (5) bid proposals were received; as well as one statement of no bid.  Signs & More, the apparent low 

bidder, withdrew from the process when discovered they bid solvent printing of the graphics, as opposed to 
screen printing as specified in the bid documents.   

 Vendors are required to provide all labor, tools, material and equipment to install vehicle graphics at 
locations designated by the City.  All work requested must be completed within five (5) business days.  

 The lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications was Majik Graphics, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for these services are available in the operating budgets of the following departments: 

o Fleet:   #661.549.550.7740.010 – Operation & Maintenance Operating Supplies 
o Fire:   #101.336.338.7740.115 – Operating Supplies 
o Police: # 101.301.12.315.7802.070 – Contractual Services 

 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 08-42 was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 

interest in providing two year requirements to install and/or purchase vehicle graphic material as required 
by City Charter and Code 

 The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of proper insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 Maintenance of City vehicles and emergency equipment is consistent with Troy City Council’s ongoing 

objective to enhance the health and safety of the community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a contract to provide two-year requirements to install and/or 

purchase vehicle graphic material for Police, Fire, and Fleet departments with an option to renew for two 
additional years to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Majik Graphics, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI, 
for an estimated annual cost of $20,247.60 at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation with a 
contract expiration of March 31, 2011.    

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2- Vehicle Graphics 03.09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04f



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-42
Opening Date -- 2/11/09 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/16/09 jh/sl BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:
Check Number 14496924 2066985 714294007
Check Amount

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND FLEET DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
1. POLICE VEHICLE GRAPHICS (COMPLETE) - Non Reflective
1.a. 12 ea Police Vehicles - Fully Marked 289.00$    3,468.00$   257.00$     3,084.00$        562.50$    6,750.00$   
1.b. 4 ea Police Vehicles - Semi Marked 145.00$    580.00$      75.00$       300.00$           181.25$    725.00$      
1.c. 4 ea Police Vehicles (K-9) 319.00$    1,276.00$   277.00$     1,108.00$        575.00$    2,300.00$   
1.d. 2 ea Police Vehicles (Evidence Tech) 319.00$    638.00$      257.00$     514.00$           562.50$    1,125.00$   
1.e. 2 ea Motorcycles-(Gold - reflective ) 115.00$    230.00$      223.00$     446.00$           543.75$    1,087.50$   
1.f. 1 ea Animal Control Officer Vehicle 362.00$    362.00$      486.00$     486.00$           650.00$    650.00$      
1.g. 1 ea Police Vehicle (Community Serv) 319.00$    319.00$      257.00$     257.00$           550.00$    550.00$      
1.h. 1 ea PSA (reflective) 545.00$    545.00$      486.00$     486.00$           900.00$    900.00$      

Sub-Total 7,418.00$  6,681.00$        14,087.50$ 
COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS

Material Labor Material Labor
1.i. 14 ea Front Fender - either side 32.00$      35.00$        40.00$       40.00$             50.00$      100.00$      
1.j. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 42.00$      35.00$        45.00$       40.00$             62.50$      137.50$      
1.k. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear 35.00$      35.00$        80.00$       60.00$             87.50$      156.25$      
1.l. 12 ea Vehicle Trunk - Letters/Numbers 32.00$     35.00$       20.00$      30.00$             50.00$     100.00$     

Sub-Total 4,500.00$  6,270.00$        12,550.00$  
LABOR COST FOR REMOVAL OF DECALS & GRAPICS Labor Labor Labor
1.m. 20 ea Fully Marked Patrol Cars Non Reflect 95.00$       85.00$             340.00$     
1.n. 4 ea Semi Marked Traffic Safety Vehicles 35.00$       40.00$             125.00$     
1.o. 2 ea Police Motorcycles 35.00$       100.00$           215.00$     

Sub-Total 2,110.00$  2,060.00$        7,730.00$  
ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor
1.p. 4 ea K-9 Markings (Head on Pillar) 10.00$      10.00$        35.00$       25.00$             31.25$      93.75$        
1.q. 4 ea K-9 Graphics (Name on Pillar) 10.00$      10.00$        15.00$       25.00$             31.25$      93.75$        
1.r. 4 ea K-9 Graphics (Caution on Window) 10.00$      10.00$        15.00$       25.00$             31.25$      93.75$        
1.s. 4 ea Unit Designator (K-9,Evidence,etc) 20.00$      10.00$        30.00$       25.00$             37.50$      93.75$        
1.t. 2 ea Motorcycle (Full Ferring) 25.00$      20.00$        45.00$       25.00$             75.00$      93.75$        
1.u. 2 ea Motorcycle (Tank) 16.00$      20.00$        65.00$       35.00$             100.00$    93.75$        
1.v. 2 ea Motorcycle (Saddle Bags) 12.00$      20.00$        45.00$       35.00$             75.00$      93.75$        
1.w. 2 ea Motorcycle (Rear Fender) 8.00$        20.00$        15.00$       25.00$             50.00$      93.75$        
1.x. 2 ea Motorcycle (Front Fender) 16.00$      20.00$        45.00$       35.00$             75.00$      93.75$        
1.y. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (Set of 3) 35.00$      20.00$        45.00$       45.00$             43.75$      125.00$      
1.z. 16 ea American Flags 6.00$       5.00$         15.00$      25.00$             18.75$     93.75$       

Sub-Total 1,330.00$  2,880.00$        6,862.50$  
Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
2. FIRE VEHICLE GRAPHICS (COMPLETE)
2.a. 2 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 430.00$    860.00$      545.00$     1,090.00$        912.50$    1,825.00$   
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus (Large) 309.00$    309.00$      375.00$     375.00$           1,000.00$ 1,000.00$   
2.c. 1 ea Command Vehicle 440.00$   440.00$     545.00$    545.00$           912.50$   912.50$     

Sub-Total 1,609.00$  2,010.00$        3,737.50$  
COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS

Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor
2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Fender -either side 47.00$      35.00$        100.00$     60.00$             106.25$    93.75$        
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 35.00$      35.00$        100.00$     60.00$             87.50$      93.75$        
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear 47.00$      35.00$        175.00$     85.00$             106.25$    112.50$      
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 10.00$      35.00$        35.00$       25.00$             56.25$      93.75$        
2.h. 2 ea Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 47.00$      35.00$        85.00$       45.00$             62.50$      93.75$        
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals -$         135.00$     -$          275.00$           -$         437.50$     

Sub-Total 1,262.00$  2,640.00$        3,562.50$  

500.00$                                500.00$                          

Upper Level Graphics Graphic Resource GroupMajik Graphics, Inc.

500.00$                          



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-42
Opening Date -- 02/11/09 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 03/16/09 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
3. FLEET - GRAPHICS ONLY
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 18.00$      432.00$      19.50$       468.00$           15.00$      360.00$      
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 18.00$      216.00$      19.50$       234.00$           12.50$      150.00$      
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 38.00$      912.00$      34.25$       822.00$           30.00$      720.00$      
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 38.00$     456.00$     34.25$      411.00$           25.00$     300.00$     

Sub-Total 2,016.00$  1,935.00$        1,530.00$  

Item           Description Material Material
General Decal Costs/Each non-reflective
4.a. Letters/Numbers 0.55$        0.18$         Sq Inch 0.12$        
4.b. Stripes 0.30$        0.05$         Sq Inch 0.06$        
4.c. Shield Markings 1.75$       Screen Printed 0.15$        Sq Inch 0.62$       
5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

Sub-Total 2.60$       0.38$        0.80$       

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 20,247.60$ 24,476.38$      50,060.80$  

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone #          586-354-8392          313-980-5984       248-882-0860

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N No Yes Yes
DATE 2/6/2009 2/3/2009

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet +$550.00

PAYMENT TERMS:

WARRANTY:

DELIVERY OF DECALS:

EXCEPTIONS:
Repair prices are listed separately

Removal costs for fully marked units

PSA vehicles will be $135.00/ removal

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS
Signs&More-Rochester Hills ($20,207.33) Withdrew bid - Reason: Solvent printing (digital) as opposed to screen printing, as specified.

NO BID: HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
J.L. Geisler Corporation

ATTEST: Susan Leistein CPPB
Debra Painter Purchasing Director
Keith Lenderman
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 08-42Vehicle Graphics

NO CHARGE NO CHARGE

8:30 AM to 5 PM   M-F 9 AM to 6 PM   M-F 8:30 AM to 5 PM  M-F

Blank

2 - 4 Days ARO

Blank

Courier / Installer

Net 30 Days

Per 3M Manufacturer

Net 30 Days

3 Years

Upper Level Graphics Graphic Resource Group

Life of Vehicle

FOB Troy
Attached To Bid

All Additional item prices are included

NO CHARGE

Majik Graphics, Inc.

Net 30

Current Provider



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-42
Opening Date -- 2/11/09 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/16/09 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:
Check Number 714301742
Check Amount

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND FLEET DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO ADDITIONAL YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension
1. POLICE VEHICLE GRAPHICS (COMPLETE) - Non Reflective
1.a. 12 ea Police Vehicles - Fully Marked 1,000.00$   12,000.00$      
1.b. 4 ea Police Vehicles - Semi Marked 950.00$      3,800.00$        
1.c. 4 ea Police Vehicles (K-9) -$            -$                 
1.d. 2 ea Police Vehicles (Evidence Tech) 1,000.00$   2,000.00$        
1.e. 2 ea Motorcycles-(Gold - reflective ) 700.00$      1,400.00$        
1.f. 1 ea Animal Control Officer Vehicle 950.00$      950.00$           
1.g. 1 ea Police Vehicle (Community Serv) 1,000.00$   1,000.00$        
1.h. 1 ea PSA (reflective) 1,000.00$  1,000.00$       

Sub-Total 22,150.00$  
COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS

Material Labor
1.i. 14 ea Front Fender - either side 150.00$    150.00$        
1.j. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 150.00$    150.00$        
1.k. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear 150.00$    150.00$        
1.l. 12 ea Vehicle Trunk - Letters/Numbers 150.00$   150.00$       

Sub-Total 19,200.00$  
LABOR COST FOR REMOVAL OF DECALS & GRAPICS Labor
1.m. 20 ea Fully Marked Patrol Cars 250.00$        
1.n. 4 ea Semi Marked Traffic Safety Vehicles 250.00$        
1.o. 2 ea Police Motorcycles 250.00$       

Sub-Total 6,500.00$    
ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor
1.p. 4 ea K-9 Markings (Head on Pillar) 25.00$      25.00$          
1.q. 4 ea K-9 Graphics (Name on Pillar) 25.00$      25.00$          
1.r. 4 ea K-9 Graphics (Caution on Window) 25.00$      25.00$          
1.s. 4 ea Unit Designator (K-9,Evidence,etc) -$          -$              
1.t. 2 ea Motorcycle (Full Ferring) 100.00$    150.00$        
1.u. 2 ea Motorcycle (Tank) 100.00$    150.00$        
1.v. 2 ea Motorcycle (Saddle Bags) 100.00$    150.00$        
1.w. 2 ea Motorcycle (Rear Fender) 100.00$    150.00$        
1.x. 2 ea Motorcycle (Front Fender) 100.00$    150.00$        
1.y. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (Set of 3) 75.00$      75.00$          
1.z. 16 ea American Flags 15.00$     15.00$         

Sub-Total 4,780.00$    
Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension
2. FIRE VEHICLE GRAPHICS (COMPLETE)
2.a. 2 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 1,000.00$   2,000.00$     
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus (Large) 1,000.00$   1,000.00$    
2.c. 1 ea Command Vehicle 1,000.00$   1,000.00$    

Sub-Total 4,000.00$    
COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS

Material Labor
2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Fender -either side 150.00$    150.00$        
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 150.00$   150.00$       
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear 150.00$   150.00$       
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 150.00$    150.00$        
2.h. 2 ea Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 150.00$    150.00$        
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals -$         250.00$       

Sub-Total 4,000.00$    

Innovative Media

500.00$                            



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-42
Opening Date -- 2/11/09 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 3/16/09 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension
3. FLEET - GRAPHICS ONLY
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 10.00$      240.00$        
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 10.00$      120.00$        
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 15.00$      360.00$        
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 15.00$     180.00$       

Sub-Total 900.00$       

Item           Description

General Decal Costs/Each
4.a. Letters/Numbers 15.00$      Ea
4.b. Stripes 100.00$    Ea
4.c. Shield Markings 25.00$     Ea
5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

Sub-Total 140.00$   

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 61,670.00$  

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone #        248-616-9394

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes
DATE

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Blank

WARRANTY: Blank

DELIVERY OF DECALS: Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes

G:ITB-COT 08-42Vehicle Graphics

Innovative Media

NO CHARGE

  8 AM to 5 PM

2/6/2009



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
 
March 19, 2009 

 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 

Gary G. Mayer, Acting Police Chief 
   
    
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Police & Fire Departments Radio Interoperability Project  
 
BACKGROUND  
 

 As previously corresponded, the CLEMIS (Court and Law Enforcement Management 
Information Systems) consortium has constructed a new 800 MHz public Safety 
Radio System for Oakland County called OakWIN.  The purpose of this system is to 
provide countywide interoperable radio communications for all law enforcement, fire, 
and emergency medical services throughout Oakland County.   

 

 Funding for this project came from a 9-1-1-telephone surcharge and was approved by 
the Oakland County Board of Commissioners under Miscellaneous Resolution No. 
99-279.  This project relieved the City of Troy, and other consortium communities, of 
the financial and operational responsibilities related to constructing and maintaining 
“stand alone” radio systems.  In addition to financing and constructing the system’s 
infrastructure, the project is providing base stations, as well as mobile and portable 
radios to consortium public safety agencies.  Ancillary equipment, the need for which 
differs from agency to agency, must be specified and purchased by individual 
participating agencies. 

 

 The equipment software enhancement requested is operational in nature and 
necessary to maintain dispatch interoperable communication capabilities with both 
police and fire departments outside Oakland County and throughout the State of 
Michigan.  

 

 Oakland County currently has a contract with Advance Wireless Telecom for work 
and maintenance on the City of Troy’s dispatch consoles.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04g



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
March 16, 2009 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: OC Cooperative Agreement – Radio Interoperability Project 
 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 Funds for this equipment enhancement are available through the Police Department 
Contractual Services Account for Communications, #101.301.13.325.7802.095  

 
LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

 The health and safety of the community will continue to be enhanced.  (Outcome 
Statement #1) 

 
OPTIONS 

 City management and the Troy Police and Fire departments request approval and 
authorization to purchase the dispatch radio interoperable equipment from Advanced 
Wireless Telecom through the Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 
at an estimated cost of $10,587.00, as detailed on the attached quote dated 3/6/2009.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information submitted by:  Sgt. Donald Ostrowski  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – MPSCS InterfaceProject 03.09.doc 

   
 









 

 
  March 9, 2009 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance  
 
Background 

• On March 4, 2009, bids were received to complete the City of Troy Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for the following locations: JAYCEE PARK AND SYLVAN GLEN PARK. 

•  246 vendors were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN system; fourteen (14) bid 
responses were received. 

• Asphalt Specialists Inc, of Pontiac, MI was the low total bidder.  The project is being awarded 
on a low total basis due to bonding and insurance requirements. 

 
Financial Considerations  

• Funds are available in the 2008/09 Public Works Administration Municipal Parking Lots Capital 
Account # 401464.7974.165. 

 
Legal Considerations 

• ITB-COT 09-05 for Parking Lot Maintenance was competitively bid as required by City Charter 
and Code.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contracts and 
bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 
Policy Considerations  

• Moving this work forward will improve public safety and reduce liability for the City. (Outcome 
Statement I) 

• City owned parking lots are evaluated and placed on the program for proper maintenance and 
repair.  (Outputs for Priority Funding, J) 

 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works Department recommend awarding a contract for 
Parking Lot Maintenance Services to the low total bidder, Asphalt Specialists Inc, of Pontiac,.  
MI, for an estimated total cost of $77,355.40, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation, not 
to exceed budgetary limitations.  

 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.23.09 – SR1 – Parking Lot Maintenance 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04h



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-05
Opening Date -- 3/4/09 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 3/4/09 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
SL

Ck # 714273315 1250569846 212996
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  JAYCEE PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 34 LFT 10.00 340.00$            4.30 146.20$            10.00 340.00$            
2 3' Pavement Surface Milling by the curb 4,300 LFT 1.50 6,450.00$         1.35 5,805.00$         0.70 3,010.00$         
3 Pavement Repair* 315 SY 22.50 7,087.50$         21.90 6,898.50$         32.50 10,237.50$       
4 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 998 TON 51.00 50,898.00$       53.80 53,692.40$       55.90 55,788.20$       
5 Striping (Yellow /White) 752 LFT 0.10 75.20$              0.26 195.52$            0.30 225.60$            
6 Handicapped Parking Space & logo (Blue) 3 EA 15.00 45.00$              26.00 78.00$              25.00 75.00$              

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $      64,895.70  $      66,815.62  $      69,676.30 

TASK (2) SYLVAN GLEN PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,050 LFT 0.55  $        2,777.50 0.62  $        3,131.00 0.45  $        2,272.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 18,196 SY 0.45  $        8,188.20 0.47  $        8,552.12 0.405  $        7,369.38 
3 Striping (Yellow) 9,110 LFT 0.10  $           911.00 0.09  $           819.90 0.16  $        1,457.60 
4 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo 9 EA 15.00  $           135.00 18.20  $           163.80 35.00  $           315.00 
5 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo-Van 2 EA 15.00  $             30.00 20.80  $             41.60 35.00  $             70.00 
6 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 100 LFT 4.00  $           400.00 1.55  $           155.00 1.25  $           125.00 
7 Right Arrow (White) 1 EA 9.00  $               9.00 15.60  $             15.60 25.00  $             25.00 
8 Left Arrow (White) 1 EA 9.00  $               9.00 15.60  $             15.60 25.00  $             25.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $      12,459.70  $      12,894.62  $      11,659.48 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $      77,355.40  $      79,710.24  $      81,335.78 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 R i  12" A h lt P t & B  M t i l       $             15 00  $              4 30  $             75 00 

EST QTY

EST QTY

Asphalt Specialists, Inc James P. S & J Asphalt
Contracting Inc Paving Company

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials      $             15.00  $              4.30  $             75.00 
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             25.90  $             34.50  $             30.00 
3 Sub-grade Undercutting                                        $             12.00  $             16.00  $             35.00 
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)              $             20.00  $             33.40  $             30.00 
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface             $               2.00  $              2.00  $               0.95 
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C                       $             65.00  $             64.20  $             85.00 
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA                        $             70.00  $             78.00  $           100.00 
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA                     $             55.00  $             61.70  $           120.00 

Additional Prices Totals  $           264.90  $           294.10  $           475.95 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 7:30am - 5pm 7am-7pm 6:30am-9pm
24 Hr Phone # (248) 334-4570 (586) 915-7300 (734) 216-9592

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Bi-weekly Net 30 

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 3/2/2009 2/16/2009 2/26/2009
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Per Spec Per City Standard Net 30 

WARRANTY: Per Spec Per Contract 12 Months
Pricing for 1 paving mobilization

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Missing Pg2 Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N N Y Y

ATTEST:

Tom Rosewarne DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Diane Fisher

Marina Basta Farouk

Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPB G:ITB-COT 09-05 Parking Lot Maintenance

Purchasing Director

Per City Standard

Add $2,750 for 2 mobilizations

JUNE 30,2009

Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-05
Opening Date -- 3/4/09 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 3/4/09 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 173023 528396 714308384
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  JAYCEE PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 34 LFT 10.00 340.00$            0.80 27.20$              2.00 68.00$               
2 3' Pavement Surface Milling by the curb 4,300 LFT 0.750 3,225.00$         0.90 3,870.00$         1.45 6,235.00$          
3 Pavement Repair* 315 SY 33.60 10,584.00$       20.00 6,300.00$         24.00 7,560.00$          
4 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 998 TON 57.00 56,886.00$       62.00 61,876.00$       57.50 57,385.00$        
5 Striping (Yellow /White) 752 LFT 0.40 300.80$            0.40 300.80$            0.25 188.00$             
6 Handicapped Parking Space & logo (Blue) 3 EA 25.00 75.00$              25.00 75.00$              25.00 75.00$               

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1) **  $      71,410.80  $      72,449.00  $       71,511.00 

TASK (2) SYLVAN GLEN PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,050 LFT 0.65  $        3,282.50 0.65  $        3,282.50 0.58  $         2,929.00 

2 Double Seal Coat 18,196 SY 0.36  $        6,550.56 0.36  $        6,550.56 0.45  $         8,188.20 

3 Striping (Yellow) 9,110 LFT 0.15  $        1,366.50 0.15  $        1,366.50 0.20  $         1,822.00 

4 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo 9 EA 25.00  $           225.00 25.00  $           225.00 22.00  $            198.00 

5 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo-Van 2 EA 25.00  $             50.00 25.00  $             50.00 22.00  $              44.00 

6 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 100 LFT 1.00  $           100.00 1.00  $           100.00 1.20  $            120.00 

7 Right Arrow (White) 1 EA 30.00  $             30.00 30.00  $             30.00 20.00  $              20.00 

8 Left Arrow (White) 1 EA 30.00  $             30.00 30.00  $             30.00 20.00  $              20.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $      11,634.56  $      11,634.56  $       13,341.20 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $      83,045.36  $      84,083.56  $       84,852.20 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $             25.00  $             55.00  $              16.00 

2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             25.00  $             40.00  $              25.00 

3 Sub-grade Undercutting                                 $             30.00  $             10.00  $              45.00 

4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)      $             25.00  $             32.00  $              35.00 

5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface    $               5.00  $               1.00  $                1.50 

6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C                     $             65.00  $             62.00  $              70.00 

7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA              $             75.00  $             62.00  $              70.00 

8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA               $             80.00  $             62.00  $              75.00 

Additional Prices Totals  $           330.00  $           324.00  $            337.50 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 7am-7pm 8am-5pm M-F 7am-7pm M-Sat
24 Hr Phone # (248) 244-3300 (248) 431-1418 (248) 765-3109

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: 30 days upon completion Net 30 Days

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 3/3/2009 3/3/2009 2/27/2009
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Y Y Y

** Two moves add $5,000
All Calculations in BLUE note extension errors

JUNE 30,2009

Ajax Paving Industries, Inc
Company

EST QTY

EST QTY

                Blank

F.Allied Construction, Inc Nagle Paving

1yr Labor/Materials         1 year

         Blank

         30 Days

1 Yr labor/materials

Attached To Bid

30 days upon completion



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-05
Opening Date -- 3/4/09 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 3/4/09 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 837410336 53597 759826435
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  JAYCEE PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 34 LFT 5.59 190.06$            1.05 35.70$             2.00 68.00$              
2 3' Pavement Surface Milling by the curb 4,300 LFT 1.35 5,805.00$         1.05 4,515.00$        1.35 5,805.00$         
3 Pavement Repair* 315 SY 29.57 9,314.55$         29.80 9,387.00$        36.00 11,340.00$       
4 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 998 TON 56.84 56,726.32$       59.77 59,650.46$      64.58 64,450.84$       
5 Striping (Yellow /White) 752 LFT 0.12 90.24$              0.25 188.00$           0.27 203.04$            
6 Handicapped Parking Space & logo (Blue) 3 EA 17.91 53.73$              20.00 60.00$             5.00 15.00$              

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $      72,179.90  $     73,836.16  $      81,881.88 

TASK (2) SYLVAN GLEN PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,050 LFT 0.62  $        3,131.00 0.55  $       2,777.50 0.65  $        3,282.50 
2 Double Seal Coat 18,196 SY 0.50  $        9,098.00 0.48  $       8,734.08 0.45  $        8,188.20 
3 Striping (Yellow) 9,110 LFT 0.12  $        1,093.20 0.13  $       1,184.30 0.08  $           728.80 
4 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo 9 EA 17.91  $           161.19 10.00  $            90.00 5.00  $             45.00 
5 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo-Van 2 EA 17.91  $             35.82 15.00  $            30.00 5.00  $             10.00 
6 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 100 LFT 0.34  $             34.00 0.50  $            50.00 1.00  $           100.00 
7 Right Arrow (White) 1 EA 7.84  $               7.84 10.00  $            10.00 8.00  $               8.00 
8 Left Arrow (White) 1 EA 7.84  $               7.84 10.00  $            10.00 8.00  $               8.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $      13,568.89  $     12,885.88  $      12,370.50 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $      85,748.79  $     86,722.04  $      94,252.38 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials    $             50.00  $            30.00  $             40.00 
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             30.00  $            35.00  $             25.00 
3 Sub-grade Undercutting                                      $             20.00  $            35.00  $             25.00 
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)                $             30.00  $            35.00  $             25.00 
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface                $             10.00  $              5.00  $               1.25 
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C                                 $             88.00  $            52.00  $             60.00 
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA                          $             95.00  $            53.00  $             63.00 
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA                         $             99.00  $            54.00  $             64.58 

Additional Prices Totals  $           422.00  $          299.00  $           303.83 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 8am-4:30pm 6am-6pm 7am-5pm M-F
24 Hr Phone # (810) 343-4717 (248) 719-1687 (248) 318-6724

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Net 30 Days 

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 2/28/2009 2/25/2009 3/2/2009
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 30 Days

WARRANTY: 1 Yr

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank N/A 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Y Y Y

EST QTY

EST QTY

Paving Corp

Monthly for work completed

JUNE 30,2009

30 days from completion

1 yr L/M1yr from completion

T & M Asphalt Midwest Pavement 
Paving Inc Contracting, Inc.

Pro-Line Asphalt 

30 Days upon completion of work 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-05
Opening Date -- 3/4/09 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 3/4/09 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 759819388 714283401 837373748
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  JAYCEE PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 34 LFT 7.00 238.00$            1.00 34.00$               5.00 170.00$            
2 3' Pavement Surface Milling by the curb 4,300 LFT 1.40 6,020.00$         1.00 4,300.00$          2.50 10,750.00$       
3 Pavement Repair* 315 SY 33.30 10,489.50$       39.40 12,411.00$        41.00 12,915.00$       
4 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 998 TON 56.00 55,888.00$       66.10 65,967.80$        63.00 62,874.00$       
5 Striping (Yellow /White) 752 LFT 1.00 752.00$            0.25 188.00$             0.25 188.00$            
6 Handicapped Parking Space & logo (Blue) 3 EA 15.00 45.00$              25.00 75.00$               25.00 75.00$              

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $      73,432.50  $       82,975.80  $      86,972.00 

TASK (2) SYLVAN GLEN PARK UNIT UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,050 LFT 0.62  $        3,131.00 0.54  $         2,727.00 0.60  $        3,030.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 18,196 SY 0.47  $        8,552.12 0.41  $         7,460.36 0.41  $        7,460.36 
3 Striping (Yellow) 9,110 LFT 1.00  $        9,110.00 0.19  $         1,730.90 0.20  $        1,822.00 
4 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo 9 EA 15.00  $           135.00 20.00  $            180.00 20.00  $           180.00 
5 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo-Van 2 EA 20.00  $             40.00 20.00  $              40.00 20.00  $             40.00 
6 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 100 LFT 2.00  $           200.00 1.10  $            110.00 1.10  $           110.00 
7 Right Arrow (White) 1 EA 15.00  $             15.00 18.00  $              18.00 18.00  $             18.00 
8 Left Arrow (White) 1 EA 15.00  $             15.00 18.00  $              18.00 18.00  $             18.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $      21,198.12  $       12,284.26  $      12,678.36 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $      94,630.62  $       95,260.06  $      99,650.36 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials  $               8.00  $              25.00  $             15.00 
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             20.00  $              50.00  $             25.00 
3 Sub-grade Undercutting                                       $             14.00  $              30.00  $             50.00 
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)                $             18.00  $              50.00  $             25.00 
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface              $               5.00  $                1.00  $              4.25 
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C                                $             60.00  $            112.00  $             75.00 
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA                         $             65.00  $              69.30  $             80.00 
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA                        $             69.00  $              69.30  $             80.00 

Additional Prices Totals  $           259.00  $            406.60  $           354.25 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 7:30am-5pm 7am - 7pm 7am - 6pm 
24 Hr Phone # (734) 341-2498 (734) 216-0341 (734) 676-2020

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Net 30 Days 30 Days Blank

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y Y Y
                                Date Visited 3/2/2009 2/26/2009 3/2/2009
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days 30 Days Blank

WARRANTY: 1 Yr Blank 

EXCEPTIONS: Blank None Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Y Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Y Y Y

EST QTY

EST QTY

1 Yr labor & materials 

JUNE 30,2009

Al's Asphalt Paving Cadillac Asphalt LLC ABC Paving
Company, Inc Company



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-05
Opening Date -- 3/4/09 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 3/4/09 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE

VENDOR NAME:
 

Ck # 9094901564 28512
Ck Amt $2,500.00 $2,500.00

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

TASK (1)  JAYCEE PARK UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 4' Butt Joint 34 LFT 15.50 527.00$            0.81 27.54$              
2 3' Pavement Surface Milling by the curb 4,300 LFT 2.10 9,030.00$         0.81 3,483.00$         
3 Pavement Repair* 315 SY 42.45 13,371.75$       49.86 15,705.90$       
4 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 998 TON 68.30 68,163.40$       84.00 83,832.00$       
5 Striping (Yellow /White) 752 LFT 0.30 225.60$            0.25 188.00$            
6 Handicapped Parking Space & logo (Blue) 3 EA 27.00 81.00$              10.00 30.00$              

Estimated Total Cost – Task (1)  $      91,398.75  $     103,266.44 

TASK (2) SYLVAN GLEN PARK UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 Cracks & Joint Sealing 5,050 LFT 0.60  $        3,030.00 0.62  $        3,131.00 
2 Double Seal Coat 18,196 SY 0.57  $      10,371.72 0.585  $      10,644.66 
3 Striping (Yellow) 9,110 LFT 0.20  $        1,822.00 0.25  $        2,277.50 
4 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo 9 EA 25.00  $           225.00 5.00  $             45.00 
5 Handicapped Parking Space/Logo-Van 2 EA 25.00  $             50.00 10.00  $             20.00 
6 Stop Bars 12" Wide (White) 100 LFT 1.20  $           120.00 2.00  $           200.00 
7 Right Arrow (White) 1 EA 20.00  $             20.00 5.00  $               5.00 
8 Left Arrow (White) 1 EA 20.00  $             20.00 5.00  $               5.00 

Estimated Total Cost – Task (2)  $      15,658.72  $      16,328.16 

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL:  $     107,057.47  $     119,594.60 

ADDITIONAL PRICES SECTION:
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Removing 12" Asphalt Pavement & Base Materials    $             23.60  $               9.80 
2 Aggregate Base under Bituminous - 21 AA Limestone  $             39.00  $             20.00 
3 Sub-grade Undercutting                                        $             14.75  $             25.00 
4 Aggregate under Sub-grade (Cubic Yard)                 $             33.60  $             28.00 
5 Butt Joint & Cold-Milling Pavement Surface               $             12.50  $               0.81 
6 Bituminous Mix No. 500, 20C                                $             61.50  $           108.00 
7 Bituminous Mix No. 1100L, 20AA                          $             62.25  $             84.00 
8 Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA                          $             64.60  $             84.00 

Additional Prices Totals  $           311.80  $           359.61 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper 7am - 5:30 pm 24 Hours 
24 Hr Phone # (800) 750-0926 (248) 342-0101

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Blank

SITE INSPECTION:    Visited Site Y Y
                                Date Visited 3/3/2009 2/26/2009
                                Did Not Visited

COMPLETION DATE:     Can Meet Y or N Y Y

INSURANCE:             Can Meet XX XX
                            Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 15

WARRANTY: 1 yr 1 Yr

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Y or N Y Y

BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y

TWO FORMS COMPLETED: Y or N Y Y

JUNE 30,2009

Per Suppl Gen Conditions

Per Suppl Gen Conditions

EST QTY

EST QTY

John Carlo, Inc. Spartan Sealcoating, Inc



 

 
 
March 16, 2009 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

William Nelson, Fire Chief 
Gary Mayer, Acting Police Chief 

   Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

     
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment:  Medical Service Facilities 
 
Background 
 Since November, 2003, the City and Union Joint Fitness Committee has had authorization to use Crittenton 

Hospital to conduct TPOA biennial fitness testing. Resolution # (2003-11-591-F4)    
 In December, 2005, City Council designated Concentra, Crittenton Hospital and Bio-Care as authorized 

medical facilities to provide professional services to City of Troy personnel. Resolution # (2005-12-549-F3)  
 The amount spent at each facility varies greatly from year to year based upon the number of work related 

injuries, new hires, personnel leaving the City of Troy, and changes in regulations requiring additional 
services. 

 All three facilities have submitted new pricing for 2009 at or below prices established for 2008. 
 Due to the aggressive pricing received from Concentra, the City recommends amending the current 

contract to allow Concentra to complete all pre-employment physicals including police officers.  All other 
contract requirements will remain the same. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the various departments’ operating budgets. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 By establishing a contract to conduct physical fitness tests and related services, the City is abiding by the 1988 

arbitration ruling between the Troy Police Officers Association and the City.  
 
Policy Considerations 
 The health and safety of the community will be enhanced. (Outcome Statement I)   

 
Options 
 City management recommends City Council amend the contracts with Concentra of Troy, Crittenton Hospital of 

Rochester, and Bio-Care of Holt, MI, to provide ongoing professional medical services to City of Troy personnel 
at prices detailed on the attached tabulation and protocol reports to expire December 31, 2009, with annual 
adjustments allowed not-to-exceed 3% or the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area, 
whichever is lower. 

 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business –Contract Amendment – MedicalServiceFacilities 03.09.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



MEDICAL SERVICE FACILITIES 2009

SERVICE CRITTENTION CONCENTRA BIO‐CARE Inc. Beaumont 
POLICE DEPARTMENT
Pre‐Employment Physicals 414.45$                        368.25$                        310.00$                    885.00$                 
Includes:

Basic Physical Exam 30.00$                          28.00$                          50.00$                       200.00$                  
Basic Blood Panel 34.95$                          55.00$                          35.00$                       50.00$                    
Urine Analysis 15.00$                          Included in Blood Panel 10.00$                       10.00$                    
Hepatitis B Titer 34.75$                          60.75$                          35.00$                       50.00$                    
HIV Screen 45.00$                          30.00$                          45.00$                       25.00$                    
TB Test 12.00$                          16.00$                          20.00$                       25.00$                    
Chast PA 50.00$                          38.00$                          45.00$                       75.00$                    
Lumbar Spine 80.00$                          37.50$                          N/A 125.00$                  
Hearing Test 20.00$                          18.00$                          10.00$                       90.00$                    
Vision Test 15.00$                          17.00$                          10.00$                       125.00$                  
Tetanus Vaccination 25.00$                          20.00$                          25.00$                       60.00$                    
PFT 45.00$                          33.00$                          35.00$                       50.00$                    
Injection Fee 7.75$                             15.00$                          NC ‐$                        

Package 
Male Officers 693.95$                        $                      529.00* 310.00$                    1,295.00$              
Female Officers 656.70$                        $                      509.00* 285.00$                    1,235.00$              

Includes: *No OCC Med Profile *No stress test included

Comprehensive Physical 86 00$ 28 00$ 75 00$ 550 00$Comprehensive Physical 86.00$                          28.00$                          75.00$                       550.00$                  
Stress Test 375.00$                        300.00$                        N/A 350.00$                  
PFT 45.00$                          33.00$                          35.00$                       included
EKG Testing 40.00$                          43.00$                          40.00$                       included
CBC w/Differential 21.00$                          Included in Blood Panel 20.00$                       included
Basic Blood Panel N/A 55.00$                          N/A 250.00$                  
Urine Analysis 15.00$                          Included in Blood Panel 10.00$                       10.00$                    

** OCC Med Profile w/HDL               34.95$                          Included in Blood Panel 35.00$                       included
HIV Testing 45.00$                          30.00$                          45.00$                       25.00$                    
PSA Test (Male Only) 37.25$                          20.00$                          25.00$                       60.00$                    
Anti HB Core IGM 34.75$                          20.00$                          35.00$                       50.00$                    

FIRE DEPARMENT * Female Officers without PSA Test
Male Officers 764.20$                        547.00$                        260.00$                    1,385.00$              

* Female Officers 726.95$                        527.00$                        235.00$                    1,325.00$              
Detailed Physicals Exam ‐$                               ‐$                              50.00$                       550.00$                  
Includes: *No stress test included

Audiometry 20.00$                          18.00$                          10.00$                       90.00$                    
Pulmonary Function Test 45.00$                          33.00$                          35.00$                       included
Chest X‐Ray 50.00$                          38.00$                          45.00$                       75.00$                    
EKG Testing 40.00$                          43.00$                          40.00$                       included
CBC w/Differential 21.00$                          N/A 20.00$                       included
Blood Chemistry 24 34.95$                          55.00$                          35.00$                       250.00$                  
Urine Analysis N/A N/A N/A 10.00$                    
PSA Test (Male Only) 37.25$                          20.00$                          25.00$                       60.00$                    
BMI 55.00$                          12.00$                          NC included

C di St T t 375 00$ 300 00$ N/A 350 00$Cardiac Stress Test 375.00$                        300.00$                        N/A 350.00$                  
Medical Evaluation 86.00$                          28.00$                          ‐$                           included

Page 1 of 4



CRITTENTION CONCENTRA BIO‐CARE Inc. Beaumont 
FF Biological Monitoring Screening 153.50$                        $                       845.15* 365.00$                   
Includes *Not include HMS II

Heavy Metal Screening 103.00$                        155.50$                        70.00$                      
Heavy Metal Screening II N/A 235.00$                        N/A
Isocyanate Profile N/A 31.15$                          50.00$                      
Aromatic Solvent Profile N/A 450.00$                        100.00$                    
Polychlorinated Biphenyl's N/A 148.50$                        80.00$                      
Cholenesterase 50.50$                          60.00$                          65.00$                      

Fire Fighters's New Hire Physical *No stress test included

Male Officers 724.50$                        230.35$                        260.00$                    1,735.00$              
Female Officers 686.95$                        230.35$                        235.00$                    1,675.00$              

Includes: Detailed Physical Exams N/A N/A 50.00$                       550.00$                  
Audiometry 20.00$                          N/A 10.00$                       90.00$                    
Pulmonary Function Test 45.00$                          N/A 35.00$                       included
Chest X‐Ray 50.00$                          N/A 45.00$                       75.00$                    
EKG Testing 40.00$                          N/A 40.00$                       included
CBC w/Differential 21.00$                          N/A 20.00$                       included
Blood Chemistry 24 34.95$                          N/A 35.00$                       250.00$                  
Urine Analysis N/A Included in Blood Panel N/A 10.00$                    
PSA Test (Male Only) 37.25$                          N/A 25.00$                       60.00$                    
BMI 55.00$                          N/A NC included
Cardiac Stress Test 375.00$                        N/A N/A 350.00$                  

di l l i $ / / i l d dMedical Evaluation 86.00$                          N/A N/A included
Physical PrePlacement N/A 28.00$                          N/A included
10‐Panel Drug Test N/A 33.00$                          N/A 100.00$                  
X‐Ray Lumbar Spine ‐ 2 View N/A 37.50$                          N/A 125.00$                  
X‐Ray Chest ‐ 2 view N/A 38.00$                          N/A 75.00$                    
PFT N/A 33.00$                          N/A included
Hepatitis B Titer  867061 N/A 60.75$                          N/A 50.00$                    

FF Volunteer Post Incentive 30.00$                          572.50$                        N/A 1,100.00$              
 Includes: Basic Examination 30.00$                          N/A 200.00$                  

Physical ‐ Level 2 N/A 28.00$                          included
X‐Ray Lumbar Spine ‐ 2 View N/A 37.50$                          125.00$                  
X‐Ray Chest ‐ 2 view N/A 38.00$                          75.00$                    
PFT N/A 33.00$                          50.00$                    
Prostatic Antigen (PSA) N/A 20.00$                          60.00$                    
EKG Stress Test N/A 300.00$                        350.00$                  
EKG Resting N/A 43.00$                          75.00$                    
Basic Blood Panel N/A 55.00$                          50.00$                    
CBC w/Differential N/A Included in Blood Panel 15.00$                    
Urine Analysis N/A Included in Blood Panel 10.00$                    
Audiogram N/A 18.00$                          90.00$                    

OTHER SERVICES
Work Realted Injuries N/A N/A N/A

PPOM Discounted Fee Schedule Participant
Back‐Up Testing N/A

Workers' Compensation Cases PPOM Reimbursement N/A N/A N/A

Page 2 of 4



CRITTENTION CONCENTRA BIO‐CARE Inc. Beaumont 
RETURN TO WORK PHYSICALS   

Basic Exam 30.00$                          118.50$                        N/A 220.00$                  
Includes:Fit for Duty Phys ‐ Level 2 N/A 28.00$                         

Regulated UDS Collect N/A 13.00$                         
X‐Ray Lumbar Spine ‐ 2 View N/A 37.50$                          125.00$                  
EBT N/A 20.00$                         

DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING 68.00$                          20.00$                          N/A 100.00$                 
Includes: EBT 28.00$                          20.00$                         

5 Panel Drug test 40.00$                          N/A 100.00$                  

PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICALS (New Hires) 30.00$                          61.00$                          N/A 300.00$                 
Includes: Basic Examination 30.00$                          28.00$                          200.00$                  

10‐Panel Drug Screen N/A 33.00$                          100.00$                  

HEP B Vaccines  1st Injection 60.00$                          60.75$                          N/A N/A
HEP B Vaccines  2nd Injection 60.00$                          60.75$                          N/A N/A

RABIES ‐ 1st Injection 163.00$                        295.00$                        N/A N/A

SUMMER LABORER/INCLUDING LIFEGUARD ‐ RETURNING
Returning Physicals 300.00$                 

Basic Exam 30.00$                          81.00$                          N/A 200.00$                  
Includes: Physical Level 2 N/A 28 00$Includes: Physical Level 2 N/A 28.00$                         

MS Eval Back ‐ Level 1 N/A 18.00$                         
10‐Panel Drug Screen N/A 33.00$                          100.00$                  

SUMMER LABORER/LIFEGUARD ‐ New Hire 425.00$                 
PhysicaBasic Exam 30.00$                          98.50$                          N/A 200.00$                  
Includes: Physical Level 2 N/A 28.00$                         

10‐Panel Drug Screen N/A 33.00$                          100.00$                  
X‐Ray Lumbar Spinie ‐ 2 View N/A 37.50$                          125.00$                  

PRE‐SCHOOL TEACHER ‐ New Hire 325.00$                 
PhysicaBasic Exam 30.00$                          137.75$                        N/A 200.00$                  
Includes: Physical Level 2 N/A 28.00$                         

10‐Panel Drug Screen N/A 33.00$                          100.00$                  
TB Skin Test N/A 16.00$                          25.00$                    
HP B Vaccine  1st injection N/A 60.75$                         

Who to contact to set up Physicals:
   Name and Phone # Receptionist on duty Ana Brandea Ryan Rivard Kathy

248‐652‐5203 248‐524‐1912 800‐694‐6240 Ext 2 248‐551‐0530

Location of where the Physicals will take place:
Place Crittention Hospital Concentra Medical Center Beaumont Health Services

Address 1101 W. University Dr 627 E. Maple Road  Ste 200 At Department Sites 3535 West 13 Mile

Rochester, MI 48307 Troy, MI  48083 Royal oak, MI 48073

Any additional cost if Physicals are done off site: Variable:  Depending N/A
N/A on number of quantityN/A on number of quantity

ordered.

Page 3 of 4



CRITTENTION CONCENTRA BIO‐CARE Inc. Beaumont 
Where are your off site places:

Who to contact if done off site: Randy Schaeding N/A
(Name and Phone number) 248‐794‐2319

Crittention
Comments: ** Occupational Medicine

Profile includes:
Glucose, sodium, 
patasium, chloride,
cabondioxide, BUN, 
Creatinine, Calcium, 
Albumin, Globulin
albumin/globilin ratio,
total protein, bilirubin
total, alkaline phosphatase
AST, ALT, cholesterol,
HDL, cholesterol/HDL
ratio, triglycerides, LDL, LDH,
uric acid.

HIGHLIGHTED AREAS DENOTES RECOMMENDED FACILITIES

Page 4 of 4



















































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  December 19, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Banquets 
 
Resolution #2005-12-548 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Broomfield WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and 
Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2006 
Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 11, 2006); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2006 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 20, 2006). 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-3 Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities 
 
Resolution #2005-12-549 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the following medical facilities are DESIGNATED to provide 
professional services to City of Troy personnel: 
 
Concentra Medical Center Pre-employment physicals (excluding Police Officer), work 

related injuries, back-up testing, workers’ compensation 
cases, new firefighter’s physicals, return to work physicals, 
drug and alcohol testing and other work related medical 
services 

 
Crittenton Hospital Police Officer Pre-employment Physicals, and TPOA Bi-

annual Fitness Testing 
 
Bio-Care Haz-Mat Physicals, Medical Evaluations Fire Physicals, and 

Biological Monitoring Screening 
 
Staff will review pricing annually and adjustments may be allowed not-to-exceed the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area.   
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 



November 29, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:      John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

James Nash, Financial Services Director 
Fire Chief William Nelson 

  Police Chief Charles Craft 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 

  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

        
SUBJECT:     Agenda Item – Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends approval of the designated medical service facilities currently being used 
or with recommended changes for various medical services and emergencies:  
Facility  Recommended By 

Department(s) 
Services Provided Pricing 

 
Concentra Medical 
Center 

 
Human Resources, 
Risk Management, 
and Fire Department 
 

 
Pre-employment 
physicals (excluding 
Police Officer), work 
related injuries, back-up 
testing provider, 
worker’s compensation 
cases, new firefighter 
physicals, return to 
work physicals, drug / 
alcohol testing 
 

 
Prices for HR Physicals and work 
related injury treatment established 
by CMC Schedule  
 
Cost - Fire Fighter’s New Hire: 
$244.50 to $565.50* 
 
Cost - FF Volunteer Post Incentive: 
$291.08 to $611.08*  
*$320.00 Stress added or deleted 
depending upon FF 

 
Beaumont Executive 
Health Service 
 

 
Police Department 

 
Police Officer  
Pre-employment 
Physicals 
 

 
Prices range from 
$850 to $880/ physical  
New Quoted Price:  $500.00 
 
Recommend Change to  
Crittenton Hospital Due to Cost 
Savings: 
                             $366.70 / physical  

 
Crittenton Hospital 

 
Police Department 

 
TPOA Bi-annual 
Fitness Testing  
 

 
Approved by:   
Res. #2003-11-591 
$690 / Male Officer 
$665 / Female Officer 
 
Currently Expires: 12/31/05 
Extension:              12/31/06  

 
Bio-Care 
 

 
Risk Management, 
Police and Fire 
Departments 
 

 
Haz-Mat Physicals, 
Medical Evaluations 
Fire Physicals and 
Biological Monitoring 
Screening 

 
$30 / Pulmonary Function Test 
$15 / Medical Evaluation 
$250 / FF Physical 
$352 / FF Biological Monitoring   
           Screening 

 
     Page 1 of 3 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



Medical Services 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTER 
 
Although there are two Preferred Providers of Medical Services (PPOM) and Occupational Medical Facilities 
(OMF) in Troy (Henry Ford Medical Center and Concentra Medical Center), Concentra Medical Center has 
been the selected provider of choice since they staff an occupational doctor on site during City working hours.  
This provides immediate access by employees for job-related injuries, pre-employment physicals, and other 
medical services.  Henry Ford Medical Center brings in their occupational doctor from Hamtramck on an 
appointment only basis that does not fit the City’s service requirements. 
 
PPOM’s typically provide a 20%-25% discount on services provided for work related injuries.  Occupational 
Medical Facilities offer a full range of testing and medical services that are in compliance with MIOSHA 
requirements.  Since employees are regularly sent to the facility for various reasons, being within Troy’s 
borders offers a savings in down-time and travel time.   
 
 
BEAUMONT EXECUTIVE HEALTH SERVICE AND CRITTENTON HOSPITAL 
 
Beaumont Executive Health Service (BEHS) was designated as the provider of medical services for the City of 
Troy Police Department through a 1988 Police Officer’s Association arbitration ruling.  In 2001 through 
resolution #2001-07-379, BEHS was approved to conduct physical fitness tests and pre-test physicals.  Due to 
this, BEHS was also used for pre-employment physicals.  In 2003, through Resolution #2003-11-591, due to 
cost savings projections and agreement of the labor unions (allowable under the arbitration ruling), the physical 
fitness and pre-test physicals were moved to Crittenton Hospital.   
 
The pre-employment physicals continued to be conducted at Beaumont since few officers were hired.  The 
following chart shows the expenditures with BEHS that ballooned in the 2004-05 fiscal year due to the 
tremendous Police Department staff turnover.   
 

YEAR AMOUNT SPENT 
2001-2002 $1,459.45 
2002-2003 $1,480.00 
2003-2004 $4,030.00 
2004-2005 $16,300.00 
7/1/05 to Presen $0.00 

 
Due to projected cost savings and a consolidation of services, the Police Officer pre-employment 
physicals are to be moved to Crittenton Hospital with other required Police Department testing.  
 
 
BIO-CARE 
 
The Michigan Occupational Safety and Health Act mandates the City’s Respiratory Protection Program for 
employees using respirators in the course of their duties.  Bio-Care, Inc. was selected as the lowest cost 
provider through a quote process.  Since 2001, they have held the quoted prices firm for Medical Evaluations 
and Pulmonary Function Testing. Recently Henry Ford Hospital has begun to provide services needed for Fire 
Department physicals and monitoring but their pricing is at least $5 more per physical than Bio-Care.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Medical Services 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BIO-CARE - continued 
 
Another attractive service offered by Bio-Care is the ability to come on-site to do testing.  This is a real plus 
when dealing with the volunteer firefighters and employees from the DPW and P&R departments since 
downtime is at a minimum and there are no employee travel costs.  Bio-Care services have been cost effective, 
efficient, convenient, and compliant with State and Federal requirements, while most importantly, maintaining 
strict confidentiality with regards to our employee’s personal health information.  The amount spent in the 2004-
05 fiscal year was $7,687.00 but could approach $10,000 in future fiscal years. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The amount spent at each facility varies greatly from year to year based upon the number of work related 
injuries, new hires, people leaving City of Troy service, and changes in regulations requiring additional testing.  
The Police Department experienced tremendous turnover in the 2004-05 fiscal year and a large turnover is 
projected for fiscal year 2005-06 also.  Services provided to the Police Department that have historically not 
been over $10,000 may be close to this amount in future fiscal years.  Also, a minimal amount is spent annually 
at other medical facilities for special investigations drug testing, stress testing of volunteers, audiograms, and 
ambulance related emergencies where the employee is taken to the nearest full service hospital.   
 
Prices at listed facilities are in accordance with previously established price lists and subject to adjustment with 
City of Troy approval. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are budgeted in each department’s operating budget to cover these expenses.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES November 17, 2003 
 

- 10 - 

F-3 Sole Source – GPS Trackers and Related MAPX Software 
  
Resolution #2003-11-590 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Geonautics International is the sole source provider of the proprietary GPS 
Tracking System and related MAPX software; and 
 
WHEREAS, Geonautics has provided software and hardware for both the City of Troy and 
Oakland County which assist in many joint investigations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That MAPX software and related GPS Trackers be 
PURCHASED as an addition to the City of Troy’s surveillance system from Geonautics 
International, the sole source provider, at an estimated cost of $21,569.00. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Pryor, Eisenbacher   

F-4 Bid Waiver – TPOA Physical Examinations 
 
Resolution #2003-11-591 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, As a result of a 1988 Troy Police Officers Association/City of Troy arbitration ruling, 
physical fitness tests and pre-test physicals for the City of Troy Police Officers are required 
every two years, with all costs being absorbed by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, A City/Union Joint Committee selected Crittenton Hospital to conduct the physicals 
and testing; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to conduct physicals and related 
testing is hereby AWARDED to Crittenton Hospital for an estimated annual cost of $61,437.00, 
at unit prices provided in the pricing schedule identified as Attachment A dated November 5, 
2003, which expires December 31, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Pryor, Eisenbacher   

F-5 Contract Ratification – AFSCME (Hourly Employees) and City of Troy 
  
Resolution #2003-11-592 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  



November 6, 2003 
  
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 

 
Subject: Bid Waiver – TPOA Physical Examinations  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Department requests approval to award a contract to Crittenton Hospital to conduct 
pre-test physicals through 2005 at unit prices provided in the pricing schedule dated 
11/5/03 (Attachment A).  Crittenton Hospital was selected by the City/Union Joint 
Fitness Committee because of its price, proximity, and because the physical and stress 
tests can be conducted at the same time and location.  The TPOA physical 
examinations are included in the 2003-04 budget at an estimated annual cost of 
$61,437.00. 
 
BACKGROUND 
As a result of a 1988 TPOA/City arbitration ruling, a physical fitness test for police 
officers was established.  The terms of the award requires that the test and pre-test 
physical be given every two years, with all costs absorbed by the City.  Royal Oak 
Beaumont Executive Health has been used in years past. 
 
Per the arbitration, a City/Union Joint Fitness Committee was established to select a 
new location for the physicals and the testing components.  The fitness committee 
researched multiple locations for the up-coming pre-test physicals and selected 
Crittenton Hospital (Attachment B).  The fitness tests shall be conducted at the Training 
Center by the training section.   
 
HISTORY  
Per arbitration award, the fitness committee has the authority to select the facility to be 
used for physicals.  The fitness committee was formed and advised by Police Chief 
Craft to research the possibility of changing locations because of price increases and 
the issue of physical and stress tests being located at two different locations.   It is 
estimated that changing from Royal Oak Beaumont Executive Health to Crittenton 
Hospital will save approximately $53,799.00.  
 
Estimated $43,799 to be saved from direct costs difference between two facilities.  
Estimated $10,000 to be saved from overtime cuts by having stress test performed the 
same time as the physical. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Police Department budgets for Health Services – Physical 
Exams. 
Prepared by:  Officer Scott Salter 

City of Troy
F-04



 
ATTACHMENT A                                                  11/5/03 

 
CRITTENTON HOSPITAL – PRICING SCHEDULE – 2003 - 2005 
 

FULL TEST: PACKAGE RATE  

MALE OFFICERS $690.00 

FEMALE OFFICERS $665.00 

INCLUDES:  

COMPREHENSIVE PHYSICAL  

STRESS TEST  

PFT  

EKG RESTING  

CBC W/DIFFERENTIAL  

URINE ANALYSIS  

Occ MED PROFILE W/HDL CHOLESTEROL  

HIV TESTING  

PSA TESTING  (MALE OFFICERS ONLY)  

ANTI-HB COREIGM  

  

DELETIONS TO PROTOCOL WILL CHANGE THE ABOVE 
RATES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

STRESS TEST ($399.00) 

PFT (SPIROMETRY) ($  40.00) 

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER SURVEY 

 
 
Health Care 
Facility 

Services Provided Reason for Acceptance/ 
Denial 

Oakland 
University 
Health Center 

Complete comprehensive 
physical and Stress test 

Canceled program 

Henry Ford 
Medical Center 

Physicals Service not provided 

Royal Oak 
Beaumont  

Complete comprehensive 
Physicals and stress test 

Changed because of price 
increases, Stress test not offered in 
same location as physical, on 
different day 

Troy Beaumont Complete comprehensive 
physical and stress test 

Service not provided 

Detroit 
Receiving 
Hospital 

Complete comprehensive 
physical and stress test 

Declined because of distance to 
facility  

Providence 
Hospital  

Complete comprehensive 
physical and stress test 

Declined because of distance to 
facility 

Crittenton 
Hospital  

Complete comprehensive 
physical and stress test 

Accepted because of price, proximity 
to city, physical and stress test 
located at same location. 

St. Johns 
Hospital 

Complete comprehensive 
physical and stress test 

Declined because of distance to 
facility 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 
March 2, 2009 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Extension – Banquet Services 
 
 
Background 

• On October 21, 2002, Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to San Marino 
Club for banquet services with an option to renew the contract for three (3) additional 
years (Resolution #2002-10-570-E9).  On October 17, 2005, the option was exercised 
for an additional three (3) year period (Resolution #2005-10-474-D1) under the same 
prices, terms, and conditions expiring August 31, 2008.  
 

• San Marino Club has offered to extend the contract for our May 16, 2009, Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original 
contract.  

 
• The City of Troy currently enjoys a good business relationship with the San Marino Club 

and they offer quality products and services. San Marino has been very accommodating 
and after the May banquet, staff will solicit formal requests for proposals (RFPs) for 
future banquet services.  

 
Financial Considerations 

• Costs for the Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet are included in the Fire Department 
budget, Account #101.336.337.7882. 

• Due to expenditure reductions, the annual boards and committees banquet has been 
eliminated at an anticipated savings of $15,000.00 per year. 

 
Legal  Considerations 

• The Bulletin for Audits of Local Units of Government establishes guidelines in 
determining lawful and unlawful expenditures of public funds. 

• Under the section – Retirement / Recognition Functions – it states: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
March 2, 2009 
 
To:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Contract Extension – Banquet Services 
 
 
Legal  Considerations - continued 
 

“Retirement functions, gifts or plaques for employees or officials, recognition 
dinners for volunteer fire fighters or ambulance staff are usually not for a public 
purpose, therefore not an allowable expense.” 
 

• It could be interpreted that since the appreciation banquet has been a long standing 
event supported by the community; its practice therefore, an implied benefit and an 
exception to generally unallowable expenditures. 

 
Policy  Considerations 

• The City has sponsored an Appreciation Banquet for forty-two (42) years to recognize 
the service of our volunteer and on-call firefighters.  (Outcome Statement III) 

 
Options 

• City management recommends City Council approve the contract extension with the 
San Marino Club to provide banquet services for the 2009 Fire Appreciation Banquet on 
May 16, 2009, under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract at 
$39.00 per plate including gratuity.  

 
• Troy City Council denies the contract extension. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Regular Business – Contract Extension – Hall&BanquetSvc 03.09.doc 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final October 17, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Resolution #2005-10-473  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the M-1 to R-2 rezoning request, located on the south side of Woodslee 
Street, east of Rochester Road, Section 27, being 600 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal description and illustrated on the attached drawing: 
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 27 
 
Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 27; thence N 00°08’14” E, 899.83 ft. 
(recorded as N 01°32’25”E); thence N 89°41’56” W, 166.92 ft. (recorded as N 89°41’56” W) to a 
point on the east line of Stumpf’s Beech Grove Subdivision (Liber 32, pages 11 & 12 of Oakland 
County Plats); thence along said east line N 00°00’00” W, 123.01 ft. (recorded as N 01°24’11” 
E) to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing N 00°00’00” W, 120.00 ft.; thence S 89°45’00” 
E, 5.00 ft.; thence S 00°00’00E, 120.00 ft.; thence N 89°45’00” W, 5.00 ft. to the Point of 
Beginning.  Containing 600 sq. ft. of land, more or less, and subject to restrictions and 
easements of record. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Banquet Services 
 
Resolution #2005-10-474 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On October 21, 2002, a three-year contract to provide Banquet Services with an 
option to renew for three additional years was awarded to the highest scoring bidder, The San 
Marino Club (Resolution  #2002-10-570-E-9). 
 
WHEREAS, The San Marino Club agrees to exercise the option to renew the contract for three 
additional years. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the additional three-year option to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with the San Marino Club under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions expiring on August 31, 2008, at a per plate cost including gratuity of 
$39.00 for the two (2) appreciation banquets and $20.00 for the employee holiday party. 
  
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 



TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Banquet Services Back-up Information 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2005 
 
 
In response to City Council’s questions related to the annual City Banquets, attached is 
information from other surrounding communities related to their policies.  The total cost 
of our Fire Fighter Appreciation Banquet ($22,000) and the Boards & Committee 
Appreciation Banquet ($19,000) includes food, entertainment, gifts, printing of program 
and invitations, and mailing.  The family-style dinner including soup, salad, entree, 
dessert and open bar is $39.  The cost for the dinner alone would be $34.  Of the ten 
proposals sent out three years ago to local banquet facilities, we only received two back 
(San Marino Club and Petruzzello’s) and the latter facility did not have available dates 
for two out of three of our events.   
 
 
City of Novi:  They have an Appreciation Dinner.  Invites are issued to employees, and 
people serving on commissions and committees.  Approximately 350 attend.  There’s a 
sit-down dinner, cash bar only, music, dancing, framed certificates, and token gift. 
 
City of Sterling Heights:  They have appreciation banquets.  Alcohol is not served 
(they used to serve red and white wines with dinner—no longer do that), but alcohol is 
available/cash bar.  Last year, catering was approximately $40 per plate and does NOT 
include the awards, etc.  Last year, approximately 400 people attended and they spent 
about $13,000. 
 
City of Grosse Point Park:  They have an annual Holiday Party for employees and 
Board/Committee volunteers.  There is dinner, entertainment and open bar. 
 
City of Beverly Hills:  They have an annual banquet for Board/Committee volunteers 
with dinner, dancing and open bar. 
 
City of Southfield:  There is an appreciation PICNIC for members of Boards & 
Commissions, and also the presidents of the Neighborhood Associations.  The picnic is 
held every other year (to save money).  It is held at a pool and there is country band 
playing music.  Dress is casual—jeans.  BEER is served—from tapped kegs.  They 
spend approximately $10,000 for the event. 
 
City of Royal Oak:  There is no annual banquet because of budget constraints.  There 
is no set policy, so if individual committees want do a small recognition—it’s on their 
own (usually plaques for years of service). 



 
City of Auburn Hills:  There is no formal appreciation banquet.  The City puts on an 
annual “Ice Cream Social” but ALL residents are invited, not just committee/board reps. 
Held on City grounds, but no official recognition ceremony.  No alcohol. 
 
City of Rochester Hills:  They used to do an annual banquet.  Have NOT in the last 
couple of years because of “regulations.” 
 
City of Ann Arbor:  They do not do a formal recognition banquet.  They have over 80 
boards and commissions, so it’s too cost-prohibitive. 
 
City of Westland:  They usually do some sort of annual dinner or other event in the fall.  
For example, last year’s theme was a “drive-in” movie.  They showed a film on a big 
screen, and served hot dogs and candy.  About 300 show up.  There is NO alcohol 
available. 
 
City of Birmingham: They do a “Government Day Breakfast.”  They used to do a 
luncheon, but they get better turnout with the breakfast, about 125-150 attendees.  Cost 
$2,500 approximately.  No alcohol. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 
 
 



 
  September 27, 2005 
  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

     
Re: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew –

Banquet Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On October 21, 2002, the Troy City Council approved a three-year contract to 
provide Banquet Services with an option to renew for three additional years to 
the San Marino Club, the highest scoring bidder, as a result of a Best Value 
process (Resolution #2002-10-570-E9).  The Community Affairs Department 
recommends exercising the three-year option under the same prices, terms, and 
conditions.     
 
The San Marino Club (Ron Vendittelli, General Manager) has indicated a desire 
to continue the contract at the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original 
contract for three years expiring August 31, 2008 (letter attached).  Prices are 
$39.00 per plate for the two (2) appreciation banquets and $20.00 per plate for 
the employee holiday party. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
Due to the Best Value process used in evaluating this Request for Proposal, a 
market survey was not done since the City sets the cost per meal including 
gratuity.  Quality is a major component of this contract and the San Marino Club 
has been able to consistently deliver a quality product for our annual banquets as 
well as offer available dates for the events. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
This contract establishes the banquet services for the City of Troy Board & 
Committee Appreciation Banquet (February), Volunteer Fire Fighters 
Appreciation Banquet (May) and Employee Holiday Party (December).  Funds for 
these services are available in Accounts #748.7881, #337.7882 and the holiday 
party through commissions from the vending machines and employee ticket 
sales. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01







October 14, 2002 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process Award – Banquet Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On July 24, 2002, two (2) proposals were opened for a three-year contract for Banquet Services with an 
option to renew for three additional years.  Ten proposals were mailed to prospective bidders in Troy that 
were obtained from the Chamber of Commerce’s website of banquet / meeting facilities accommodating 
the expected number of participants for each event.  It is respectfully recommended that a contract be 
awarded to the San Marino Club, the bidder providing the best value with a final weighted score of 100.  
Unit prices were established in the request for proposal at $39.00 per plate for two (2) Appreciation 
Banquets and $20.00 per plate for the Employee Holiday Party.  Also, the San Marino Club was the only 
facility that had dates available for all three events.  If approved by Council, this proposal shall be 
awarded to the recommended bidder contingent upon submission of proper contract and proposal 
documents, including insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
       
SELECTION PROCESS 
A best value approach addresses ability, experience, and quality issues leading to a successful contract 
and reduction in risk of poor service for high profile banquet services for the Fire Fighter Appreciation 
Banquet, Boards & Committee Appreciation Banquet, and Employee Holiday Party.  The award 
recommendation was based upon the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of factors 
including date availability, menu selections, cleanliness, selection taste, physical appearance, 
professional competence, and table decorations/ linens.   
 
The prices were established by the City based upon the prices paid for these events over the past three 
years and the current budget.  This allowed an evaluation of the quality issues surrounding a banquet 
function.  The establishment of price to evaluate quality issues was also used on the P&R Department’s 
trophy and awards bid that garners the best “bang for the buck” spent.  After the bid opening, staff called 
the Northfield Hilton to inquire why they did not submit a proposal.  Their response was that the price 
established was too low and they did not want to commit to a multi-year contract.   
 
SUMMARY 
After completing the evaluation process, San Marino Club received the highest recommendations from 
the committee.  The San Marino Club’s attributes found by the rating committee include professional staff 
both administrative and service, central location, easier access to parking, wider variety of entrée choices, 
more aesthetically pleasing atmosphere; and their staff is attentive to detail, flexible, and works well with 
City staff.     
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the operating budget in the Community Affairs Department.  Although the City 
does not pay for the employee holiday party, it was added to the RFP to establish dates for all City 
functions and make the entire package more attractive to the facilities.  The employee holiday party is 
funded through profits from the vending machines and employee ticket sales. 
 
 
 
 
10 Proposals Sent 
  2 Proposal Responses Received 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
BANQUET SERVICES 

 
STATISTICS: 

u 10 RFP documents sent to prospective bidders 

 
u Locations were Troy facilities that were found on the 

Chamber of Commerce’s website for banquet/ meeting 

facilities that could hold the expected number of people 
attending City events including the Boards/Committees 

Appreciation Banquet, Fire Appreciation Banquet, and 
Employee Holiday Party  

 

u 2 responses were received 
 

u Per plate prices were set for the process based upon 
previous prices paid in order to determine the best value 
(banquet package) for price paid 

 
u The San Marino Club was the highest rated facility 

offering dates for all three listed events.  Petruzzello’s 
provided dates for one event, the Boards / Committees 
Appreciation Banquet.   

 
Both bidders submitted a proposal and met minimum qualifications.  They 

received the indicated final scores: 

 
COMPANY  SCORE 
San Marino Club 100 
Petruzzello’s   80 
 

 
SITE VISIT EVALUATION - SCORE: 
Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
1.   San Marino Club 100 100 100 100 
2.   Petruzzello’s   75   91   75   80 

 
 
 
G:/Best Value SR8 - RFP – Banquet Services - WeightedRatingSummary 10-02.doc 



CITY OF TROY RFP 02-32

Opening Date -- 7/24/02 BID TABULATION

Date Prepared -- 8/2/02 RFP FOR HALL/BANQUET SERVICES

FIRM NAME: SAN MARINO CLUB PETRUZZELLO

PROPOSAL ONE $39/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES YES

PROPOSAL TWO $39/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES NO

PROPOSAL THREE $20/PLATE: FILLED OUT (Yes or No) YES NO

AWARD:  DISCOUNT FOR ALL BANQUETS: BLANK BLANK

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX

Cannot meet

TERMS: BLANK BLANK

WARRANTY: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

PROPOSAL:  Provide Three (3) Year Requirements of Hall/Banquet Services with an Option to 

Renew for Three (3) Additional Years

ATTEST:

  MaryAnn Hays

  Cindy Stewart

  Linda Bockstanz ____________________________

Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:RFP 02-32 HALL-BANQUET SERVICES



MINUMUM REQUIREMENTS / SITE VISIT EVALUATION – HALL / BANQUET SERVICES (OPERATOR) 

        RATER 1 
VENDORS 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CITY/ STATE/ ZIP: 
PHONE / FAX NUMBER:           

OBJECTIVES:   A     B        C 

MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENTS  

Pass / Fail 
 

INFORMATION Pass/ 
Fail 

 INFORMATION Pass/ 
Fail 

 INFORMATION Pass/
Fail 

 

    1. Date Availability                     
    2. Menu Selections                   
    3. Capacity  
          Boards, Etc. Appreciation (275) 
          Fire Appreciation (350) 
          Employee (275) 

         

    4. INSURANCE           
    5. Cleanliness 
       COMMENTS 
     Bathrooms 
     Dining Room 
     Guest Receiving Area 
     Food Prep Areas 

         

OBJECTIVES 
WEIGHTED CRITERIA 

INFORMATION Pass/ 
Fail 

RATING 

 
0 -> 25 

INFORMATION Pass/ 
Fail 

RATING 

 
0 -> 25 

INFORMATION Pass/
Fail 

RATING 

 
0 -> 25 

1.  TASTE / TYPE OF 
SELECTIONS 

COMMENTS 

         

2.  Physical Appearance  
     POSITIVE /  
     NEGATIVE  

         

3.  Professional Competence  
     POSITIVE /  
     NEGATIVE  

         

4.  Table Decorations / Linens 
     POSITIVE /  
     NEGATIVE  

         

RATINGS:  25 = MAXIMUM; 0 = LOW    PERFECT SCORE:  100 POINTS    G:/RatingForm – Banquet Services 07-02.doc 



AMERICAN POLISH CULTURAL CENTER

2975 E MAPLE

TROY  MI  48083

ELKS LODGE OF TROY

1451 E BIG BEAVER RD

TROY  MI  48083-1968

MSU MANAGEMENT EDUCATION CENTER

811 W SQUARE LAKE ROAD

TROY  MI  48098

NORTHFIELD HILTON

ATTENTION: RANDY ANNIS CATERING

5500 CROOKS ROAD

TROY  MI  48098-2898

PETRUZELLOS

6950 ROCHESTER

TROY  MI  48085

SAN MARINO CLUB

1685 E BIG BEAVER

TROY  MI  48083-2020

SKATE WORLD OF TROY

2825 E MAPLE

TROY  MI  48083

SOMERSET INN

2601 WEST BIG BEAVER ROAD

TROY  MI  48084

TROY MARRIOTT

200 W BIG BEAVER

TROY  MI  48084

WALSH COLLEGE

3838 LIVERNOIS

TROY  MI  48083



campbellld
Text Box
F-07















campbellld
Text Box
F-08















campbellld
Text Box
F-09





















campbellld
Text Box
F-10





















 

 
 
March 17, 2009 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item:  Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached please find a request from Don Pierce, President, Troy Racquet Club, requesting 

approval of the rates for the 2009-2010 season.   
 The lease between the City of Troy and the Troy Racquet Club, LLC requires City Manager or City 

Council approval of requests for rate changes.  Council has historically approved rate change 
requests.   

 No increase to resident memberships is proposed.   
 A decrease to non-resident memberships is proposed.   
 A two dollar ($2.00) per hour increase to hourly rates is proposed for early morning weekday court 

time.  No other hourly rate increases are proposed.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations to the City.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations. 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends approval of the proposed 2009-2010 rates for the Troy Racquet 

Club.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11







 

 
 
March 17, 2009 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing, Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats 
  Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 300 John R 
 
 
 
Background: 
 

 We have received an application from Tom Stegeman, manager of Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps  located at 300 
John R, for outdoor dining for 40 seats in conjunction with the their restaurant. 

 They currently have approval for outdoor seating for up to 20 seats per Section 21.25.02 

 The use of property in question is located in the B-2 (Community Business) Zoning District. 

 Section 21.30.05 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance allows outside seating areas in excess of 20 seats as a 
use permitted subject to Special Use Approval by City Council (in lieu of the Planning Commission) in the 
B-2 Zoning District. 

 The procedure for Special Use Approval requires that a public hearing be held on the matter. 

 A public hearing is scheduled for your meeting of April 6, 2009. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 A public hearing on the matter is required per Sections 3.30.00 and 21.30.05. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 
 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life venues. 

(Outcome II) 
 
Options: 
 

 There are no options at this time. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a









CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 30, 2008 
 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held June 30, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Daniel Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:03 PM. 

 
ROLL CALL:   
 PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Maryann Bernardi, Daniel Bliss, Jerry E. 

Bloom, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 
 ABSENT: Mark Solomon 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew, 
 Deputy City Clerk Barbara Pallotta  

 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBER:  
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-006 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Solomon be EXCUSED from the meeting of June 30, 2008.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: May 22, 2007 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-007 
Moved by Kanoza 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of May 22, 2007 are hereby 
APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS: 
 
SECTION 6.2(g) –VACANCIES IN ELECTED OFFICE 
 
Member Bernardi sees a contradiction in the proposed ballot language that was previously 
approved by the Committee. 
 
Chair Bliss briefly reviewed the committee review process. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 30, 2008 
 

-2- 

Proposed Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 
6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elected Office – Troy City Charter 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the proposed 
ballot language to amend Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies In Elected Office of the Troy City 
Charter for referral to City Council as follows: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in 
elective office, be revised to allow members of Council, whose terms are 
expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their 
own without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council 
whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition 
for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from 
their current Council position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal 
election.”? 

 
YES ___ NO ___ 

A brief discussion continued on the proposed wording. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 6.2(g) 
– Vacancies in Elected Office – Troy City Charter 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-008 
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Kanoza 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the proposed 
ballot language to amend Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies In Elected Office of the Troy City 
Charter for referral to City Council as follows: 
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER SECTION 6.2 – 
VACANCIES IN ELECTIVE OFFICE 
Shall Section 6.2 of the Troy Charter, which discusses vacancies in 
elective office, be revised to allow members of Council, whose terms are 
expiring at the next municipal election, to file for an office other than their 
own without resigning from Council by deleting the wording of the current 
Section 6.2(g) in its entirety and inserting “Any member of City Council 
whose term is not expiring at the next municipal election, filing a petition 
for any City elective office, except to succeed oneself, shall resign from 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 30, 2008 
 

-3- 

their current Council position prior to the filing deadline of the municipal 
election.”? 
 

YES ___ NO ___ 
 
Yes: Barno, Bliss, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: Bernardi, Bloom 
Absent: Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 
 
It was explained the reason this item is back before the Committee is due in part because 
members requested that the entire committee be present to review the proposed 
language. It was explained that the same initiatory petitions are immediately submitted to 
the Attorney General for approval upon validation of signatures. However, the Attorney 
General will only approve ballot language if it is in the form of a question. Four City 
Council members could approve a modification of the form of the proposed ballot 
language. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve Proposed Ballot Language to Amend Section 9.16.5 
– Millage Rate Levy Limitation – Troy City Charter 
 
Resolution #CR-2008-06-009 
Moved by Bloom  
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee hereby RECOMMENDS the 
modification of the form of proposed ballot language to amend Section 9.16.5 – Millage 
Rate Levy Limitation of the Troy City Charter for referral to City Council proposed by City 
Administration as follows:  
 

A PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE TROY CITY CHARTER BY ADDING 
SECTION 9.16.5 – MILLAGE RATE LEVY LIMITATION 
Shall Section 9.16.5 regarding Millage Rate Levy Limitation, be added to 
the Troy City Charter as follows: 

“Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation: 
The Council shall not increase the millage rate imposed 
pursuant to Section 9.16 of this charter above a current rate 
actually imposed, levied, and collected unless the increased 
rate shall be first approved by a majority of the City electors 
voting on the question.”? 
 
YES ___ NO ___ 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Final June 30, 2008 
 

-4- 

Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
No: None 
Absent: Solomon 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Robert Gosselin -Questioned the validity of the opinion that the petition must be in  
  the form of a question. 
 -Disagreed with comments made in regard to the circulation of  
  petitions in an article in the Observer Eccentric. 
Audre Zembrzuski -Discussed the language in Section 6.2(g)-Vacancies 
  In Elected Office of the Troy City Charter and how it impacted a  
  a former City Council Member and therefore disagrees with the  
  action taken today in regard to the proposed ballot language. 
Edward Kempen -Expressed his appreciation for the hard work of City Staff and the 
  Charter Revision Committee for being a part of the democratic  
  process in bringing forward the issue from the petition to the voters.  
Frank Howrylak  -Expressed his appreciation in the approval of the proposed ballot 
  language for Section 9.16.5 – Millage Rate Levy Limitation. 
 -Disagreed with comments made in regard to the circulation of  
  petitions in an article in the Observer Eccentric 
John Witt -Discussed the value and legitimacy of petitions as a means to place  
  a question on the ballot. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting ADJOURNED at 3:58 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Daniel Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held September 26, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 7:32 
AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan 
ALSO PRESENT: None 

Approval of Minutes: June 30, 2008 
 
Resolution # EC-2008-09-008 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of June 30, 
2008, as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Citizen Petition Initiated Ballot Language:  
 
City Clerk Bartholomew presented the proposed ballot language to the Commission. 
  
Resolution # EC-2008-09-009 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Citizen Initiated Petition Initiated ballot language for the November 4, 
2008 General Election, as submitted by the City Clerk, is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, November 4, 2008 General 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2007-09-010 
Moved by Anderson 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 
 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the Tuesday, November 4, 2008 
General Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 AM. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2008  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on December 17, 2008 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Geon Woo Kim called the meeting to order at 7:03 
p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo  

Disha Bora 
Geon Woo Kim (Chair)  
Jason Lee 
Jennifer Liang 
Joseph Niemiec (Secretary)  
Sevita Rama 
Neil Shaw 
Rachita Singh 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Vikram Prasad, Shaina Sekhri, Emily Wang and David Wylie 
VISITORS: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2008-12-17 
 
 Moved by   Liang 

  Seconded by  Shaw 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 22, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 8 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  5 – Bora (late),Prasad, Sekhri, Wang, Wylie   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   Presented information regarding: 
    Community Affairs Department 
    Responsibilities include: 

New resident packets, brochures, cable broadcasts, calendar 
and other communications with the public. 

         
5. Teens Taking Action  

No Update 
 
6. Troy Daze 

No Update 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   December 17, 2008  
 

 2

   
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  

 
No Motion 

 Resolution # TY-2008-12-18 
  Moved by  Rama   
  Seconded by  Adamo 

  
RESOLVED that Prasad, Sekhri, Wang and Wylie are excused. 

  Yes:   9  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   4 -  Prasad, Sekhri, Wang, Wylie 
 
       
8. Youth Council Comments – None  

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    

 
 

10. Adjournment –   8:10 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Geon Woo Kim, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: January 28 at 7:00 P.M.  



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL JANUARY 5, 2009 
 
This meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday, January 
5, 2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:32 
P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Paul Lin 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
   Linda Rivetto 
    
  ABSENT Bob Miller 
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
  
      

Resolution #HDSC-2009-01-001 
Moved by Rivetto 
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Miller be excused  

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Lin, Harris-Freeman and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution #HDSC-2009-01-002 
Moved by Lin 
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 2, 2008 be approved  

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Lin, Harris-Freeman and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Above Ground Surveys 
Linda Rivetto has the survey for 90 W. Square lake Road completed.. 
 

B. Request to Delist 5875 Livernois 
The preliminary report was sent out for review. 

  
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



2 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Request to delist 4800 Beach Road 

Because there is extensive material in the file, Loraine will have copies of the file 
made and distributed to the committee for review before the next meeting. 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:30 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, February 3, 2009 at 7:00 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
               Chairman 
 

 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 8, 2009 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Jan. 8, 2009 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:05PM. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member  
 Frank Shier, Member   
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 Betty Coven, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Escused: Jo Rhoads, Pauline Noce, Merrill Dixon 
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Nino Licari 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2009-01-001 
Moved by Betty Coven 
Seconded by Frank Shier 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 6, 2008 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 6  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed upcoming school district events and news. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Traffic:  Mr Berar informed the committee about Senator Pappageroge’s proposed bill that will 
give drivers with minor traffic citations an alternative to points on their driver’s license.  They 
would be required to complete a certified basic driver improvement course and pay all fees 
associated with the course.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there were two suggestions to air the chair exercise 
class on cable TV.  She is checking with the cable department to see if this can be done.  
There were two suggestions to list the benefits of the Senior Fitness class in the newsletter to 
get more participants.  Carla reported that she does include articles about the benefits of 
exercise at least a couple of times a year in the newsletter although not specific to that class.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 8, 2009 

2 

We have printed testimonials about specific classes and she will talk to the Senior Fitness 
class participants about that.  There was one suggestion for evening senior programs and 
Carla handed out a flyer detailing the 15 programs for seniors that are offered in the evening.  
This person wanted a current events discussion group in particular.  A similar daytime group 
folded last year, but Carla will see if there is interest in an evening group.  There was one 
comment that the snow and ice is not cleared from the handicapped parking spaces.  This was 
forwarded to the parks superintendent and he has addressed the issue.  
 
Property Taxes:  The Committee invited City Assessor Nino Licari to talk about property 
taxes, specifically if they could be paid by the month.  He said that they could be paid by the 
month, but he does not recommend it as people tend to fall behind.  He also discussed how 
seniors can defer their taxes, how they can qualify for a poverty exemption, how they can 
dispute their assessment, and how foreclosures in the neighborhood affect home values.   He 
encouraged seniors to call him if they had any additional questions. 
 
Advisory Board Reference Book:  Mr. Berar brought up some questions as to whether 
certain guidelines outlined in that book were being followed, and it was determined that they 
were.     
 
Bylaw Amendment:  The Committee decided to revert to monthly meetings except July, 
August and December and the following resolution was passed: 
 
Resolution # SC-2009-01-002 
Moved by Betty Coven 
Seconded by Jim Berar 
 
RESOLVED, That the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens meet every month except July, 
August and December. 
 
Yes: 6  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
   
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that HAP is sponsoring the aquatic exercise class again this 
winter.  An intergenerational pickleball tournament was held on December 28 and it was full 
with 32 teams.  SHARP is helping seniors install their digital TV boxes.  SHARP has received 
a community service award from the Michigan Recreation and Parks Association. 
 
Medi-Go:  No report. 
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Jan. 8, 2009 

3 

 
Comments 
 
Jim Berar read highlights from a newspaper article about tax changes. 
David Ogg announced that Beaumont has a new oncology hospice. 
Frank Shier announced that the Heart of the Hills Players have a show called Funny Stuff 
coming up at the Troy Community Center. 
JoAnn Thompson expressed frustration about her driveway being plowed in when the streets 
are plowed. 
Betty coven announced that those over age 70.5 do not have to take the required minimum 
distribution out of their IRA in 2009. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL FEBRUARY 3, 2009 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
February 3, 2009 at the Troy Museum. 

 
 
The next regular meeting will be held, Tuesday, March 3, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, February 4, 2009 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES MEETING OF JANUARY 7, 2009 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 7, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  PHILLIPS SIGN & LIGHTING, 1850 W. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect six (6) walls signs with a total 
combined area of 172 square feet. 

Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect six (6) 
wall signs with a total combined area of 172 square feet.  The proposed signs include 
one sign that is 56 square feet, two signs that are 18 square feet, two signs that are 28 
square feet and one sign that is 24 square feet.  Chapter 85.01.05 (C) (5) allows three 
(3) wall signs, one of which shall not exceed 100 square feet; the other two (2) shall not 
exceed 20 square feet.  
 
In 1999 a variance was approved by the Troy City Council, for wall signs that included 
two signs that were 43 square feet, two signs that were 22 square feet, one 36 square 
foot sign, and one 34 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Scott Riddle of Somerset GMC and Mr. Ed Phillips of Phillips Sign & Lighting were 
present. 
 
Mr. Phillips explained that the variance granted in 1999 was for 207 square feet and a 
total of six (6) signs.  They have reduced the size of the signs and therefore have 
reduced the amount of signage by 32 square feet.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what it was about this facility that would require a variance. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the reason for this request was due to the GM logo. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that in order for a variance to be granted, there has to be a 
hardship peculiar to this site that would justify granting a request. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that he feels the signage is necessary as this facility fronts on both 
Maple and Maplelawn and in order to remain competitive this signage is necessary.  Mr. 
Riddle had a depiction of the site and indicated that there would also be a “Good 
wrench” sign over the service area. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if all of these buildings were separate or connected. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they are all interconnected and they have combined GMC and 
Pontiac.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the signs were already on the building. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that in order to meet their commitment to GM the facility, including 
signage, had to be completed by December 31, 2008.  If the signs were not installed 
they would not have complied with the requirements of GM. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that the petitioner had come to City Hall to speak with him and 
indicated what the problem was and asked what would happen if the signs went up 
before permits were obtained.  Mr. Evans told the petitioner that he would have to apply 
for a variance to this Board and all enforcement would be stopped until their case was 
heard. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the petitioner would do if this request was denied. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they would remove the signs.  Mr. Riddle also informed the Board 
that the signs located on the glass in the building would be coming down. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the “Good wrench” sign could be made smaller. 
 
Mr. Phillips indicated that the proposed size of this sign is the smallest available.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if any of the other signs could be made smaller and Mr. Phillips said 
that they couldn’t be made any smaller. 
 
Mr. Riddle also stated that the size of the Logo over the entryway is what GM says is 
scaled to the entry feature. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if all dealerships were to have the same size signs. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that the dealer has no say in the size of the signs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the total square footage of the proposed signs would be. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that it is 171.86 square feet. 
 
Mr. Stimac said depending on how the Logo sign was measured they would end up with 
more square footage but with less number of signs.  Combining the three (3) sign 
elements over the front door the combined area may be less than 100 square feet. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the variance granted in 1999. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that based upon the minutes of the meeting, City Council had granted 
the original variance as they felt the petitioner met the requirements of their request. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that the original signs were larger and were two (2) colors.  They have 
cleaned up the front of the building and the proposed signs are much simpler and 
consist of white lettering. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked how large the Somerset signs are. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that they are 20 square feet and they have one facing Maple and the 
other facing Maplelawn. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Phillips said that in his opinion one of the hardships is identification of the dealer 
and brand.  The “Good wrench” sign will aid in directing customers to the service area of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if there were other signs on the property. 
 
Mr. Riddle stated that there is a pylon sign on Maple. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that is his opinion this site is identifiable and believes because it is on 
the corner of Maple and Maplelawn it has some of the best exposure in this area.  Mr. 
Kessler asked if there were any plans to change the pylon sign. 
 
Mr. Phillips said there are no plans to change the existing pylon sign. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Phillips Sign & Lighting, 1850 W. Maple relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
install six (6) wall signs with a total combined area of 172 square feet where Chapter 
85.01.05 (c) (5) allows three (3) wall signs, one of which shall not exceed 100 square 
feet; the other two (2) shall not exceed 20 square feet. 
 

• Configuration of building creates a hardship as it fronts on two (2) main streets. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  SENTRY SECURITY SYSTEMS, 1163 
SOUTER, for relief to install an electrified security fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to electrically 
charge a 10’ high fence at 1163 Souter to act as a security barrier.  Paragraph 4 of 
Chapter 83, prohibits electrically charged fences on any property throughout the City. 
 
Ms. Cindy Vaughan of Sentry Security Systems, LLC and Mr. John Westendorf of Old 
Dominion Freight Lines were present. 
 
Ms. Vaughan explained that this company is based in South Carolina and provides this 
type of fencing to provide security for commercial businesses as well as for personnel 
located on site.  This fence will provide a “jolt” to anyone touching it, but will not 
physically harm anyone.  It is used mainly as a deterrent and 95% of the customers felt 
that after the fence was installed, the sign indicating that the fence was electrically 
charged with 7,000 volts of electricity scared people away.  The fence sends out pulse 
electricity every 1.3 seconds.  This site has had three (3) break-ins in the last year and 
quite a bit of equipment has been stolen. 
 
Chief Nelson asked what happens in an emergency situation and explained that other 
businesses in Troy that have security fences, provide a lock box for the Police and Fire 
Department. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that anytime the circuit is broken an alert will sound to the security 
company.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that they have lock boxes available and it would not 
be a problem to provide one in this instance.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that if there was 
an emergency they could just “bust” through the fence. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Chief Nelson also stated that he had spoken to the Police Chief regarding this type of 
fencing and the Police Chief was not familiar with it. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated he had watched the DVD provided by the petitioner and asked if a 
live wire on the fence would charge the entire fence. 
 
Ms. Vaughan explained that the electric fence is attached at the gate and runs about 6” 
inside the perimeter fence.  Ms. Vaughan also stated that the electricity looks for the 
quickest way to ground. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if Mr. Stimac had any historic knowledge regarding the Fence 
Ordinance and electrically charged fences. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he did not have any specific knowledge on the development of 
those provisions of the Ordinance; however, the Fence Ordinance was established in 
the 70’s and since that time electrically charged fences have been prohibited. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that typically electrically charged fences were used for livestock. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked about the difference between a taser and this fence. 
 
Ms. Vaughan referred to page 13 of the company manual and stated that a taser gives 
out a jolt of electricity 19 times per second, whereas, this fence gives a jolt of electricity 
1.3 times a second.  Due to the shortness in duration of each jolt of electricity physical 
injury is practically non-existent. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were other cases regarding electrically charged fences. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that some time earlier this same question came up regarding a property 
on Park Street and although the variance was granted, the petitioner did not electrically 
charge the fence.  Mr. Stimac asked how far from the perimeter fence this security 
fence would be installed. 
 
Ms. Vaughan stated that it would be installed within 6” of the perimeter fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that right now there is about 3’ of snow piled against the perimeter 
fence and asked how that would affect the electric fence. 
 
Mr. Westendorf stated the alarm they have now has gone off once because of a snow 
plow coming too close, but other than that the snow has not affected the fence. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possibilities of what could happen if a vehicle bumper 
were to come in contact with the electric wire and whether or not that vehicle would 
become electrically charged. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Vaughan wasn’t sure but did say an audible alarm would go off and there could be 
a quick jolt of electricity, but she did not feel anyone would be harmed physically.  Ms.  
Vaughan also stated that this fence is in compliance with the International Standard for 
Electric Security Fences and runs off a typical marine battery. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Chief Nelson stated that the Police Chief was not aware of any crime problem in this 
area and said that there are a number of truck terminals in the City.  If a variance is 
granted for this fence, it could be precedent setting and a number of other Companies 
could ask for the same type of variance. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if there were any electrically charged fences in any of the 
communities surrounding Troy. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that she has just submitted an application to Bloomfield Hills.  Sentry 
Security retains liability and there is a service tech in the area.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he would like to know if there are any other locations in 
southeast Michigan that has allowed this type of fencing to be installed, and whether or 
not they were allowed based on a variance or an Ordinance change. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that one of the requirements is that there is an existing perimeter 
fence and sometimes Cities will have them registered as a Burglar Alarm and some 
Cities have changed their Ordinance to allow for this type of fencing. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how high the fence was. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that it is 10’ high, which is considered to be an optimal height.   
 
Chief Nelson said that he thought this matter should be postponed to allow some time to 
get a list of existing fences in Michigan and to be able to contact other jurisdictions to 
see how they handled this type of fencing.  Chief Nelson also said that he would like to 
discuss this more thoroughly with the Police Chief. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he understands the petitioner needs an answer but also thinks 
that more time and information is needed to make an informed decision as to what is 
best for this Community. 
 
Ms. Vaughan said that the best way is to change the Ordinance and indicated that she 
would be more than willing to work with the City in getting the Ordinance changed. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 4, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that it would have to be determined if this is something that is 
appropriate for Troy. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it would take a lot of work to change the Ordinance versus a 
variance.  Without a specific hardship, he also believes that granting a variance could 
be precedent setting.   
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Sentry Security Systems, LLC, 1163 Souter, for 
relief to install an electrified security fence until the next regularly scheduled meeting of 
March 4, 2009. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to present a list to the Board members of 
other electric fences in southeast Michigan. 

• To allow Board members to contact other communities that have allowed this 
type of fencing to see what steps they have taken. 

• To allow the Fire Department and Police Department the opportunity to gather 
further information on this type of fencing. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL MARCH 4, 2009 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – PREVIOUS ACTION. 150 – 250 – 350 STEPHENSON.  
 
Discussion regarding conditions placed on the variances granted by the Building Code 
Board of Appeals at their meetings of November 7, 2007, May 7, 2008 and June 4, 
2008.  Copies of the minutes of the meeting as well as a photo of the existing ground 
sign are provided for your reference. 
 
The Board determined that when the original variances were granted, it was with the 
stipulation that there would be no ground signs identifying the businesses that were at 
these locations.  This was intended to include a restriction on the type of sign that has 
been installed.  A letter will be sent to each petitioner giving them the option of removing 
these names on the ground sign, or filing a second appeal with this Board. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:40 A.M. 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 10, 2009, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-013 
Moved by:  Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-014 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 3, 2009 Special/Study 
Meeting as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:36 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. PRESENTATION OF SERVICE COMMENDATION – Bill Cowger, Acacia 
Photography 
 
Mr. Cowger was not present to accept the commendation.  Chair Schultz read the 
commendation. 
 
 

[Mr. Vleck arrived at 7:36 p.m.] 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 364) – Pet Suite Retreat, 
Commercial Kennel, East side of Bellingham, North of Brinston (2300 Bellingham), 
Section 2, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
The petitioner distributed revised site plans to the Planning Commission prior to the 
beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan.  He addressed compatibility issues 
relating to adjacent land uses, and reported the Planning Commission must find that 
the proposed use is compatible with adjacent land uses. 
 
Mr. Miller informed the Planning Commission that the revised plans distributed this 
evening have not been reviewed by the Planning Department.   
 
There was a brief discussion on existing surrounding land uses. 
 
The petitioner, Dino Giulietti of Ron Jona & Associates, 29000 Inkster Road, 
Southfield, was present.  Mr. Giulietti briefly addressed the proposed use and site 
plan design.  He said the existing surrounding land uses are light industrial and it 
appears that all business is conducted within the confines of the buildings.  Mr. 
Giulietti confirmed he is a registered architect. 
 
There was a brief discussion relating to the proposed screening material and dog 
run locations.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

3 
 

Karen Knopper of 26245 Michigan Avenue, Inkster, was present.  Ms. Knopper 
operates the Pet Suite Retreat in Inkster.  She addressed the following and stated 
she was proud to say there have been no complaints registered against the Inkster 
facility.   

 Capacity of dogs. 

 Hours of operation. 

 Outside play areas and play times. 

 Clean-up and disposal of dog waste. 

 Drop-off/pick-up times. 

 Dog run locations. 

 Screening. 

 Existing surrounding land uses. 
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Parking. 

 Storm water detention; catch basins, run-off of dog waste. 

 Entrance to facility; safety concern. 

 Screening; type and color. 
 
The Planning Commission asked the petitioner to provide a cross section of the 
synthetic lawn and a more detailed description of the screening inclusive of colors.  
Further, the Planning Commission would like the Engineering Department to review 
more in depth the storm water detention and grading on the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
The Public Hearing remains open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-015 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the February 24, 2009 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

4 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 365) – Animal Advocates 
Veterinary Hospital, North side of Long Lake Road, East of Rochester Road (1047-
1055 E. Long Lake Road), Section 11, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan.  Mr. Savidant advised members that 
sealed color copies of the office floor design were distributed prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting.  He reported City Management recommends approval of the 
special use request and preliminary site plan.  Mr. Savidant further noted City 
Management would like to see additional landscaping provided on the site, with the 
understanding that this would require the deletion of off-street parking spaces. 
 
After a brief discussion, it was determined that the parking and sidewalk are located 
on the property, not in the right-of-way.  Discussion continued on parking at an 
angle to create green space and the effect of the condemnation on the property. 
 
John Hennessey of Hennessey Engineers, Inc., 13500 Reeck Road, Southgate, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hennessey addressed the site relative 
to size, parking, landscaping, cross access easements and access drives.   
 
Discussion continued on: 

 Elimination of parking spaces 1 and 7 for green space. 

 Planting greenbelt/street trees in proximity of signage. 

 Curb cuts. 

 Parking breakdown/parking needs provided by petitioner. 

 Functionality of cross access easements. 

 Improvements to exterior of building. 

 Discussion with property owner to the east relative to cross access easement. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Weted, property owner to the east of the subject property, was present and 
represented the owner of Long Lake Plaza.  Mr. Weted addressed the need for a 
cross access easement and the intent to provide additional landscaping to the Long 
Lake Plaza site.  He said a shared parking agreement with the proposed veterinary 
use would be feasible. 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that a shared parking agreement should be drafted should any 
parking arrangement go forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

5 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-02-016 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to seventeen (17) when a total of twenty two 
(22) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street parking space 
requirements for commercial kennels, as per Article XL.  This reduction meets the 
standards of Article 40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval, pursuant to Section 22.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed Animal Advocates Veterinary Hospital, located on the north side of 
Long Lake Road, east of Rochester Road, in Section 11, within the B-3 zoning 
district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Parking spaces in the front be provided as landscaped area. 
2. Street trees will be provided. 
3. Approve landscaping changes administratively. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 234) – 

Article 28.30.07, Automobile Repair and Service Facilities in the Light Industrial 
District 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  
He indicated a representative of the Building Department gave a thumbs-up relative 
to the intent and enforceability of the proposed amendment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-017 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 28, M-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, pertaining to 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 10, 2009 
  

 
 

6 
 

automobile repair and service facilities, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 235) 
Article 03.00.00, Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special 
Use Approval Application Submissions 
 
Mr. Miller briefly summarized the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment.  He 
stated a revised draft version was distributed this evening that reflects a very minor 
revision in Section 03.43.04.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented favorably on the proposed text amendment.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the procedure of site plan review and approval with 
the implementation of the new text amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-018 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 3, APPLICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, pertaining to submittal 
requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Application 
submissions, be amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 





PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 24, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.) Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-019 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.), Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-020 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 10, 2009 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.), Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Ullmann presented a brief BZA report.  He stated that at the February meeting, 
there were two commercial vehicle appeals and both will be coming back to the 
BZA at the March meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report.  There was no DDA meeting in February.  
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. will present a proposal for Design Standards for 
the Big Beaver Corridor at the March DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of approved projects in Troy. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 364) – Pet Suite Retreat, 

Commercial Kennel, East side of Bellingham, North of Brinston (2300 Bellingham), 
Section 26, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized this item. 
 
Dino Giulietti from Ron Jona & Associates summarized the changes made to the 
site plan since the Planning Commission reviewed it on February 10, 2009.  He also 
distributed samples of the vinyl and canvas material proposed to be mounted to the 
chain link fence for screening purposes.  Mr. Giulietti stated the applicant prefers 
the blue color and her second choice would be maroon. 
 
Mr. Ullmann expressed concerns regarding the Bio-Clean product proposed to be 
used to reduce the impacts of animal waste on the site.  He stated this is not a long 
term solution for waste treatment.   
 
Mr. Sanzica agreed with Mr. Ullmann.  He suggested the dog run area needed to be 
tied to the sanitary sewer system so that the animal waste could be treated 
appropriately.  He suggested the applicant should be required to submit a Waste 
Management Plan to the Engineering Department prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Schultz stated that as proposed, the method of treating dog waste would 
create a brownfield situation on the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated fabric is not an appropriate screening method. 
 
Mr. Strat agreed and cited examples in Troy where the fabric was detached from 
the fence and was unsightly. 
 
Chair Schultz stated he had an issue with the dog run area along the southern 
property line. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-021 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item until the 
petitioner has time to develop a plan that addresses the fencing and drainage 
issues discussed tonight. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
9. IMAGE AND ARTS COUNCIL OF TROY (I/ACT) – Presentation by Linda Shears 

 
Linda Shears, representing the Image and Arts Council of Troy, discussed the 
vision of the organization and some of the projects in which they were involved.  
Also in attendance from I/ACT were James Brown, Charlene Brown and Maria 
Hunciag. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Linda Shears encouraged the Planning Commission to involve I/ACT in future 
projects in the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Social Service 
Agencies in M-1 Light Industrial 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the uses and character of social service facilities could be 
across the board. 
 
There was general agreement that social service facilities would be appropriate 
uses in M-1, provided they are permitted subject to Special Use Approval. 
 
 

11. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (CR 004) – Proposed Office Building, 
South side of Wattles, East of Rochester Road, Section 23, R-1C to O-1 (Z 732) 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the item. 
 
Simone Mauro described the project.  He stated they were looking for direction from 
the Planning Commission on the item. 
 
General discussion followed.  Concerns discussed by the Planning Commission 
included the following: 
 

 Buffering between the office and abutting properties. 

 Bioswales used for storm water detention. 

 Reduce curb cuts from two to one. 

 Discuss the project with neighbors. 

 Massing, scale and height of building. 

 Exterior lighting. 

 Location of screen wall. 

 Staggering sections of wall. 
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 237) – Neighborhood Node 
Overlay Zone 
 
Mr. Miller summarized this item. 
 
He stated that the draft provisions provided to the Planning Commission was a 
working draft.  Staff had already significantly revised the document. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Neighborhood Node Overlay Zone 
concept, including the following issues: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

 The overlay zone will not create nonconforming uses. 

 The Planning Commission will determine appropriate boundaries for 
neighborhood nodes. 

 The neighborhood nodes will create wealth and increase property values. 

 The neighborhood nodes will be consistent with the Master Plan. 
 
The Planning Department generally agreed to continue working on the provisions. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

13. AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION – 2009 National Planning Conference in 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, April 25-29, 2009 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-022 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission budget for Education and Training for FY 
2008-2009 can conservatively allow up to two Planning Commissioners to attend 
the 2009 National Planning Conference in Minneapolis, Minnesota. 
 
RESOLVED, That members Edmunds and Schultz are authorized to attend the 
2009 APA National Conference. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

15. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general discussion. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\02-24-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:31 P.M. on Tuesday, February 17, 2009 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Bartnik 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Ed Kempen 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Lon Ullmann 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
   David Lambert 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark and Mr. Lambert from this meeting as they are out of the 
county. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Ullmann, Bartnik 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. CLARK AND MR. LAMBERT CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – DECEMBER 16, 2008 
 
Mr. Kempen said that on page 7 the Section number in the second paragraph under 
Item #6 should be listed as 40.56.02 rather than 40.45.02. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 16, 2008 as amended. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kempen, Kovacs, Bartnik, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 - Ullman 
Absent: 2 -Clark, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the Board that he is employed by Siemens Automotive, which is 
Item #4 and thought that he should excuse himself from voting on this item. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

2 
 

Mr. Motzny agreed that it may be appropriate for Mr. Kovacs to be excused so there is 
no appearance of conflict of interest.  Mr. Motzny suggested that Item #4 be removed 
and considered separately. 
 
ITEM #2 - APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 THROUGH ITEM #7 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3, #5, #6 and Item #7 are hereby approved in accordance with 
the suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation.   
 
Mr. Courtney also moved that Item #3 be set up as a Public Hearing when this renewal 
expires in order that the Board may consider making this a permanent variance. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Ullman, Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs 
Absent: 2 - Clark, Lambert 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  KOREAN UNITED METHODIST CHURCH, 
42693 DEQUINDRE, for relief to maintain a landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high 
masonry screening wall required along the south side of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant the Korean United Methodist Church, 42693 Dequindre, a three (3) 
year renewal of relief to maintain a landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry 
screening wall required along the south side of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• A Public Hearing will be held in 2012 in order for the Board to consider making 

this a permanent variance. 
 
ITEM #5– RENEWAL REQUESTED.  DANIEL LESKE, DDS, 5895 JOHN R., for 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south property line 
and the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the west property line where the 
site abuts residential property. 
 
MOVED, to grant Daniel Leske, DDS, 5895 John R., a three (3) year renewal of relief of 
the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south property line and the 6’ high 
masonry screening wall required along the west property line where the site abuts 
residential property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FRANCO MANCINI, 6693 ROCHESTER, for 
renewal of relief granted to construct a new one-story office building adjacent to 
Residential Zoned property without a screen wall as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 
MOVED, to grant Franco Mancini, 6693 Rochester, a one-year renewal of relief to 
construct a new one-story office building adjacent to Residential Zoned property without 
a screen wall as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to determine if a screen 
wall would be more effective. 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to see the final 
construction of the building. 

• One-year time frame will give residents in the area the chance to determine if the 
natural vegetation will provide enough screening. 

 
ITEM #7 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  TROY AMERICAN HOUSE, 2300 GRAND 
HAVEN, for renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the north and 
east side of the off-street parking area where it is adjacent to residentially zoned land. 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy American House, 2300 Grand Haven, a three-year renewal of 
relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the north and east side of the off-
street parking area where it is adjacent to residentially zoned land. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Ullman 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from voting on Item #4 as there may be the appearance 
of a conflict of interest due to the fact that Mr. Kovacs is employed by the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Ullman, Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs left the podium. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to have Mr. Courtney act as Chairman for the presentation of Item #4. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Ullmann, Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

4 
 

Excused: 1 – Kovacs 
 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  SIEMENS AUTOMOTIVE, 4685 INVESTMENT 
DRIVE, for relief to maintain a landscaped berm along the west and south sides of the 
site where a 6’ high decorative masonry screen wall is required. 
 
MOVED, to grant Siemens Automotive, 4685 Investment Drive, a three (3) year renewal 
of relief to maintain a 5’ high landscaped berm along the west and south sides of the 
site where a 6’ high decorative masonry screen wall is required. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Ullman, Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 
Excused: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT SIEMENS AUTOMOTIVE A THREE-YEAR (3) RENEWAL 
CARRIED 
 
Chairman Kovacs returned to the podium. 
 
ITEM #8 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  HARRY MAZEI, 39 HICKORY, for approval 
under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle 
outside on residential property.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Ford dump truck described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if the petitioner had submitted any documentation in support of Item A 
or Item B of the criteria on the application. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that no other documentation had been submitted by the petitioner 
beyond what was included in the application. 
 
Mr. Harry Mazei was present and stated that altering the existing garage is out of the 
question and believes that the location where the truck is parked is far enough back on 
the property that it does not negatively affect any of the surrounding property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik informed the petitioner that when someone applies for approval of a 
Commercial vehicle they need to supply evidence that supports the fact that they have 
no other place to store this vehicle or that there is no possible way that an additional 
structure could be constructed.  Mr. Bartnik said that he feels the petitioner meets the 
criteria in Item C and asked what efforts had been made to store this vehicle off-site. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that he had approached the owner of the property adjacent to his and 
asked if he could park his truck at that location, but the owner stated that he could not.  
Mr. Mazei further indicated that he did not go out and look at other places to store this 
vehicle and feels it is just common sense to know that this would not be a good time to 
construct another garage.  If Mr. Mazei has to store the vehicle off-site there will be a 
number of financial concerns involved. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked when Mr. Mazei had purchased this truck. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that originally he had lived in more of an industrial area and the parking 
of the truck was not a problem.  Mr. Mazei said that he has owned this vehicle 
approximately 10 years but has only lived at this property for the last two years.  One of 
the reasons he purchased this property was because it was a larger lot and he wanted 
to be able to keep the truck on his property.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Mazei had ever gone before City Council for approval to store 
this vehicle and Mr. Mazei stated that this is the first time he has asked for permission to 
store this vehicle on his property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Mazei was aware of the rules in the City governing commercial 
vehicles. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that a friend of his had said something to him once.  If this request is not 
approved Mr. Mazei said that he will look into something else regarding the storage of 
this vehicle.  Mr. Mazei said that he does not look into these types of things and feels 
that if he is doing something wrong, someone will let him know. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why Mr. Mazei was in front of this Board as he did not make any 
effort to try and meet the criteria in Item A or Item B. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that he knows what his budget is and he cannot afford to change his 
garage or add another garage so he did not feel it was necessary to bring in any 
documentation.  The garage is too small to put a taller garage door on it.  Mr. Mazei 
said that most people know what’s going on and the economy is not good and he feels 
that it is just “common sense” to know what people can afford. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it was up to the petitioner to prove his case and show the Board 
the necessity of this approval.  Mr. Kovacs also asked what Mr. Mazei will do if this 
approval is denied. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that he will figure something out.  If he has to move it, he will.  Mr. Mazei 
said that he knows the cost of construction and believes it is common sense to not  
expect someone to build a garage.  Mr. Mazei said that he did not feel he should have 
to get a bid for a garage.  He knows the cost of construction and cannot afford it. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in order to grant this approval the Board needs a good reason and 
feels that the criteria and instructions contained in the application are quite clear. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he can understand why Mr. Mazei wants the vehicle close to 
his home in the winter because of the snow plow but asked why he would need the 
vehicle there during the summer. 
 
Mr. Mazei said that he uses the truck in the summer for his landscaping business and 
uses it to haul materials. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he likes where the truck is parked, but does not think it needs to 
be there during the summer. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Edward Berry, 57 Hickory, was present.  He does not feel this is a high class area 
and does not think this truck is detrimental to the area.  No one complains about the 
truck and he feels Mr. Mazei should be allowed to park it in this location.  During the 
summer months it just looks like a regular truck.  Mr. Berry said that it is hard to make a 
living now, and thinks it would be difficult to ask Mr. Mazei to pay to store this vehicle. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to see this request postponed to allow Mr. Mazei the 
opportunity to make a better case and provide more information to the Board regarding 
this request. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he thought Mr. Mazei could check into locations in the area to 
see if he could find a space for this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that the only locations allowed to store commercial or 
recreational vehicles are in the Industrial Zoning District, which would most likely be 
located south of Maple. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that this area has homes that are well maintained and does not 
believe there are any slum locations in Troy. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Ullman 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Harry Mazei, 39 Hickory, for approval under 
Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide evidence to the Board that this 
request meets the criteria in Item A or Item B. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Ullman 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF MARCH 17, 
2009 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #9 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  ANDREW AN, 2019 LANCER, for approval 
under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle 
outside on residential property.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The 1989 Chevy Stake truck described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 

Mr. Bartnik asked a question regarding the zoning of the property to the south of this 
location and on the east side of Coolidge. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the property to the south as well as the property on the east side 
of Coolidge are zoned R-1B, single-family residential.   
 
Mr. An said that he cannot build another garage on this site and there are no neighbors 
on two sides of the site.  Mr. An would like to be able to keep this truck on the site as he 
does not believe anyone in the immediate area would be affected. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how long this truck has been parked at this location. 
 
Mr. An stated that he had a business in Troy for 40 years and recently sold it and now 
uses his home as an office.  This truck has been in this location since October 2008. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner had been trying to sell this vehicle. 
 
Mr. An said that eventually he was going to sell the truck and thought the truck would 
probably be sold within a year. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. An had looked into other places to store this vehicle. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. An said that there are a lot of places in Troy to store this vehicle but he does not 
want to pay rent.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Donald Gutman, 2018 Lancer was present and stated that he lives directly across 
the street from the petitioner.  Mr. Gutman stated that the truck cannot be seen by traffic 
traveling northbound on Coolidge although it is visible to traffic heading southbound.  
Mr. Gutman said this is a temporary situation and it does not bother him at all.  They are 
the original owners of this property and he believes the truck should be allowed to stay 
in this location. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are three (3) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where Mr. An was advertising to sell this truck. 
 
Mr. An said that he will probably put in the newspaper but it is not listed at this point. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not mind it sitting there for six (6) months while it was for 
sale, but would have a problem with a longer period of time. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Andrew An, 2019 Lancer, approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a 
period of six (6) months. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to sell the vehicle. 
 
Motion dies due to lack of support. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Andrew An, 2019 Lancer approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for a 
period of three (3) months. 
 

• Truck is visible to traffic along Coolidge as well as to neighbors along Coolidge. 
• Area is zoned residential. 
• If this truck is not sold, it can be moved to another location. 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

9 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
A discussion began regarding the fees involved with appearing before the Board for a 
renewal.  Mr. Stimac explained that it would come back as a renewal and the cost would 
be considerably less than the original application. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked the petitioner if he thought he could come back in a month with more 
information to support his request. 
 
Mr. An said that he wanted the Board to give him six (6) months. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Ullman 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Andrew An, 2019 Lancer for approval under 
Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property until the meeting of March 17, 2009. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to provide evidence to the Board that this 
request meets the criteria in Item A or Item B. 

 
Mr. An asked what kind of information the Board wants. 
 
Mr. Kovacs explained that the Board needs supporting evidence as to why Mr. An 
cannot meet the criteria in Item A or Item B. 
 
Mr. An said that he cannot build another garage and the vehicle is not blocking anyone 
and he believes six (6) months would be enough time. 
 
A discussion began with Mr. An and the Board members regarding the construction of a 
garage and what Mr. An feels the City should allow him to do. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that there are objections to the parking of this vehicle on this 
property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he does not believe the petitioner would put up a garage, but would 
like to see the petitioner provide information as to the cost of storing the vehicle at 
another location. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially the petitioner is required to show compliance with the 
criteria in Item C and either Item A or Item B.  It is up to the petitioner to choose which 
criteria he can meet.  Mr. Stimac also stated that he could show where another garage 
could or could not be constructed.  It is not up to the Board to decide which one the 
petitioner will comply with, it is up to the petitioner to determine which one he will 
comply with. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 17, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he feels the petitioner to spend his time on Item A since he has 
indicated that the vehicle will be for sale. 
 
Vote on motion to postpone this request until the meeting of March 17, 2009. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Ullmann, Bartnik 
Absent: 2 – Clark, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL MARCH 17, 2009 CARRIED 
 
A general discussion began regarding allowances for the storage of commercial 
vehicles on industrial property.  Mr. Stimac explained that there are exceptional cases 
for the application of criteria A, especially when someone needs their truck on a 24-hour 
on-call basis.  Financial issues alone regarding Item A should not be considered when 
making a decision. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that in his opinion if you are running a business you should be able to 
find a place to store this type of vehicle. 
 
Mr. Stimac indicated that 2477 W. Maple has just opened for the storage of recreational 
and commercial vehicles. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:35 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 24, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.) Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-019 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.), Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-020 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 10, 2009 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Edmunds (arrived at 7:45 p.m.), Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Ullmann presented a brief BZA report.  He stated that at the February meeting, 
there were two commercial vehicle appeals and both will be coming back to the 
BZA at the March meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a brief DDA report.  There was no DDA meeting in February.  
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. will present a proposal for Design Standards for 
the Big Beaver Corridor at the March DDA meeting. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of approved projects in Troy. 
 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 364) – Pet Suite Retreat, 

Commercial Kennel, East side of Bellingham, North of Brinston (2300 Bellingham), 
Section 26, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized this item. 
 
Dino Giulietti from Ron Jona & Associates summarized the changes made to the 
site plan since the Planning Commission reviewed it on February 10, 2009.  He also 
distributed samples of the vinyl and canvas material proposed to be mounted to the 
chain link fence for screening purposes.  Mr. Giulietti stated the applicant prefers 
the blue color and her second choice would be maroon. 
 
Mr. Ullmann expressed concerns regarding the Bio-Clean product proposed to be 
used to reduce the impacts of animal waste on the site.  He stated this is not a long 
term solution for waste treatment.   
 
Mr. Sanzica agreed with Mr. Ullmann.  He suggested the dog run area needed to be 
tied to the sanitary sewer system so that the animal waste could be treated 
appropriately.  He suggested the applicant should be required to submit a Waste 
Management Plan to the Engineering Department prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Schultz stated that as proposed, the method of treating dog waste would 
create a brownfield situation on the site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated fabric is not an appropriate screening method. 
 
Mr. Strat agreed and cited examples in Troy where the fabric was detached from 
the fence and was unsightly. 
 
Chair Schultz stated he had an issue with the dog run area along the southern 
property line. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-021 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item until the 
petitioner has time to develop a plan that addresses the fencing and drainage 
issues discussed tonight. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
9. IMAGE AND ARTS COUNCIL OF TROY (I/ACT) – Presentation by Linda Shears 

 
Linda Shears, representing the Image and Arts Council of Troy, discussed the 
vision of the organization and some of the projects in which they were involved.  
Also in attendance from I/ACT were James Brown, Charlene Brown and Maria 
Hunciag. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Linda Shears encouraged the Planning Commission to involve I/ACT in future 
projects in the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

10. POTENTIAL ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Social Service 
Agencies in M-1 Light Industrial 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the uses and character of social service facilities could be 
across the board. 
 
There was general agreement that social service facilities would be appropriate 
uses in M-1, provided they are permitted subject to Special Use Approval. 
 
 

11. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (CR 004) – Proposed Office Building, 
South side of Wattles, East of Rochester Road, Section 23, R-1C to O-1 (Z 732) 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the item. 
 
Simone Mauro described the project.  He stated they were looking for direction from 
the Planning Commission on the item. 
 
General discussion followed.  Concerns discussed by the Planning Commission 
included the following: 
 

 Buffering between the office and abutting properties. 

 Bioswales used for storm water detention. 

 Reduce curb cuts from two to one. 

 Discuss the project with neighbors. 

 Massing, scale and height of building. 

 Exterior lighting. 

 Location of screen wall. 

 Staggering sections of wall. 
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 237) – Neighborhood Node 
Overlay Zone 
 
Mr. Miller summarized this item. 
 
He stated that the draft provisions provided to the Planning Commission was a 
working draft.  Staff had already significantly revised the document. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Neighborhood Node Overlay Zone 
concept, including the following issues: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 24, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

 The overlay zone will not create nonconforming uses. 

 The Planning Commission will determine appropriate boundaries for 
neighborhood nodes. 

 The neighborhood nodes will create wealth and increase property values. 

 The neighborhood nodes will be consistent with the Master Plan. 
 
The Planning Department generally agreed to continue working on the provisions. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

13. AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION – 2009 National Planning Conference in 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, April 25-29, 2009 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-022 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission budget for Education and Training for FY 
2008-2009 can conservatively allow up to two Planning Commissioners to attend 
the 2009 National Planning Conference in Minneapolis, Minnesota. 
 
RESOLVED, That members Edmunds and Schultz are authorized to attend the 
2009 APA National Conference. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

15. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general discussion. 
 
Mr. Edmunds apologized for arriving late due to a Planning workshop that he 
attended that day. 





TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 25, 2009  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on February 25, 2009 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Library, 510 W. Big Beaver.  Jennifer Liang and Neil Shaw called the meeting to order 
at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo  

Disha Bora 
Geon Woo Kim   
Jason Lee 
Jennifer Liang (Co Chair) 
Joseph Niemiec   
Sevita Rama 
Shaina Sekhri (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw (Co Chair) 
David Wylie 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Vikram Prasad, Rachita Singh and Emily Wang 
VISITORS: Cathy Russ and Judy Frankly – Library 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2009-2-1 
 
 Moved by   Liang 

  Seconded by  Niemiec 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 17, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 10 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  3 – Prasad, Singh, Wang   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Cathy Russ, Library Director 
   Presented information regarding: 
    Library Operations 
    700,000 visits per year 

1,500,000 items checked out per year 
  Judy Frankley, Librarian (Teens) 
    Teen Advisory Board 
    Current Events 
    Programs 
     
5. Teens Taking Action  

No Update 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 25, 2009  
 

 2

6. Troy Daze 
-Discussion as to status of event and possible changes due to budget 
concerns. 

   
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  

 
No Motion 

 Resolution # TY-2009-2-2 
  Moved by  Sekhri   
  Seconded by  Wylie 

  
RESOLVED that Prasad is excused. 

  Yes:   10  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   3 -  Prasad, Singh, Wang 
 
       
8. Youth Council Comments – None  

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    

 
 

10. Adjournment –    7:44 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jennifer Liang, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: March 25 at 7:00 P.M.  



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT MARCH 3, 2009 
 
This meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held Tuesday,  March 4, 
2009 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:31 
P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Bob Miller 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman  
   Linda Rivetto 
    
  ABSENT Paul Lin 
 
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
  GUEST:   Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
  
      

Resolution #HDSC-2009-03-001 
Moved by Miller 
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Lin be excused  

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Miller, Harris-Freeman and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Resolution #HDSC-2009-02-002 
Moved by Harris-Freeman 
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 5, 2009 be approved as amended 

Yes: 4  Lindsey, Miller, Harris-Freeman and Rivetto 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Above Ground Surveys 
No surveys completed. 
 

B. Request to Delist 5875 Livernois 
No action taken. 

  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



2 

 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Update on Sunshine Laws 

Lori Bluhm provided a detailed review of the Michigan Open Meetings Act and 
Freedom of Information Act. Committee members will be given manuals that 
include this information. 
 

B. Request to delist 4800 Beach Road 
The committee will begin review of the information on this resource in April. 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:30 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, April 1, 2009 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & Historic 
Village.  

 
 
                  

Kevin Lindsey 
               Chairman 
 

 

Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 3, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 3, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-023 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Mr. Edmunds asked that the minutes reflect his apology for arriving late due to a 
Planning workshop that he had been attending that day. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-024 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 24, 2009 Special/Study 
meeting as amended. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 3, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
5. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) 

 Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 Development of Commercial Districts 
 

Mr. Savidant introduced Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. and 
briefly described the intent of the discussion this evening. 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented an analysis of Business and Highway Service zoning 
districts. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Neighborhood Node Overlay District 
concept.  They discussed the merits of applying overlays, where the underlying 
zoning can remain in place, versus traditional rezoning which can create 
nonconforming uses, buildings and lots. 
 
Staff will bring an example of a potential mapped Neighborhood Node to a future 
meeting for review and discussion. 
 
For the H-S Highway Service district, the Planning Commission generally agreed 
that the minimum lot size for a gas station should be at least one acre. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general discussion. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 3, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\03-03-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 3, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on March 3, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-023 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Mr. Edmunds asked that the minutes reflect his apology for arriving late due to a 
Planning workshop that he had been attending that day. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-02-024 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 24, 2009 Special/Study 
meeting as amended. 
 

Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Maxwell, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Ullmann 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck (arrived 7:33 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 3, 2009 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
5. COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE REWRITE (ZOTA 236) 

 Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 Development of Commercial Districts 
 

Mr. Savidant introduced Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. and 
briefly described the intent of the discussion this evening. 
 
Mr. Carlisle presented an analysis of Business and Highway Service zoning 
districts. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Neighborhood Node Overlay District 
concept.  They discussed the merits of applying overlays, where the underlying 
zoning can remain in place, versus traditional rezoning which can create 
nonconforming uses, buildings and lots. 
 
Staff will bring an example of a potential mapped Neighborhood Node to a future 
meeting for review and discussion. 
 
For the H-S Highway Service district, the Planning Commission generally agreed 
that the minimum lot size for a gas station should be at least one acre. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general discussion. 





ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
MARCH 4, 2009 

 1 

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
scheduled Wednesday, March 4, 2009, in the lower level Conference Room at City 
Hall.  Due to lack of quorum, the meeting was cancelled.                                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



ANIMAL CONTROL APPEAL BOARD MINUTES – DRAFT           MARCH 4, 2009  

 Page 1 of 1

 
The regular meeting of the Animal Control Appeal Board scheduled for 
Wednesday, March 4, 2009 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road was cancelled at 7:50 p.m. due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
  PRESENT: Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
    Patrick Carolan, Secretary 
    Sergeant Joseph Haddad 
    ACO Karen Livingston 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Al Petrulis, Vice-Chairperson 

Kathleen Melchert 
    V. James Viola 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
            Jayne Saeger, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft March 5, 2009 
 

-1- 

A meeting of the Troy Charter Revision Committee was held March 5, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Chairman Daniel Bliss called the Meeting to order at 3:14 PM. 

 
ROLL CALL:   
 PRESENT: Lillian Barno, Maryann Bernardi, Daniel Bliss, Mark 

Solomon – 3:14 PM 
 ABSENT: Jerry E. Bloom, Shirley Kanoza, Cynthia A. Wilsher 

ALSO PRESENT: City Attorney Lori Bluhm, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
 
RESOLUTION TO EXCUSE MEMBER:  
 
Resolution #CR-2009-03-001 
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Bernardi 
 
RESOLVED, That members Bloom, Kanoza, and Wilsher be EXCUSED from the meeting 
of March 5, 2009.  
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Solomon  
No: None 
Absent: Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 30, 2008 
 
Resolution #CR-2009-03-002 
Moved by Bernardi 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the Charter Revision Committee Minutes of June 30, 2008 are hereby 
APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss, Solomon  
No: None 
Absent: Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

SUNSHINE LAW: Review by City Attorney Bluhm 
City Attorney Bluhm provided the members a resource booklet and presented a brief 
overview of the Sunshine Laws. 

PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT: Section 6.2(g) – Vacancies in Elective Office 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01r



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft March 5, 2009 
 

-2- 

Clerk Bartholomew briefly explained the Agenda packet materials. 
 
Member Bernardi noted concern with requiring members of Council to resign their position 
in order to seek another City of Troy elected office. She questioned the potential of having 
individuals resigning and challenging an incumbent with the risk of ending up with no 
position on Council. She indicated concern with the potential of not having members of the 
public having their first run for office being that of Mayor and the possibility of creating 
elections for the position of the Mayor being uncontested elections. 
 
Member Solomon questioned the impact of having no requirement to require a resignation 
prior to filing. 
 
Member Bernardi indicated that there could be a vacancy should the individual be 
successful however if the candidate was not successful there would be no impact. She 
also noted that this amendment was adopted back in 1994 and since 1955 there was 
never any problem that she could discover. She noted she contacted the City Attorney 
earlier in the day to inquire about the history of the amendment.  
 
City Attorney Bluhm indicated that it appears that the amendment was proposed and 
adopted the same time as the amendment eliminating the primary and term limits. 
 
Chair Bliss indicated concern that with the absence of 3 Committee members for the 
discussion and input on the matter. He made a motion to postpone the motion. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE 
 
Resolution #CR-2009-36-003 
Moved by Bliss 
Seconded by Barno 
 
RESOLVED, That the this item be POSTPONED until all members of the Charter Revision 
Committee be present for discussion. 
 
Yes: Barno, Bernardi, Bliss,  
No: Solomon 
Absent: Bloom, Kanoza, Wilsher 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Member Solomon voiced a parliamentary objection to the vote. He stated it was his belief 
that the Chair did not allow adequate time for him to consider the motion prior to asking for 
the question. He noted that he believes that it is ill-advised for a committee to operate on 
the premise that all members need to be present for action and questioned the intention of 
a quorum. 
 
Member Bernardi noted that she would have voted differently had she be apprised of 
Member Solomon’s concern prior to voting. 
 



CHARTER REVISION COMMITTEE MINUTES - Draft March 5, 2009 
 

-3- 

Member Bernardi made a motion to reconsider the motion and indicated that the vote was 
too rapid. She appreciated the comments of the Chair, but respects Member Solomon’s 
comments and believed that the vote was too quick and that he should have had an 
opportunity to voice his concerns prior to the vote.  
 
There was no second to the vote and discussion ended abruptly when Member Barno 
indicated she quit and left the meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting ADJOURNED at 4:19 PM due to a lack of quorum. 
 
Clerk Bartholomew requested that members submit any other potential amendments to the 
Clerk for inclusion in the next meeting Agenda. 
 
 
 
 
Daniel Bliss, Chair  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES - Draft March 9, 2009 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held Monday, March 9, 2009, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 
8:05 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  None 

Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 26, 2008  
 
Resolution #EC-2009-03-001 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Friday, September 26, 2008, are APPROVED as 
submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of All Applicable Precincts in the City of Troy for All 
Elections Which do not Contain Statewide Ballot Questions 
 
Resolution #EC-2009-03-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED for 
all elections which do not contain state-wide ballot questions as deemed necessary and in 
accordance with MCL 168.659.  
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 AM. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01s



DATE:        February 2, 2009

TO:             Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of January 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 6 $262,986.00 $3,350.00

Sub Total 6 $262,986.00 $3,350.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 2 $156,000.00 $1,790.00
Add/Alter 18 $3,718,313.00 $38,715.00
Kiosk 1 $500.00 $35.00

Sub Total 21 $3,874,813.00 $40,540.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 3 $560,000.00 $5,945.00
Add/Alter 7 $174,282.00 $2,355.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $2,400.00 $75.00
Repair 3 $89,832.00 $1,205.00
Fire Repair 1 $8,000.00 $175.00

Sub Total 15 $834,514.00 $9,755.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 2 $38,000.00 $610.00

Sub Total 2 $38,000.00 $610.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $200,000.00 $2,115.00

Sub Total 1 $200,000.00 $2,115.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $5,500.00 $135.00
Sub Total 1 $5,500.00 $135.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 19 $0.00 $1,850.00
Fences 1 $0.00 $25.00

Sub Total 20 $0.00 $1,875.00

TOTAL 66 $5,215,813.00 $58,380.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 116 $1,160.00
Cert. of Occupancy 27 $2,518.25
Plan Review 45 $2,743.50
Microfilm 28 $300.00
Building Permits 66 $58,380.00
Electrical Permits 112 $7,149.00
Heating Permits 88 $4,545.00
Air Cond. Permits 22 $1,250.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $35.00
Plumbing Permits 61 $4,974.00
Storm Sewer Permits 5 $95.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 6 $216.00
Sewer Taps 6 $852.00

TOTAL 583 $84,217.75

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 28 $140.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 46 $690.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 12 $60.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 6 $90.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 8 $80.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 7 $105.00

TOTAL 111 $1,205.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 0 $0.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 0 $0.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 105 $7,678,947.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

3
0

10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Feb 2, 2009 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter HYMAN, RICHARD BUILDERS 50 W BIG BEAVER 175  100,753
Commercial, Add/Alter INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT 1301 W LONG LAKE 300  969,720
Commercial, Add/Alter INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT 1301 W LONG LAKE 150  255,000
Commercial, Add/Alter THE DESIGN & CONST. GROUP 637 JOHN R  800,000
Commercial, Add/Alter STELLAR BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT INC 1237 COOLIDGE  1,115,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  3,240,473

Commercial, Tenant Completion TIM HORTONS 3331 ROCHESTER  125,000

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  125,000

Industrial, Add/Alter INERGY AUTOMOTIVE SYSTEMS 2585 W MAPLE  122,500

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  122,500

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter CONTRACTING RESOURCES INC 44201 DEQUINDRE  200,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  200,000

Total Valuation:  3,687,973Records  9



DATE:        March 2, 2009

TO:             Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:        Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued February 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 1 $150,000.00 $1,615.00

Sub Total 1 $150,000.00 $1,615.00

COMMERCIAL
New Less Tenant 1 $527,100.00 $5,395.00
Add/Alter 6 $1,373,196.00 $13,940.00
Kiosk 1 $0.00 $35.00

Sub Total 8 $1,900,296.00 $19,370.00

RESIDENTIAL
Add/Alter 6 $96,100.00 $1,560.00
Repair 4 $190,738.00 $2,370.00

Sub Total 10 $286,838.00 $3,930.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 2 $6,000.00 $150.00

Sub Total 2 $6,000.00 $150.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $120,000.00 $1,315.00

Sub Total 1 $120,000.00 $1,315.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 17 $0.00 $1,925.00

Sub Total 17 $0.00 $1,925.00

TOTAL 39 $2,463,134.00 $28,305.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 272 $2,720.00
Cert. of Occupancy 10 $1,113.25
Plan Review 26 $1,323.00
Microfilm 10 $107.00
Building Permits 39 $28,305.00
Electrical Permits 88 $4,108.00
Heating Permits 66 $3,715.00
Air Cond. Permits 20 $960.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $150.00
Plumbing Permits 70 $3,591.00
Storm Sewer Permits 1 $25.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 1 $25.00
Sewer Taps 2 $38.00

TOTAL 606 $46,180.25

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 19 $95.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 34 $510.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 10 $50.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 1 $10.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 4 $60.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 6 $60.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 4 $60.00

TOTAL 78 $845.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 0 $0.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 0 $0.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 105 $7,678,947.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

3
0

10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

0



Mar 2, 2009 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter WALSH COLLEGE 3838 LIVERNOIS  300,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION GROUP 250 STEPHENSON  765,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION GROUP 850 STEPHENSON 500  122,116

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,187,116

Commercial, New Less Tenant RVL RAMCO LLC 730 E BIG BEAVER 738  527,100

Commercial, New Less TenantTotal  527,100

Industrial, Add/Alter ROGERS, JASON 1728 MAPLELAWN  150,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  150,000

Religious, Add/Alter WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH 6600 ROCHESTER  120,000

Religious, Add/AlterTotal  120,000

Total Valuation:  1,984,216Records  7



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



March 4, 2009 

From: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 

 

To: Cindy Stewart 

 City of Troy Community Affairs 

500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, MI 48084 

 

Dear Ms. Stewart, 

We would like to thank you for the recent completion of the Disabilities Resource 
Guide. This accomplishment will be an invaluable tool for all Troy citizens having 
disability issues and the caregivers for those with disabilities. 

We appreciate the time it must have taken for you and your staff to compile the 
information. We extend our gratitude to all who had a part in this. We are proud to 
recommend it o our citizens and will certainly promote it whenever possible.  

Thank you for putting the book on our web-link too. That should help make it useful for 
our citizens. 

Sincerely, 

 

Angie Done 

Chair of the Advisory Committee of Persons with Disabilities 

Cc:  

Troy City Council 

Senior Citizens Advisory Board 

campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-05





campbellld
Text Box
J-06



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   
DATE: March 18, 2009 
SUBJECT: Public Comment Statements About Assessor  

 

 

In light of the severity of comments made at the March 2, 2009 City Council 
meeting, I met with Mr. Paul Beck on March 9, 2009 to further review his statements at 
the City Council meeting.  Mr. Beck alleged at the meeting that our City Assessor kept 
two sets of books.  Unfortunately, since the statements were made during the public 
comment portion of the agenda, the City Assessor was not present.  There was no 
opportunity to either review the documents referenced or to identify the required record 
keeping procedures, as mandated by state statutes and regulations as administered by 
the Assessor’s Office.       

 
Through conversation with Mr. Beck on March 9, 2009, I was able to ascertain 

that he was comparing documents received through a Freedom of Information (FOIA) 
request against the electronic property sales records posted on the City Assessor’s web 
site.  I explained to Mr. Beck that these documents, although both coming from the 
Assessing Department, were not comparable.  The FOIA documents contained all sales 
of property in Troy in 2008, including the sales that were less than arms length 
transactions, such as forfeitures, bankruptcies, etc.   The Assessor’s web site document 
includes only those property sales that are considered as comparables.  As required by 
the State of Michigan, these comparables only include true market sales (willing seller/ 
willing buyer property sales).   The non-market property sales are excluded from the list, 
which is provided as on on-line convenience.  Details of these sales can be accessed 
through City records or at the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  

 
Our City Assessor conveyed to me great concern with the negative impact that 

these statements could potentially have on his professional reputation, especially since 
the statements were made in a public meeting which was broadcast on a number of 
occasions.  He indicated that he may explore the possibility of filing a civil lawsuit.   

 
Mr. Beck may wish to address City Council at the March 23, 2009 meeting to 

clarify his statements at the March 2, 2009 meeting.  However, in light of the potentially 
harmful impact that inaccurate written and/or verbal statements may cause when made 
in a public meeting, Council may wish to direct City Administration to prepare disclaimer 
language, warning of the potential for civil and/or criminal liability for false, misleading or 
even mistaken comments. This language, as well as recommendations for placement of 
such disclaimer language on the Council Agenda and/or Kiosk, could be brought back for 
Council consideration.    

 
I am available should you require any additional information or clarification.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07


	AGENDA: March 23, 2009
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Service Commendation – Ron Figlan
	Service Commendation – Charles Craft
	Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 234) – Article 28 – Automobile Repair in M-1 – Light Industrial Zoning District
	C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 235) – Article 3 – Submittal Requirements for Site Plan Review/Approval and Special Use Approval Applications
	C-3 Re-Programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Funds
	C-4 Liquor Violations – SDD & SDM
	a) NLM, Inc. (dba: Manny’s Liquor Shoppe)
	b) Troy Cheese & Wine Market, Inc. (dba: Troy Cheese & Wine Market)
	c) Wal-Mart Store No. 2873. (dba: Wal-Mart)
	d) Aldi, Inc. (Michigan) Store #90 (dba: Aldi Food Market)
	e) Good Food Company East (dba: Good Food Company)
	f) Agrusa International Marketplace (dba: Agrusa International Marketplace)


	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Continuation of Public Hearing – Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt Paving of Florence Street in Section 9 – Project No. 08.108.1
	A-1 Continuation of Presentations:
	c) Transit Center Update – Presentation by Dan Beattie of Clark Hill


	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  None Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: None Scheduled
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Economic Development Corporation (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals;...
	E-3 Bid Waiver – Motorola ATM Mapping Software for Fire Vehicles
	E-4 Additional Costs for I-75 Bridge Work – Project No. 08.102.6
	E-5 Possible Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance Revisions
	E-6 Ratification of Contract Extension – American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) 2009-2010
	E-7 Implementation of Revenue Enhancements
	a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Notary Service and Dog Licenses
	b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Planning Department Fees
	c) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required – Fire Department Fees
	d) Resolution to Amend Chapter 82A – Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement
	e) Resolution to Amend Chapter 93 – Fire Prevention – Occupancy Permit Ordinance
	f) Resolution to Revise Building Department Fees

	E-8 Appointment of an Acting City Manager

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a) Service Commendation – Ron Figlan
	b) Service Commendation – Charles Craft

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Quarterly Newsletter – Troy Today
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Liquid Calcium Chloride
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Tax Bill Printing Services
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Municipal Testing Services
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Vehicle Graphics
	g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Police and Fire Departments Radio Interoperability Project
	h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance

	F-5 Contract Amendment – Medical Service Facilities
	F-6 Contract Extension – Banquet Services
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 35 – Sidwell #88-20-22-276-046 – DePorre Property Investments, LLC
	F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 47 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-041 – Surg, LLC
	F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and Wattles Road Improvements, B...
	F-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 and Wattles Road Improvements, ...
	F-11 Troy Racquet Club Rates

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) Outdoor Seating Request in Excess of 20 Seats – Pizzapapalis/Rio Wraps, 300 John R – April 6, 2009

	G-2 Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Charter Revision Committee/Final – June 30, 2008
	Election Commission/Final – September 26, 2008
	Youth Council/Final – December 17, 2008
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 5, 2009
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – January 8, 2009
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 3, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 4, 2009
	Planning Commission/Final – February 10, 2009
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 17, 2009
	Planning Commission/Special Study/Draft – February 24, 2009
	Planning Commission/Special Study/Final – February 24, 2009
	Youth Council/Draft – February 25, 2009
	Historic District Study Committee/Draft – March 3, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 3, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 3, 2009
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – March 4, 2009
	Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – March 4, 2009
	Charter Revision Committee/Draft – March 5, 2009
	Election Commission/Draft – March 9, 2009

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of January 2009
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February 2009

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Walsh College President Stephanie Bergeron Regarding the Assistance Received with Traffic Flow during Commencement Ceremonies
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Ronald Tatro Regarding the Assistance Received with the Office of Violence against Women Elder Abuse Training Program
	Letter of Thanks to Cindy Stewart from Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities Chair Angie Done Regarding the Completion of the Disabilities Resource Guide

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	J-5 Communication Regarding Notice of Opportunity to Comment Before the Michigan Public Service Commission – FirstEnergy Solutions – File No. U-15832
	J-6 Communication from the Arbor Day Foundation Regarding Troy Being Named a Tree City USA
	J-7 Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Public Comment Statement about Assessor

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



